
DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmember Zach Bullock
Councilmember Elihu Ross

EOF

CITY OF WILLTSTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2022
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

Interim City Manager Terry Bovaird
Finance Director Stephen Bloom
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Attorney Kiersten Ballou

OP

ITEM_1-ADDITI S. DELETIONS. CHANGES AND OF THE AGENDA

ITEM-2_MAYOR'SS OF THE MONTH: Oliver Mack, 2nd Grade Joyce Bullock
Elementary School, Annastyn Chorvat, Williston/Middle High School

ITEM - 3 _ PROCLAMATION: HONORING THE WILLISTON RED DEVILS FOOTBALL
TEAM.

LIC PARTICIP

ITEM - s - CONSENT AGENDA - (pp 6-9)
o Council minutes November 8"2022

-6_OLDBUS

A. STAFF AND BOARD COUNCIL UPDATES
o INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD
o STAFF
o COUNCIL

TTEM-7_ NEW BUSINESS -

OPEN lST PUBLIC HEARING

A. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE A
SCHOOL.

ON: ALI MIRZA: OLD MIDDLE

1



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLTNCIL MEETING

B. RESOLUTION 2 A RESOLUTIO N OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
RID AP

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GAINESVILLE AIRCRAFT SALES. LLC. AND THE
CITY OF WILLISTON FOR PROP ERTY AT THE AIRPORT KNOWN AS
HARDSTAND6WITHALEGAL CRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE

AUTHO THE
COT]NCII, PRESTD TO EXECUTE THE LAND I,EASE REEMENT: AND

ING AN
STEGALL. (pp 10-25)

B

C. ON WITH P

AIRPORT AGER BENTON STEGALL. (pp26-27\
D. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE : REVIEW OF SEPTEMBER 2022

BOATS EXPANS

ANCIAL
E. DISflISSION

RS
POSSIBLE ACTION: CHANGIN FROM LINCOLN

INVESTMENTS TO INSPIRE. CITY MANAGER TERRY
BOV CASON NATURE COAST FINANCIAL.

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING

F 2ND READING INANCE 2O22-7O1 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON AMENDING THE ZONING MA OF THE CITY OF

CO TO AN APPLICA
COVINGTON FP LLC. FOR 47.9 +I- ACRES ID AS NUMEROUS
PARCELS (ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT A) ON THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF
THE LEVY CO PROPERTY APPRAISER. UNDER THE AMENDMENT
ppr)(1FnTTptrq. trqTABLISHED TI\T APTFP 16? FT TTPTI-TA q.TA TUTES

G THE LAND USE
FROM RESID TO MIXED USE ON CERTAIN S WITHIN THE
CORPORATE OF THE CITY OF WTT,I,II STON FT DESCRIBED

ON
MAP AND PR DATE. CITY

LAURA JONES.( pp 50-115)

G. 1ST READING : INANCE 2022-704: AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS
THE CITY OF WILLISTON "WATER SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEE
ORDINANCE": ING DEFINITIONS. RULES OF CONSTRUCTION:
PROVIDING FINDINGS: PROVIDIN FOR IMPOSITION OF WATER AND

WER CAP
MONIES: PROVID

R PAYMENT
ING FOR EXEMPTIONS: PROVIDING FOR COLLECTION

F CAPACITY
DEVEI,OPER

SIZE AND US
UTION CREDIT: PROVIDING R PAYMENT AND

OF
PROVIDING FOR

TEM CAPACITY
HEARINGS: REOT]IRING ODIC REVIEW:

G EXCLUSI
PROVIDING FOR

PROCEDURES
PUBLIC HEARING: PROVIDING CONFLICT AND

SEVERABILITY: PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. INTERIM CITY

2



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLTNCIL MEETING

TERRY BARBER
SUPERVIS (pp I 16-133)

H. 1ST READING oRD INANCE 2022-705: AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR
THE ANNEXING CERTAIN PROPERTY IN THE C OF WILLISTON:
PPN\/TT]INIG THE DES (rRTPTTr)NI r)Ii TIJtr ANNEXED PRr)PFPTV.
PROVIDING THA THE ANNEXED AREA BE S TO ALL LAWS
AND REGI II,ATION AND ENTITI,ED TO ALL BENEFITS AND PRIVILEGES:
PROVIDING AN DATE. CITY PLANNER I,A JONES. hn 134-
147\

I. lST READING: OR INANCE 2022-706: AN ORDINAN OF THE CITY OF
FLORID

WILLISTON COMP
ZONING MAP

REHENSIVE PLAN PURSUANT TO A APPLICATION BY
CECII, TA FOR 3.2 +/- ACRES AS PARCEL 05099-OO1-OO

THE OFFICIAL
APPRAIS

THE LEVY CO
UNDER THE AMEND PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN

CHAPTER 163. FLORIDA STATUTES: CHANGING THE ZONING AND THE
FUTURE LANI) SE CLASSIFICATION FROM A ULTURAL TO

DUPLEX S WITHIN THE
LIMITS OF THE OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. D HEREIN:
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY: PRO ING FOR INCORPORATION ON CITY
MAPS. AND P ING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY LAURA
JONES. ( 148-171)

CLOSE C HEARING

J. DISCUSSION POSSIBLE ACTION: REPAIR CATERPILLAR SKID
EXCEED I2 J

BrsHoP.(PP 172)
K. DISCI]SSI WITH POSSIBLE ACTI : APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF SHI

MICROSOFT EX E ONLINE OIN2G USER AND FFICE 365 E3GCC
LICENSE. TNTER CITY MANAGER TERRY ROV (oo 173-175)'

L. UTION
CITY OF WII,I,IS

OF THE CITY
TON. FLORIDA. APPROVING 2023 GENERAL

AL ELECTI N OCESS AND
DATE. CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT. 176-177\

M. ON 2022-98: A OF THE CITY
CITY OF WII,I,IS . FLORIDA. ESTABLISHING A TION FOR

COUNCIL ORIZE THE P

NINETY-SIX D 36C WATER METER BOXES PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. JASON LEE. I, DEPARTMENT. (pp 178-180)

N. RESOLUTION 2 99: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF STON. FLORIDA. A ORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A
POLE TRAILER FROM RING POWER EOUIPMENT IN ORDANCE WITH
OUOTE 17 62356216: AUTHORIZING CITY COUNCIL

3



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

PRESIDENT AND CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY DOCUMENTS
NECESSARY TO SAID PI]RCHASE: A PROVIDING AN

DATE Y BOV
SUPERVISOR MICHAEL MILLER. (pp 181-187)

O. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE : REVIEW OF TERRY BOVAIRD
CONTRACT G TERRY BOVAIRD AS CITY MANAGER. COUNCIL

P

PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES
OLUTION 2022-r OF THE CITY CO

CITY OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH
TERRY BOVAIRD TO SERVE AS MANAGER OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON. FLOR IDA: AUTHORIZING THE CITY CO PRESIDENT TO
EXECUTE THE CITY OF WILLISTON CITY MANAGER AGREEMENT: AND

ING
JONES.(pp 188-197)

ITEM - 8 _ PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

UNCIL PRES

-9-ANNO

_ ADJO

NEXT SCHED COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 3. 2023. AT 6:00 P.M.

NEW LINK: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone

httos://v. rin ecentra I m/ioin/0690!797 6

Meeting lD:O69OL7976

One tap to join audio only from a smartphone:
+16504191505,, 0690179761# United States (San Mateo, CA)

Or dial:

+1 (650)4191505 United States (San Mateo, CA)

Access Code / Meeting lD: 069017976

lnternational numbers available: https://v.ringcentral.com/teleconference

YouTu be Li nk: https://www.youtube.com/channeUUCKtl 46SkcNjBS2AYgOaBsRQ

Clicking this link will enable you to see and hear the Council meeting

4



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCILMEETING

Council Meeting Procedures for members of the Public

I . All cell phones to be tumed off when entering the Council Chambers.
2. Once the audience has taken their seat and the meeting begins, there will be no talking between audience members

during the course of the Council meeting. If anyone continues to talk within the audience and is called down 3 times
during the course of the meeting, on the third time that person will be escorted out of the Council meeting;

3. The audience must be recognized by the President before being allowed to address the Council;
4. The member of the audience that is recognized will proceed to the podium, state their name for the benefit of the City

Clerk, prior to offering comments on a given matter.
5. The audience member will be limited to not more than 5 minutes to speak based on Resolution 2012-07;
6. There will be no personal attacks made by any member in the audience toward a sitting Council member and no

personal attacks made by any Council member toward a member of the audience;
7 . There will be no conversation between a member of the audience that has been recognized and any other member of the

audience when speaking while at the podium;
8. If an audience member wants to speak more than the allotted 5 minutes allowed then that person should make a request

to City Hall so that the itern may be placed on the agenda.

Minutes of the City Council meeting may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but not transcribed
verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or
arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be bome by the
requesting party.
In accordance with Section 286.0105. Florida Statutes, notice is given that ifa person wishes to appeal a decision made by the
City Council with respect to any matt€r considered at this meeting they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record ofthe proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence
upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26. Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in
this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk's office no later than 5:00 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting.

5



DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmemb er Zach Bullo ck
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2022
7:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

lnterim City Manager Terry Bovaird
City Attorney Scott Walker -absent
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Attomey Kiersten Ballou

OPENING AND PLED GE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
Opening prayer and Pledge of Allegiance to the flag, led by Mayor Goodman.

ITEM _ 1 _ ADDITIONS. DELETIONS. GES AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Interim City Manager Bovaird asked to table Item #6(8). Motion by Vice-President Robinson to
approve agenda with changes. Seconded by Councilmember Ross. Motion carried 5-0.

ITEM - 2 -MAYOR'S STUDENT OF THE MONTH: Corrine Stinson. Joyce Bullock
and Jon

,lrh

Williston Middle High School. - Mayor Goodman presented Corrine Stinson and Jon Kopecky
a Certificate of Appreciate for their hard work at school and a certificate for apizzafrom
Dominos.

ITEM_3_PUBLI PARTICIPATION - None.

ITEM-4_ ENT AGENDA _ Council President Jones asked that minutes reflect when
Councilmember Ross was not present to vote on certain resolutions. Motion by Vice-President
Robinson to approve consent agenda with changes. Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion
carried 5-0.

o Council minutes October 18.2022

-5_OLDBUS

AND BOARD
o INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD - Interim City Manager Bovaird

announced staff meeting on Wednesday at l0 a.m. to discuss Tropical Strom Nicki.
o STAFF-none.
o COUNCIL - none.

A

6



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCILMEETING

TTEM _ 6 - NEW BUSINESS -

OPEN lST PUBLIC HEARING

A. lsr READING :oRDINANCF, 2022-704 AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS
..WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM

ORDINANCE,,: PROVIDING D ONS. RULES OF CONSTRUCTION:
PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR IMPOSITION OF WATER AND
SEWER CAPACITY FEES: G FOR PAYMENT AND USE OF
MONIES: PROVIDING FOR EXF,MPTT ONS: PROVIDING FOR COLLECTION

FEES UPON CHAN
DEVELOPER CONTRIBI ITION CREI)IT: PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT AND

WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM
PROVIDING FOR REVIEW HEARIN REOUIRING PERIODIC REVIEW :

ADMINISTRATIVE
PROVIDING FOR PUBLIC PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT AND
SEVERABII,ITY: PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. INTERIM CITY

B

MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD.
Power point presentation presented by Katherine Van ZantP.E., regarding
wastewater fees. Council concern about verbiage in Section 2.01 (c) and Section 4.02
(a). Councilmember Bullock moved to table Ordinance 2022-704. Vice-President
Robinson seconded. Motion carried 5-0.
CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

OLUTION 2022-89: A RE
CITY OF WII,I,ISTON FI,ORIDA LISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR

CITY COUNCIL PRESID A
CONTRACT FOR EOIITX. INC.. TO R OVE AND REPLACE A GAS LINE

THE WAWA PROPERTY
DATE. CITY PLANNER T.AI IR A TONtrS - Tfern tabled.

C. RESOLUTION 2022-91 A RESOI, OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
FLORID THE

AGREEMENT FOR VACANT I,AND TWEEN BRANDON HERNANDEZ
OF WILLISTON FOR PROPERTY AT THE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OTITI, IN THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE
ORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL ID

EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE : AND PROVIDING AN
MANAGER BENTON S

Motion to approve Resolution 2022-91by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

D. RESOLIITION 2O22-92: A RESOLI
WILLISTON FLO

ON OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

7



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COIINCIL MEETING

SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR COI]NTRY LANE ESTATES: AUTHORIZING THE
CITY COI]NCII, SIDENT TO EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT:

G AN EFFECTIVE
This was a Quasi-judicial item. Attorney Ballou asked to remove "Authoring the
Council President to execute the Land Lease Agreement and Providing an effective
date" from item title. Swore in City Planner Jones, Terry, and Stephen McMillian.
Motion by Vice-President Robinson to approve Resolution 2022-92. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

E. RESOLTITION 2022-93: A RESOLI OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
FLORID EST

THE CITY COT]NCIL PRESIDENT AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF
OINTS AND PROVIDIN

LEE. LOGISTIC DEPARTMENT.
Motion by Councilmember Cox to approve Resolution 2022-93. Seconded by Vice-
President Robinson. Motion carried 5-0.

F. RESOLI]TION 94: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
WILLISTON FLO

FOR A ROOM IN CITY HAT,I, B CENTRAL FLORIDA COMMUNITY
AND THE CITY

SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN ATTACHED LEASE: AUTHORIZING THE

G

ENT TO EXECUTE THE
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DA INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY
BOVAIRD.
Motion by Councilmember Cox to approve Resolution 2022-94. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

ON WITH POSSIBLE
BULK PRICE WORKSHOP. CITY MANAGER TERRY

ATHEN BISHOP UTILITY
Consensus from Council to have Workshop on December at 5:00 p.m

H. POSSIBLE ACTION
22ND COUNCIL MEETING. PRESIDENT DEBRA JONES
Motion by Vice-President Robinson to cancel November 22"d Council meeting.
Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 5-0.

I. SIBLE ACTION: MAKING INTERIM
MANAGER. PERMANENT CITY ER. COUNCIL PRESIDENT DEBRA
JONES.
Council President Jones asked Interim Selina Leavy to check HR policy on hiring and
for the City Clerk to put on next agenda with Resolution and Contract.

J. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTI : MAYOR,S BUDGETiCREDIT CARD.
MAYOR CHARLES GOODMAN.
Mayor Goodman read statement to Council and public regarding the mayor's credit
card. (attached)

ITEM - 7 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none

8



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM - 8 - ANNOUNCEMENTS - nono

ITEM - 9 - ADJOURNMENT - With not further business, motion by Councilmember Bullock
to adjourn at9:26 p.m. Seconded by Vice-President Robinson. Motion carried 5-0.

9



Date: 12-08-2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022-96:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
GAINESVILLE AIRCRAFT SALES, LLC AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR
PROPERTY AT THE AIRPORT KNOUTN AS HARDSTAND 6 WITH A LEGAL
DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE AGREEMENT;
AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXDCUTE THE LAND
LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: BENTON STEGALL, AIRPORT MANAGER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION : Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2022.96 MAP

XX LEASE OTHER DOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

10



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022.96

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN
GAINESVILLE AIRCRAFT SALES, LLC AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR
PROPERTY AT THE AIRPORT KNOWN AS HARDSTAND 6 WITH A LEGAL
DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE AGREEMENT;
AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXDCUTE THE LAND
LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Gainesville Aircraft Sales, LLC has requested a land lease for land
located at the Williston Municipal Airport known as Hardstand 6; and

WHEREAS, the relevant Codes of the City of Williston, Florida allow for leases of
land at the Williston Municipal Airport under terms that comply with such codes
and other relevant state and federal laws; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Council President are appropriate parties to
execute documents related to such Land Lease Agreemen! and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
authorize the City Manager to execute this Land Lease Agreement, an unexecuted
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and any other such documents as are
required to enter into the Land Lease Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Land Lease Agreement for Land
known as Hardstand 6 between Gainesville Aircraft Sales, LLC and the City of
Williston, Florida and the appropriate City Officials are hereby authorized to execute
the Land Lease Agreement which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A".

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by an affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum present
in the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida this 8tt' day of December, 2022.

11



Attest, By the City Clerk of
the City of Williston, Florida

Latricia Wrighg City Clerk

BYTHE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF
THE CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA:

Debra fones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N, Ballou, City Attorney

12



LAND LEASE AGREEMENT
TRUCTION. NO FINAN

LESSOR:
City of Williston, Florida
P.O. Box 150
Williston, FL32696

LESSEE:
Gainesville Aircraft Sales LLC
10905 sw 27th ave
Gainesville, FL 32608

WHEREAS, the CITY OF WILLISTON, a Floridamunicipal corporation, ("the Lessor"), maintains
an airport commonly referred to as Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the said City to promote and develop the said airport; and

WHEREAS, Gainesville Aircraft Sales, LLC, ("the Lessee"), is desirous of leasing a certain parcel at
the said airport as is hereinafter described for the purpose of aircraft storage and maintenance;

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other good and
valuable considerations and the covenants, conditions and agreernents as are hereinafter set forth, the Lessor
and Lessee agree as follows:

1. PREMISES; INSPECTIONS: AS IS: The Lessor leases and Lessee does rent and hire from the
Lessor, the following described premises located in Williston, Levy County, Florida, (the "Premises"),
to-wit:

Description: (by Surveyor) - Hardstand #6, Williston Municipal Airport

A parcel of land lying in Section 14, Township 13 South, Range 18 East, Levy County, Florida, being more
particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Northeast corner of said Section 14, and run thence North B8'09'09"West, along the North
line of said Section 14 and along Taxiw?y "A", a distance of 1733.42 feet to the centerline of Taxiway "E"; thence
South 00"10'42"West, a distance of 132.84 feet; thence South 89"49'18"East, a distance of 60.00 feet to the East
maintenance line of said Taxiway "E"; thence South 00'10'42"West along said East maintenance line, a distance of
377.95 feet to the Point of Beginning of the herein described parcel; thence continue South 00'10'42"West, along
said East maintenance line, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 89"49'18"East, a distance of 210.00 feet'
thence North 00'1 0'42"East, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence North 89"49'1 8"West, a distance of 210.00 teet to
the Point of Beginning.

Containing 1 .012 acres, more or less.

It is the responsibility of the Lessee, at the Lessee's sole expense, to satisfy itself prior to the
execution of this Agreement, as to the title and condition of the Premises including, without limitation, title to
the Premises, matters of record in the Official Records, of Levy County, permitted land uses, zoning codes,
building regulations, height limitations, setbacks, applicable building codes, permits, soil conditions, and

1

13



environmental conditions. Lessor makes no warranties or representations to the Lessee, and the Lessee
agrees the Lessor has made no warranty or representation respecting the condition of the Premises, or
applicable zoning laws and regulations, or applicability of the uses contemplated by the Lessee, or
environmental conditions, or any matters which a current survey would disclose, or the applicability of any
covenants or restrictions of public record, except as otherwise expressly provided herein. Lessee further
acknowledges it has had adequate opportunity to inspect the Premises hereunder prior to entering into this
Agreement or has made adequate provision herein. Accordingly, the taking of possession of the Premises by
the Lessee shall be conclusive evidence that the Premises were in good and satisfactory condition when
possession was taken by Lessee.

2. TERM: The initial term of this Lease shall be thirty (30) years commencing on January 1,2023, and
ending at midnight, December 31,2052. Should the Lessee hold over beyond the initial term or any
renewal term without further extension of the term in accordance with the renewal terms of this lease,
then the Lessee shall become a month to month tenant in accordance with law and upon the terms and
conditions of this lease.

3. RENT: The rent for the first year of the initial term of this lease shall be $6171.58. The rent shall be paid
monthly, in advance, in the amount of $ 514.30 per month, together with all applicable sales tax. The
rent for the initial and any renewal and hold over terms shall be adjusted each year on the annual
anniversary date of the lease by multiplying the rent for the prior year by the percentage increase or
decrease in the composite Consumer Price Index for the most recent prior twelve months, as published by
the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. The rent shall be delivered by U.S. mail,
addressed to City of Williston, Post Office Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696, or hand delivered to
City Hall, 50 N.W. Main Street, Williston, Florida during regular business hours, and shall be considered
paid upon receipt by Lessor. All payments required to be made by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to the Lease
shall be deemed additional rent.

4. NOTICES: A11 notices required by law and by this Lease to be given by one party to the other shall be
in writing, and the same may be served by certified mail, retum receipt requested, to Lessor, City of
Williston at P.O. Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696-0160 and to Lessee, Gainesville Aircraft Sales,
Inc. at 10905 SW 27th Avenue, Gainesville,FL32608, or to such other address as Lessor or Lessee may
by writing to the other so designate. Notice to Lessee may also be served by personal delivery.

5 WARRANTIES OF TITLE AND OUIET POSSESSION: The Lessor covenants that Lessor is seized
of the demised premises and owner in fee simple thereof with the full right to make this Lease, subject to
all matters of record, and covenants that the Lessee upon making payments of the rents and the keeping
of the other covenants herein contained therefor shall have quiet and peaceful possession of the demised
premises during the term hereof.

6. USES ALLOWED AND PROHIBITED: The Lessee shall use the Premises only for the following
purpose: aircraft storage and maintenance. The Lessee shall not use or permit the Premises or any part of
the Premises to be used for any unauthorized or unlawful purpose, or for any pu{pose other than as set
forth above.

2

14



7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: During the term of this Lease, the Lessee shall comply with all
ordinances, statutes, laws, rules and regulations of the City of Williston, State of Florida and the U.S.
Government, breach of which shall be cause for cancellation of this Lease. The Lessee shall abide by all
applicable regulations as set forth in Chapter 12 of the City Code of Ordinances, together with any future
amendments to said ordinance. The Lessee shall at all times maintain all required licensing and permits.
The violation of any provision of the said ordinance, as evidenced by a final determination by the City's
code enforcement board or a court of law, shall be conclusively deemed a default under this lease and
shall not be subject to the notice requirements or cure provisions set forth in the default section of this
lease. The Lessee further covenants that the said premises shall not be used for any purpose which might
cause forfeiture of the Lessor's title to the said premises.

8. CONSTRUCTION: The Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, does covenant and agree with the Lessor
that it shall construct upon the said premises a building for its use, said building to consist of approved
construction that will comply with the Florida Building Code and with all code requirements of the City
of Williston; and said construction shall be built in a good and workmanlike manner by a properly
licensed Florida contractor, the construction shall be free and clear of any and all liens or encumbrances
of whatsoever kind and nature. Lessee shall provide proof of applicable builder's risk insurance coverage
during the construction period, and until a Certificate of Occupancy is issued.

9. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION: It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the
Lessee shall be responsible for any and all site preparation, clearing, paving, utilities and rernoval of
fences and reconstruction thereof if the same is necessary; that the Lessee shall also furnish to Lessor, for
its approval prior to construction, site plans, building location, architectural prints and other information
concerning and including plans for the construction.

10. COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION: The Lessee covenants and agrees that the construction of the
said building shall cornmence within sixty (60) days and be completed within 365 days thereafter. In the
event the construction is not completed as contemplated herein, and the Lessor does not find that the
Lessee has encountered a hardship, this lease shall become null and void and the rentals due shall be paid
and the rentals paid shall be forfeited. Further, the Lessor shall not be unreasonable in its determination
of Lessee's claim of a hardship.

11. SIGNS: Except with the prior written approval of Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld, Lessee shall not erect, maintain or display any signs or any advertising at or on the exterior of
the demised premises or within the dernised premises that are visible from outside such premises.

12. LESSORS RIGHT OF ENTRY: The Lessee at all times shall permit Lessor or its agents to enter into
and upon the premises and buildings for the purpose of inspecting the same.

13. PREMISES IMPROVEMENTS UPON TERMINATION: Lessee may,atits own expense and only
upon written approval by Lessor, make alterations and improvements to the Premises as necessary for the
conduct of its business. Lessee specifically agrees that any and all improvements, except signs,
equipment and trade fixtures installed, located upon the said premises shall become the property of the
Lessor upon termination of this lease.

3

15



14. RIGHT OF WAY USE: Subject to reasonable regulations imposed regarding airport access, Lessor
grants to Lessee, its ernployees, agents, suppliers, customers and invitees, a non-exclusive right during
the term of this Lease, the right of way for ingress and egress, through the nearest airport access gate to
the leasehold.

15. OTHER RIGHTS RESERVED BY LESSOR: In addition to all rights reserved by Lessor in and to
the demised premises, Lessor expressly reserves the right to further develop or improve arry area of the
airport and its industrial parks, as the Lessor deems proper, regardless of the desires and views of the
Lessee and without interference or hindrance; maintain and keep in repair, but without obligation to
Lessee, the airport and industrial parks of the airport and all publicly owned facilities of the airport; and
take any action it considers necessary to protect the aerial approaches ofthe airport against obstructions,
together with the right to prevent the Lessee from conducting any practice that may be detrimental to the
airport and industrial parks which in the opinion of the Lessor would limit the usefulness of the airport
and its industrial parks or constitute ahazard to such.

16. UTILITIES: The Lessee agrees to pay all charges for any and all utilities in or about the premises
whether the same be telephone, electricity, water, sewer, gas or the like. Lessee further agrees that if, at
any time during the term of this lease agreement, the City commences providing City utility services to
the airport property, the Lessee will purchase such utility services from the City. Lessee further agrees to
take delivery of all City of Williston utilities when each utility service is made available. At the option of
Lessee and upon Lessor's concuffence, Lessee may choose to have the Lessor provide all City utility
services to the leased premises as a part of the rent payment pursuant to paragraph 3 hereof. If Lessee
chooses this option, Lessor shall adjust each month's rent to Lessee so as to reimburse Lessor for its cost
ofproviding such City utility services, said cost to be determined as established by the City's appropriate
utility tariffs based on Lessee's monthly metered consumption.

17. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE: Lessee agrees to make, at its own cost and expense, any or all
repairs or work necessary to maintain the Prernises and Buildings located on the Premises.

18. INSURANCE
(a) Lessee agrees to obtain fire and extended coverage insurance on the building. Any insurance

coverage of property owned by Lessee is solely the responsibility of Lessee.
(b) The Lessee shall carry Commercial General Liability insurance with a combined single limit in the

minimum amount of $1,000,000 in order to secure the obligations of Lessee under the following
paragraph and cause the Lessor to be added as party insured under such policy, and to furnish the
Lessor with a certificate of such insurance, together with a receipt showing the premium has been
paid.

(c) The Lessee shall carry pollution insurance in the minimum amounts of $1,000,000, with the Lessor
listed as additional insured.

(d) At any time after occupancy of the premises by the Lessee, the Lessee agrees to allow an inspection
by the Landlord andlor the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, (the "DEP"), to
determine the extent of storage or use of hazardous materials and to determine an appropriate amount
of pollution insurance. The Lessee agrees to obtain pollution insurance, with the Lessor listed as an

4

16



additional insured parIy, in an amount as reasonably required by the Lessor within 15 days of written
notice.

(e) All policies of insurance shall contain the clause that the same shall not be canceled except and until
fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Lessor.

19. INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR: Lessee agrees to protect, defend, reimburse, indemnify and hold
the Lessor, its agents, employees and officers and each of them forever, free and harmless at all times
from and against any and all claims,liability, expenses, losses, costs, fines and damages (including
reasonable attomey fees) and causes of action of every kind and character (this is to the extent allowed by
law, and except to the extent caused by the Lessor's gross negligence or intentional misconduct) by
reason of any damage to property, or the environment (including, without limitation, any contamination
of Airport property, such as the soil or storm water, or by fuel, gas, chemicals or any Hazardous
Substances), or bodily injury (including death) incurred or sustained by atty party hereto, ffiy agent or
employee of any party hereto, or any other person whomsoever, or any governmental agency, arising out
of or incident to or in connection with the Lessee's performance under this Agreement, the Lessee's use
or occupancy of the Premises, the Lessee's acts, omissions or operations hereunder or the performance,
non-performance or purported performance of this Agreernent or any breach of the terms of this
Agreement. Lessee recognizes the broad nature of this indemnification and hold harmless clause, and
voluntarily makes this covenant and expressly acknowledges the receipt of such good and valuable
consideration provided by the Lessor in support of this indemnification in accordance with the laws of the
State of Florida. This clause shall survive the termination of this Agreement. Compliance with the
insurance requirements herein shall not relieve the Lessee of its liability or obligation to indemni$z the
Lessor as set forth in this Article. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing or within
this Agreement, the Lessor shall not relinquish or waive any of its rights as a sovereign local govemment
and the Lessor reserves all rights and defenses under applicable sovereign immunity law.

20. SUBORDINATION: This lease and all rights of Lessee under it are and shall be subject to and
subordinate to the rights of any mortgage holder now or hereafter having a security interest in the leased
premises or any other encumbrances Lessor desires to place on the property.

21. TAXES: All taxes, assessments and charges on lands or improvements and obligations upon the
demised premises shall be promptly paid by the Lessee when due. The Lessee shall have the right from
time to time to contest or protest or review by legal proceedings any such other manner as may be
provided by law such taxes or assessments imposed by govemmental authorities and to institute such
proceedings in the name of itself as well as the Lessor as it may deem necessary; provided, however, that
any expense incurred by reasons thereof shall be bome by the Lessee and such proceedings shall be
conducted free ofany expense to the Lessor.

22. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING: The Lessee shall not assign nor sublet its right, title or interest
in or to all or any portion of the Prernises or the leasehold improvanents without first obtaining the prior
written consent of the Lessor, provided, however, that such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;
and provided further that the Lessee shall remain directly and primarily liable for the performance of the
terms and conditions of this Lease; provided further that no such assignment or subletting shall be made
to any person for any purpose other than that set forth in this Lease.

5

17



23. DEFAULT; REMEDIES: The occurrence of anyone or more of the following events shall constitute a
default on the part of the Lessee: (1) the Lessee fails to pay when due any rental or any other sum of
money payable hereunder on the date due; (2) the conduct of any business or performance of any acts at
the Airport not specifically authorizedinthe Agreement; (3) the Lessee abandons, deserts or vacates the
Premises; (a) the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision, covenant or
condition of this Agreernent; or (5) the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision,
covenant or condition of any other agreement, contract or obligation with or to Lessor. Any or all of the
foregoing shall hereinafter be referred to as "Events of Default".

Upon the occurrence of any of the above Events of Default, the Lessor shall give written notice of such
default to Lessee at the address set forth under section 4, above. The effective date of notice shall be the
date that the notice is placed in the U.S. Mail or posted on the premises by Lessor. If the default is for
failure to pay rent or any other sum of money when due, then the Lessee shall have three (3) days after
the effective date ofnotice to cure. If the default is for any other Event of Default then the Lessee shall
have fifteen (15) days after the effective date of notice to cure, except that Lessee shall not be allowed an
opportunity to cure a re-occurring Event of Default of the same type which has been previously notice by
the Lessor and cured by the Lessee.

If the Lessee fails to cure the default within the time allowed, Lessor shall thereafter have the option to
exercise any remedy or right permitted by law or in equity. The Lessee shall fully reimburse and
compensate the Lessor upon demand for any costs and expenses incurred in connection with any cure,
correction or repair undertaken by Lessor, which sums shall be deemed to be additional rent hereunder.
In the event the Lessor relets the Premises, the Lessee shall pay the Lessor any deficiency between the
amount received, if any, form such reletting, and the amount of rent and other fees payable by the Lessee
hereunder, including Lessor's expenses in connection with re-entry, taking possession, repairing and
reletting.

Notwithstanding the occurence of any Event of Default, the Lessee shall remain liable to the Lessor for
all payments payable hereunder and for all preceding breaches of any covenant of this Agreement.
Furthermore, unless the Lessor elects to cancel this Agreement, the Lessee shall remain liable for and
promptly pay any and all payments accruing hereunder until such time as this Agreement has been duly
canceled. No retaking of possession of the Premises by the Lessor shall be construed as an election on its
part to terminate this Agreement, unless a written notice of such intention be given to the Lessee. No
pursuit of any remedy by Lessor shall constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any payments or other moneys
due to the Lessor hereunder, or of any damages accruing to the Lessor by reason of the violations of any
of the terms, provisions, and covenants herein contained. Lessor's acceptance of payments or other
moneys following any event of default hereunder shall not be construed as the Lessor's waiver of such
event of default unless the event of default is the delinquency in the payment of the amount accepted. No
forbearance by the Lessor of action upon any violation or breach of any of the tems, provision and
covenants herein contained shall be deemed or construed to constifute a waiver of the terms, provisions
and covenants herein contained. Forbearance by the Lessor to enforce one or more of the remedies
herein provided upon an Event of Default shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any
such remedy.

6

18



24. CONDEMNATION: In the event the entire premises hereby leased are taken in condemnation
proceedings, the Lessee may cancel the Lease; should a substantial part of said premises be so taken, the
Lessee may cancel this Lease or at its option retain the remainder of the premises, which shall be restored
to tenantable condition, then the rental shall be apportioned; the rental thereafter shall be reduced in
proportion to the amount of loss as a result of condemnation proceedings.

25. CLEANLINESS: Lessee shall at all times keep the leased premises in a reasonably neat and orderly
condition and clean and free from rubbish and dirt. Lessee will not store any unsightly materials, junk,
garbage or debris of any kind upon the said prunises and shall commit or suffer no waste of the said
demised premises or maintain any nuisance thereon.

26. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: In the event of damage to or destruction of any improvunents
which are to be erected on said real property pursuant to the terms of this Lease, during the term of said
Lease, from any cause covered by the insurance required hereunder, Lessee shall forthwith repair or
rehabilitate the same. Such damage or destruction shall in no wise annul or void this Lease.

27. LATE PAYMENT PENALTY: All lease payments that are not paid by the due date are considered
delinquent and shall be assessed a ten (10) percent penalty which shall be considered apart of the rent
and shall be due and payable with the rent payrnent.

28. OPTION TO EXTEND TERM OF LEASE: Conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all
terms and provisions of this lease during the entire term of the lease, Lessor does hereby grant to Lessee
an option to extend the lease term for four (4) additional five (5) year terms, with the rent adjusted
according to paragraph 3, and provided that the Lessee, at the least 60 days prior to the end of the then
current term, gives written notice of its intent to exercise its option. Lessee's right to renew shall be
conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms and provisions of this lease during the entire
term of the lease, and any non-compliance with any term or provision of this lease by Lessee, regardless
of whether notice was given by Lessor or whether the non-compliance was cured, shall constitute
sufficient cause by Lessor to refuse renewal of this lease.

29. BANKRUPTCY: The Lessee agrees that if Lessee is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent under the laws of
the United States or any state, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if a receiver
of the property of the Lessee is appointed and shall not be discharged within ninety days after such
appointment, then the Lessor may, atits option, declare the termination of this Lease agreement shall
forthwith be entitled to immediate possession of the Premises.

30. END OF TENANCY: The Lessee will yield up the Premises and all additions thereto (except signs,
equipment and trade fixtures installed) in as good and tenantable condition as the same are at the
beginning of Lessee's occupancy, reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualties and
condemnation appropriate by eminent domain excepted.

31. PART OF MUNICIPAL AIRPORT: It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto
that the said property is a portion of the Williston Municipal Airport and, therefore, notwithstanding

1

19



anything contained that may be or appear to the contrary, it is expressly understood and agreed that the
rights granted under this agreement are non-exclusive and the Lessor herein reseryes the right to grant
similar privileges to another Lessee or other Lessees on other parts of the airport. This Lease and all
provisions hereof are subject and subordinate to the terms and conditions of the instruments and
documents under which the Lessor acquired the subject property from the United States of America and
shall be given only such effect as will not conflict or be inconsistent with the terms and conditions
contained in the deed of said lands to the Lessor, and any existing or subsequent amendments thereto, and
are subject to any ordinances, rules or regulations which have been, or may hereafter be adopted by the
United States of America, the State of Florida, or the Lessor pertaining to the Williston Airport. These
terms and conditions include, but are not limited to, requirements that the Lessor obtain Fair market value
rent for the leased premises for the duration of the lease term.

32. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Lessee for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and
assigns, as a part ofthe consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (1) no person on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or
be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) andthat in the construction of any
improvements on, over or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the
grounds of race, color, or national original shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of,
or be otherwise subjected to discrimination, (3) that the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance with
all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, department of
transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part2l, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted
programs of the Deparlment of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
and as said Regulations may be amended. In the event ofbreach of any of the above nondiscrimination
covenants, Lessor shall have the right to terminate the Lease and to re-enter and as if said Lease had
never been made or issued. The provision shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49, Code of
Federal Regulations Part 2l are followed and completed including exercise or expiration of appeal rights.

33. AIRPORT PROTECTION: Lessor reseryes unto itself, its successors and assigns, for the use and
benefit of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the
real property hereinafter described, together with the right to cause in said airspace such noise as may be
inherent in the operation of aircraft, now known or hereafter used, for navigation of or flight in the said
airspace, and for use of said airspace for landing on, taking off from or operating on the airport. The
Lessee expressly agrees to restrict the height of structures, objects of natural growth and other
obstructions on the hereinafter described real property to such a height so as to comply with Federal
Aviation Regulations, Part 77. The Lessee expressly agrees to prevent any use of the Premises which
would interfere with or adversely affect the operation or maintenance of the airport, or otherwise
constitute an airport hazard.

34. SUBROGATION CLAUSE: The Lessor and Lessee shall waive all rights, each against the other, and
against those holding under or through the Lessor or Lessee, for damages caused by fire or other perils to
the extent covered by insurance where such damages are sustained in connection with the occupancy of
the Premises.

B

20



35. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: The Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be
brought upon, stored, used, generated, released into the environment or disposed of on, in, under or about
the airport, without the prior written consent of the Lessor. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Lessee
hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless Lessor and Lessor's Agents, and their
respective successors and assigns, from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs,
liabilities and losses (including, without limitation, loss or restriction on use of rentable space or of any
amenity of the Premises and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys'fees, consultant fees and expert
fees) which arise during or after the lease term directly or indirectly from the presence of Hazardous
Materials on, in or about the Premises which is caused or permitted by Lessee or Lessee's Agents. This
indemnification includes, without limitation, any and all costs incurred in connection with any
investigation of site conditions or any clean up remedial, removal or restoration work required by any
federal, state or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of the presence of such
Hazardous Material in, on or about the Premises or the soil or ground water on or under any building or
any portion thereof. The Lessee shall promptly notifii the Lessor of any release of Hazardous Materials
at the airport, whether caused by the Lessee or any other persons or entities.

The Lessee shall promptly notifu the Lessor of and shall promptly provide true, correct, complete and
legible copies o{ all of the following environmental items relating to any property at the airport which
may be filed or prepared by or on behalf of, or delivered to or served upon, the Lessee: reports filed
pursuant to any self-reporting requirements, reports filed pursuant to any applicable laws, all permit
applications, permits, monitoring reports, workplace exposure and community exposure wamings or
notices and all other reports, disclosures, plans, manifests or documents (even those which may be
charactenzed as confidential) relating to water discharges, air pollution, water generation or disposal,
underground storage tanks or Hazardous Materials.

The Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect, investigate, sample and/or monitor any
property at the airport, including any soil, water, groundwater or other sampling, and any other testing,
digging, drilling or analyses , at any time, to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the
requirernents of this section, or of any other law, and in connection therewith, the Lessee shall provide the
Lessor with full access to all relevant facilities, records and personnel.

As used in this section, the term "Hazardous Materials" shall mean and include any hazardous or toxic
materials, substances or wastes including (A) any materials, substances or wastes which are toxic,
ignitable, corrosive or reactive and which are regulated by any local govemmental authority, any agency
of the State of Florida or any agency of the United States Government, (B) asbestos, (C) petroleum and
petroleum-based products, (D) urea formaldehyde foam insulation, (E) polychlorinated byphenyls
("PCBs"), and (F) freon and other chlorofluorocarbons.

Prior to the execution of this Lease, Lessee shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor a Hazardous
Materials Questionnaire in the form required by Lessor. The completedHazudous Materials
Questionnaire shall be deemed incorporated into this Lease for all purposes, and Lessor shall be entitled
to rely fully on the information contained therein. On each anniversary of the commencement date of this
lease, Lessee shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor an updated Hazardous Materials
Questionnaire, in form as may be modified by Lessor from time to time.

9

21



If the Lessee or any environmental inspection discloses the existence of Hazardous Materials in, on,
under or about the Premises, the Lessee shall, at Lessor's request, immediately prepare and submit to
Lessor within thirty (30) days after such request a comprehensive plan, subject to Lessor's approval,
specifuing the actions to be taken by Lessee to retum the Premises to the condition existing prior to the
introduction of such Hazardous Materials. Upon Lessor's approval of such clean-up plan, Lessee shall, at
Lessee's sole cost and expense, without limitation on any rights and remedies of Lessor under this lease,
or applicable law, immediately implement such plan and proceed to clean up the Hazardous Materials
in accordance with all applicable laws and as required by such plan and this lease.

The provisions of this section, including, without limitation, the indemnification provisions set forth
herein, shall survive any termination of this lease.

36. STORMWATER POLLUTION: Lessee agrees to prepare and adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan that meets the requirements of federal and state law and that is approved by Lessor
Lessee agrees to provide a copy ofsaid plan to Lessor.

37. LITIGATION VENUE: The Lessor and Lessee waive the privilege of venue and agree that all litigation
between them in the State Courts shall take place in Levy County, Florida, and that all litigation between
them in the Federal Courts shall take place in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Florida.

38. BENEFIT: This lease and all of the covenants and provisions thereof shall inure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the legal representative successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

39. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; APPLICATIONS INCORPORATED: This lease represents the complete
understanding between the Parties, and any prior agreements or representations by Lessor, whether
written or verbal, are hereby superseded. No agreement to modify this lease will be effective unless in
writing and executed by the party against whom the modification is sought to be enforced. Any such
modification on the part of the Lessor shall not be effective unless considered at a public meeting and
approved by majority vote of the Williston City Council. All information provided by Lessee in the lease
application process is incorporated herein by reference. Lessee warrants that all information provided to
Lessor in the application process is truthful and accurate; a breach of this warranty shall constitute a
default of this lease, upon which the Lessor may elect to terminate this lease with no opportunity for the
Lessee to cure.

40. SECURITY DEPOSIT: Lessor acknowledges receipt of $ -0- as a security deposit for faithful
performance by Lessee of Lessee's obligations under this lease. If Lessee faithfully performs the lease
obligations and timely surrenders possession of the premises, Lessor will repay the security deposit,
without interest, within 30 days after expiration of the term. If Lessee vacates or is removed from the
premises because of Lessee's default before expiration of the term, Lessor may apply the security deposit
to all damages sustained. Any deposit balance that remains on the expiration date of the term will be paid
to Lessee within 30 days.

10

22



41. MEMORANDUM OF LAND LEASE AGREEMENT: The parties hereto agree to execute a
memorandum of this Land Lease Agreement to be recorded with the Clerk of Courts of Levy County,
Florida on or before sixty (60) days after the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in duplicate this
day of 202-

LESSEE:
Gainesville Aircraft Sales, Inc.

BY:

J ay L. Curtis, President

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BY

PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

ATTEST:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

11

23



retum to:
City Attorney
City of Williston
PO Drawer 160

Williston, FL32696
MEMORANDUM OF LAND LEASE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE entered into this - day of 2022,
by and between the City of Williston, Florida, (the "Lessor"), and Gainesville Aircraft Sales, LLC, (the

"Lessee"),
\ilITNE SSETH:

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee have entered into aLand Lease Agreement dated
2022, (the "Lease"), pursuant to which the Lessor leases to the Lessee that certain

real property herein described; and

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee desire to record certain basic terms of the Lease in the public
records of Levy County, Florida;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties do hereby confirm and set forth the following
terms of the Lease, it being acknowledged by the parties that the Lease contains additional terms not set forth
below and that the enforceability of such additional terms shall not be affected by their omission from this
Memorandum of Land Lease:

1. The Lessor has leased to the Lessee pursuant to the Lease the real property described with all
rights, privileges and easements appurtenant thereto (collectively, the "Prernises"), to wit:

Description: (by Surveyor) - Hardstand #6, Williston MunicipalAirport

A parcel of land lying in Section 14, Township 13 South, Range 1B East, Levy County, Florida,
being more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Northeast corner of said Section 14, and run thence North 88'09'09"West,
along the North line of said Section 14 and along Taxiw?y "A", a distance of 1733.42 feet to the
centerline of Taxiway "E"; thence South 00"10'42"West, a distance of 132.84 feet; thence South
89'49'18"East, a distance of 60.00 feet to the East maintenance line of said Taxiway "E"; thence
South 00'10'42"West along said East maintenance line, a distance of 377.95 feet to the Point of
Beginning of the herein described parcel; thence continue South 00"10'42"West, along said East
maintenance line, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 89'49'18"East, a distance of 210.00 feet;
thence North 00"10'42"East, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence North 89"49'18"West, a distance of
210.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 1 .012 acres, more or less.

I2

24



Unless sooner terminated as provided in the Lease, the initial term of the Lease is for thirty (30)
years, beginning on January 1,2023 and ending on December 31, 2052. The Lessee has an option
pursuant to the Lease to renew the Lease for an additional four (4) five (5) year terms.

3. The Lease allows the Lessee to construct or place leasehold improvements upon the premises,
however the Lessor's underlying fee interest shall not be subject to any construction lien related to such
improvements.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Land Lease this _ day of
2022.

LESSEE:
Gainesville Aircraft Sales, LLC.

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

By: By:
Jay Curtis, President President, City Council

STATE OF FLORIDA
COI.INTY OF LEVY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of 2022,by
the President of the City Council of the City of Williston, and

the City Clerk, on behalf of the City. They are personally known to

Notary Public

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEVY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of 2022,by
who is personally known to me and did not take an oath.

Notary Public

13

25



Date: December 612022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Discussion with Possible Action: Monterey Boats expansion.

REQUESTED BY: AIRPORT MANAGER BENTON STEGALL
PREPARED BY: AIRPORT MANAGER BENTON STEGALL

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: Monterey Boats has started to develop Section J on
attached map. The problem is it is not leased to them yet. What can be done as far as the
lease is concerned as this Section J is a smaller piece of a larger area that is within a first
right of refusal (G)

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

ATTACHMENTS: Map

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

26



A- Main Campus {25 acres}
1579 SW lgtf' 5t

B - Engineering Buifding
L8.79 SW 18s Ave

C - lsland Freight Building
1860 SW 18s Ave

D * Parking lot (4.14 acres|

E - Si6n man building
1890 SW 18s Ave

F - First ROR (5.5 acres|
Approved t0CI4

G - First ROR (11.5 acres)

H Farcel 7 ("68 Acres

l* parcelS {.68 Acresl

J * Dolly Parking Lot (1 acre)

27



Date: December 6,2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

AGENDA ITEM: REVIEW OF SEPTEMBER 2022 FINANCIAL REPORT (unaudited)

REQUESTED BY: FINANCE DIRECTOR PREPARED BY: FINANCE DIRECTOR

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: This agenda item includes the unaudited financial report

as of September 3O,2022. Also included (prior to the financial report) are PowerPoint slides

designed to provide a high-level overview of the City's current financial position.

The financial report contains the following schedules for your review

. Balance Sheet for all Funds (Page 1)

. Summary of Year-to-Date Fund Statements (Pages 2 - 15)

LEGAL: REVIEW: N/A

FISCAL IMPACTS: N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Acceptance of Financial Report

ATTACHMENTS: ! COrurnnCr RESOLUTION

couNcrL AcTroN: I nnenoveo I orsneeRovED

x OTHER

28



CITYOFWILL'STON, FL

FINANCIAL REPORT
As of September 30, 2022

Meeting Date: December 6, 2022

1

GENERAL FUND (OPERAnONS / CAP|TAL)

Overview (100% ofYoar complote)

tuil i: ia5us.AdBudgd&lldd

frl ir ili I
.n€/ Bq c,d( d64 efd

Flnancial Hiqhliqhts
> Current Year Property Taxes - 980,6 Collected.

> Notes on Depadment Spending
. P&Z / Buildins Expenses - Offset by $1 55 thousand in Permitting Revenue.
. Fire - Offset by additional billing to County ($1 6. I K).

o lhcludes $36 thousand for vehicle repairs.
. Total FY2022 Vehicle Fuel Expenses- $122 thousand
. Legal Expenses - higher than budgeted
. Library- lncludes Building l\raintenance expenses

'lii _i, iiiti i i
4\

Ym YD V.d.nc. %otAf,nurl
Kry P.tuffin€ lndidr __l44tr 8!d9.t Fav (UrF.v) Euds.t !{oq!"!

Rftnle / qhe. Sourcs

BFdturcs / (k Uses

crenlYd srylus / (odcd)

3,n9,424

3,8S,S/

(525.r63)

s&8,192

3prr,s9

3,Szm7

{s0 w)
w.ffi

st,725

97,480

s65205

{Sz 66}

o
a
o
a

rm.2%

rB 3%

zr a%

City of Willisron, Florida - FY2022 - September 30,2022

2

29



ATRPORT FUND (OPERATTONS)

Overview (100% ofYoarcomplote) frrn 3: Aryod Fund-Fund Srl.n.6

Chd 4: Rmnuoe -%of Audgd 6ll*ld

Financial Hiohliohts
> Year over year fuel sales increased by 81 % - $657 thousand.

> TimberSales -$26lhousand.

> Current ly'R collection allowance - $50 thousand.

> Airport prcject spending - $748 thousand; Other Capital - $45 thousand I;Itl:-
lrc@*xr!*

i -.d-tt- idnjadtE€el
i rj.s l

City of Williston, Florida FY2022 - September 30,2022

YD YD Vadane %ofAnnu.l
Kry P.dodrncc lndlqtor Atr.l! Budgrt F.v (UnF.vl Eudgrr P.domanR

Revenue / ODea SouceE

ExFndbEs / Olhs Useg

frnenl Year SuDlus / (Ddcil)

s2,2$,8r5

s2,2r0,073

s23,S2

5312,876

s2.288,780

s2.288,74O

So

9572,1S5

{s55 165}

s78.707

923,W

(s?59.317j

916%

s6%

137%

a
a
o
a

3

CRA FUND

Overview (100% of Year complete)

Financial Highlights
> County distribution oftax revenue received in December - $189K.

> CRAproject spending- $406.7 thousand. (Main StiArcade)

YD YD Vrdane %olhns.l
XeyP.domnc.lndlq.tor hJ! Budgct Fav{UnF.v} Budget Penomrncc

Rmnue/frersourcs $331.&8 S30,727 51.081 tW.3% O
hpetrdues/Ohsu*s 5491,110 5127,ffi5 %,8S 67.6% O
cutredYearsq'6/(Ddcn) islss.s2) S0 ist5r.3ml ila S
Avdldh R€sws S527.lS Sl8l,75l SS5,SB n.5% (l

Ciq/ of Williston, Florida FY2022 - September 30,2022

4

30



COWLINK FUND

YTD YID Va.l.hco % ofAnnu.l
_ Ae&.|. Budg.t F.v{UnFav} Budget _Pgtoqln*

Rffnue / Olher Sourc€

Erpendit!res / Olber Uss

C!fient Year Surplus / {Defcit)

Available Reseres

9.t€,098 S4t,545 54,553 111 0%

ss4,474 s41,5{5 (512,929} rsl 1%

(Sg 376) S0 {58.376} ry'a

583,882 $0 563,882 .la

0
a

Kay P..lom.nr lndl€br

FU}.ID OVERVIEW

Overview
(100% ofYear complet€l

Financial Hiqhlidhts
> Total Grant revenue - $131.7 thousand

> Balance Remaining - $64 thousand.

Ciq/ of Williston, Florida FY2022 - September 3O,2022

5

UTILITY FUND

Overview (100% of Year complete)

lttr}
lH"i
*:{
&

1315

Chd 5: Revsue - % ofBodget Coll&t€d

ffi 93% lo5% 9!{II 13%

I

uraq uda

Financial Hiqhliqhts
> lJtility Fund has a delicit of $321 thousand so far for the flscal year

tgeb*raed rOn/AheTdgc rlarge

)> All services except Gas and sewer had a positive operating income. Only elecldc and solid
waste had a positive net in@me after subtracting the allocation of the transfer to the General
Fund and CIP Fund. [See Exhibit 1 on next slide for more details]

> Billed 2nd installment of infrastructure reimbursement for gas project.

A

YD YD V.drrc. %ofbnull
KrrP.ilomeFlndlqF 

^du1F_ 
_9$!L FavlunFav) Buds.. Jodomrnc.

Revenue / trr sou,ces

Expdiues / Ons Bes

Cumd Ys Supls t {Ddcn)

6,69J74

7,015,ffi7

{92 r.393)

$,584.U1

t8m,7s

{w2 sr}
s94289

s2.?S.731

a
6
o
o

1156%

112 t%

17.3%

67 5%

$,797,7t8

$6,213,4m

(s15@)

s1,p8,5

City of Williston, Florida - FY2022 - September 30,2022

6

31



UTILITY FUND

Breakdown by Utility Service

Eldtrlc Gs Wol6
56lld
W6tle S6wer Tolol

Op6Ellng Rden0e
Sedi@ Chsrgs
Oths

4,275 2 541.7 57S.0 571.1 838.1 6.005.7

Tolll
54.0 11-1 11-1 1.3 11-1 88.6

Op€Btlng Erpsls
DeFartnot CoJts
Adninitratw All@
Depr*ialion

3,522.1

721 5
634.8 424.1 &+.2 607 4

45.4
5,752.7

363.2454 154 54

Total 3,7435 680 3 4f,9.5 55r).6 852 I S.1 ltS

OFslfuglnsm t85.6 .{11?.31 t20.o 3.t {3.?l 118.{

Non.opdating inomi {qPen!6}

Trarufo. to 6F/ CIP

0t
lml 71

0.0 o0 0.0 0.0 o2
{106.3i Q'llt (208.5) 1$000]

Tot!l (297.6)

288.0

{1ofl2)

nilt,St

l2B1 4l

ll66,8l

0.0

3.4

(208.6)

nt?,3r

{898 B}

{3CtJ}N6l lncom

4\
City of Williston, Florida - FY2022 - September 30,7Q22

7

WHAT'S NEXT

Complete lnternal Audit of G/L Accounts

Complete External Audit Workpapers

Prepare for Single Audit

Review Reserves

Record Book Entries - (i.e., Depreciation)

t\
City of Williston, Florida - FY2022 - Septembe? 30,2022

8

32



Gity of Williston

Financial Report
September 3O,2022

(unaudited)

33



Table of Contents

Page #

Balance Sheet - All Funds

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures / Expenses

General Fund

Operations

Capital lmprovement Program (ClP) .......
Airport Fund .

CRA Fund

COWLink Fund (Broadband)

Utility Fund - All Services........

Adminstration ,...

Customer Service

Electric Services

Gas Services ......
Water Services

Waste Collection

Sewer Services

Capital lmprovement Program (ClP) .......

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

I
10

11

12

13

14

15

34



Balance Sheet - All Funds

September 30,2022

General
Fund

Airport CRA
Fund

Utiliry COWL|nk
Fund

ASSETS

Petty Cash
Cash & Cash Equivalents
lnvestments
Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Doubful Accounts
Note Receivable

Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governmental Units
Prepaid Expenses
lnventory
Net Pension Assets

b 3,600 $

695,558
8,802

75,173
(1 6,33s)
66,474

Fund

100 $

(325,456)

55,293
(50,000)

761,741
'15,033

76,951

343,1 69

183,970

Fund

1,480,979
187,266

1,340,404
(58,314)

Total

$ 3,700
2,258,229

196,068
1,470,869
(124,652)

66,474

382,045
3,084,285

87,806
450,757
399,S28

$ $
63,979

240,332
47,352

198,075
2,082,213

25,420
373,806
399,928

Net Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS 1 1 527 139 1 17 7

AL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

LIABILITES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Sales Tax Payable
Payroll Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Due to other Funds
Deposits
City Hall Loan
Notes Payable
Deferred Revenue
Power Cost Adjustment - Electric

50,994
193

(30)

5,884
6,426

380,0'17

136,738 $

10

7,683
552

$ $ 216,093 $

426

763,262 $

356,352
145,496
70,692

336,1 60

1,127 .195

4,125

97.55 $

333 959

1,167 ,087
356,556
1 53,1 49
77,554
6A26

382,045
336,1 60

1,127 ,195
66,474
19,594
4,'t25

12,296

2,028.70

66,474
7,298

LIABILITIES 780 784 21 I 4 98 791

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Pension Related - Deferred lnflow

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

78

FUND BALANCES
Reserve for:

Law Enforcement
Community Redevelopment

Unreserved, Reported in:

General Fund
Special Revenue Airport
Utility Fund

Cowlink Fund

1,595

663,578

310,620

1,595

310,620

663,578
312,878

11,720,303
312,878

11,720,303

173 3'lAL FUND BALANCES 3l 11

t11

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 1,{20.953 533.662 527.139 14,772.036 63.979 17.017.769

35



General Fund (Operations) - Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

(100% Yr Complete)

Description
Annual

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

Variance o/o ol

PRIOR YEAR

Yearto Date Variance
Budget Fav (unfav) Budget Sep-21 Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Locally Levied Taxes

Public Service Taxes

Franchise Fees

lntergovernmental Revenues

Fines & Forfeitures

License & Permits

Miscellaneous

lnterest lncom'e

$ 1,351 ,940 $

390,000

92,230

598,431

25,050

104,925

39,632

10,000

$ 1,318,315 $

368,921

74,632

593,964

16,400

133,996

29,275

489

1,489,189 $

381,533

47,451

590,444

21,415

178,045

46,1 89

136

137,249

(8,467)

(44,77e)

(7,e87)

(3,63s)

73,120

6,557

(s,864)

110.2%

97.8%

51.4%

98.7%

85.5%

165.7%

116.5%

1.4%

103.1%

170,874

12,612

(27,181)

(3,520)

5,015

44,O48

16,9'l 3

(353)

AL REVENUES 717 1779

EXPENSES

Total City Council

Total Legal Services

Total City Manager

Total City Clerk

Total Administration

Total lnformation Technology

Total Purchasing

Total Planning & Zoning

Total Building Permits

Total Human Resources

Total Police Department

Total Police Communications

Total HealthiAnimal Control

Total Fire Department

Total Public Works

Total Recreation / Athletics

Total Library Department

Total Special Events

993

53,610

46,500

37,905

58,429

131,28',1

171 ,705
19,1 15

63,803

107,361

19,333

1,237 ,159
274,527

57,768

622,451

560,075

3,000

6,1 13

20,235

56,954

50,236

35,309

46,584

1 65,840

137,849

6,830

65,304

150,321

21,217

1,239,31 'l

254,977

50,1 84

720,102

594,565

1,000

8,521

19,381

(3,344)

(3,736)

2,596

11,845

(34,55e)

33,856

12,285

(1 ,501)

(42,960)

(1,884)

(2,152)

19,550

7,584

(e7,6s1)

(34,490)

2,000

(2,4o8)

854

106.2%

108.0%

93.2%

79.7%

126.3%

80.3%

35.7%

102.4%

140.0%

109.7%

100.2%

92.9%

86.9%

115.7%

106.2%

33.3%

139.4%

95.8%

75.0o/"

(10,486)

4,632

(35,309)

(46,584)

110,O21

(1 37,849)

(2,227)

(16,224)

(18,662)

(7,389)

(61,785)

(7,284)

3,663

(62,037)

(228,263),

3,587

(2,084)

(640)

927

46,468

54,868

275,861

4,603

49,080

131,659

13,828

1,177,526

247,693

53,847

658,066

366,303

4,587

6,438

18,740

96 952

361l8 31

AL EXPENDITURES 1

183 51 167 140

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ $ {10 $ 't10 nla $ r86,529 $ (186,419)

I2l

36



General Fund (ClP) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

(100% Yr Gomplete)

Description
Annual

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

Variance o/o ol

PRIOR YEAR

Yearto Date Variance
Budget Fav (unfav) Budget Sep-21 Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Grant Revenue

lnsurance Claim Reimbursement

$ 153,50s 33,585 $ (119,920)

10,529 1 0,529

21.90

nla

12.4%

60,446 $

5,241

(26,861)

5,288

$

REVENUES 645 24.60/o

183

114,870 (64.226)

EXPENDITURES

Vehicle Purchases

Equipment Purchases

54,000

152,005

50,580

4,392

3,420

147,613

93.7%

2.5%

nla

97,099

2,860

46,519

(1,532)

Renovations

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 91E 1 36.9%

8

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ (25,2731 $ (2s,273) nla $ (168) $ (2s,105)

t31

37



Airport Fund - Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

September 30,2022

('100% Yr Complete)
PRIORYEAR

Descriotion
Amended

Budqet
Year to Date

Actual
Variance

Fav {unfav)
Yo ot

Budqet
Year to Date Variance

Sep.2l Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Operating Revenue

lnterest lncome

Other Miscellaneous lncome

$ 2,272,670 $ 2,203,359 $ (69,311)

750 167 (583)

97.O"/o

22.2Yo

195.9%

1,690,486

276

117

$ 512,873

(1 0e)

AL REVENUES 97.6%2 1

262,893

1,995,887

30,000

280,376

1,884,537

(17,483)

111,350

30,000

106.7o/r

94.4%

O.0Yo

228,138

1 ,253,310

11

(52,238)

(631,227)

729360

EXPENSES

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

N

TOTAL EXPENSES 780 I 94.60/"913 1 1.481.448 {683.465)

OPERATING REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSI 68,702 68,702 n/a 227.430 (,t 58.728)

NON.OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

Capital lmprovements - (Grants)

Capital Outlay - Building/Equipment

(1 ,151 ,18e)

(15,000)

1,166,1 89

(747,62s)

(4s,160)

747,625

403,564

(30,1 60)

64.9/r

301.1%

64.1o/o

(163,642) (583,e83)

(45,1 60)

Revenue

AL NON-OPERATING REVENUES I 1

18,564 206 637

995 1

AL REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ 270,425 $ (246,883)

t41

38



CRA Fund - Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

September 30,2022

(100% Yr Complete)

Descriotion

PRIOR YEAR

Yearto Date VarianceAnnual Year to Date
Actual

Varianee
Fav (unfav)

Yo ol
Budqet Sep.21 Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Tax lncremental Revenue - City

Tax lncremental Revenue - County

lnterest lncome

Special Events

Miscellaneous lncome

$ 141,462 $

188,616

150

500

141,462 $

188,616

50

1,680

(1 00)

(s00)

1,680

100.0%

100.0%

33.5%

0.0%

nla

0.0%

0 $ 112,464 $

155,721

130

300

28,998

32,895

(7e)

(300)

1,680

AL REVENUES 727 331 1 45.6%

Other Sources

EXPENDITURES

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

Capital Outlay

396,277

68,1 32

56,1 52

552,720

67,283

16,440

406,637

750

849

39,712

1 46,083

98.8%

29.3o/o

73.6%

1.5%

48,673

28,924

71,844

(18,610)

12,484

(334,793)

26E.614 63.193

EXPENDITURES 67.60/.727 491 110

000

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ $ (159,s02) $ (1s9,302) nla $ fi9,r73 $ (278,4751

I51

39



COWLink Fund (Broadband) - Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

September 30,2022

(100% Yr Complete)

Descriotion

PRIORYEAR

Year to DateAnnual Year to Date
Actual

Variance
Fav {unfav)

o/o ot
Budqet Sep.21

Variance
Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Grant Revenue

Residential lnternet Services

Commercial lnternet Services

EXPENSES

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

$

29,639

11

24,914

16,631

1 1,999

12,754

722

(12,e16)

(3,877)

29,722

nla

(29,639)

11

48.204

76.7%

nla

$ 46,098 $ 46,098

- (2s,63s)

85,610 $ (3e,512)

85,610 (39,s12)

286

13,066

(1 1,999)

(12,468)

s 72.257 $ (63.978)REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES $ $ (8,376) s ',t7.482 nla

TOTAL REVENUES 1't1.O%41 4,553

AL EXPENSES 41 131.10/o1

161

40



Utilitv Fund (All Services) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

September 30,2022

(100% Yr Complete)

Descriotion

PRIORYEAR

Yearto Date VarianceAnnual
Budqet

Year to Date
Actual

Variance
Fav (unfav)

Yo ot
Budqet Sep-21 Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Elechic Utility

Gas Utility

Water Utility

Solid Waste lncome

Sewer Utility

lnterest lncome

Other Miscellaneous lncome

$ 3,271,028

599,750

621,984

542,823

653,1 73

1,500

107,460

$ 4,275,211 $

541,735

579,010

571,696

638,054

189

88,579

$ s,241,010 $ 1,034,202

460,597 81 ,'138

592,541 (13,532)

541,972 29,725

629,604 8,450

752 (563)

96,102 (7,523)

1,004,183

(58,015)

(42,s741

28,873

(1 5,1 1 9)

(1,31 1)

(18,881)

130.70/o

90.3%

93.1Vo

105.3%

97.7%

12.60/0

82.4%

o.o./"

107REVENUES 74 481

Use of Retained

EXPENSES

Total Administration Department

Total Customer Service Department

Total Electric Department

Total Gas Department

Total Water Department

Total Solid Waste Department

Total Sewer Collection / Treatment

41

408,570

145,451

2,784,112

735,080

731,530

548,783

235,900

127 ,271

3,819,776

741,'191

711 ,551

564,1 59

172,671

1 8,1 80

(1,035,664)

(6,111)

19,979

(1s,376)

57.7%

87.5%

137.2%

100.8%

97.3o/o

102.8%

94.9o/"

2,662,269

671,003

825,427

529,053

94,734

(127 ,271)

(1 , I 57,506)

(70,1 87)

113,875

(35,1 06)

5.562.577 1.131 ,897

330,634

TOTAL EXPENSES 117

816 91

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES $ $ (321,3s3) $ (321,3e3) nla $ (s68,234) $ 46,841

17t

41



Utility Fund (Admin) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

(100% Yr Complete)

Description

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

PRIOR YEAR

Annual
Budget

Variance
Fav (unfav)

o/o of
Budget

Year to Date
Sep-21

Variance
Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Other Miscellaneous lncome

lnterest lncome

Use of Retained Earn

$ 107,460 $
1,500

88,579 $

189

(18,881 )

(1,31 1 )

$ 96,102 $

752

82.4o/o

12.6%

0.0%

(7,523)

(563)

4

AL REVENUES 768

't5

96,854 (8.0861

EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES ,| 671 57

172 671 57.70/" 94 734

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 116,072 $ (147,1321 $ (263,204) .127% $ (233,780) $ 86,648

18l

42



Utility Fund (Customer Service) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

(100% Yr Complete)

Description

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

PRIOR YEAR

Annual
Budqet

Variance
Fav (unfav)

'lo ol
Budqet

Year to Date
Sep-21

Variance
Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Other Miscellaneous lncome

AL REVENUES n/a

nla

EXPENSES

AL EXPENSES 127 180 87.50/.1 1 1

145,451 127,271 180 87.5o/o 27,271

REVENUES OVER (UNDER} EXPENSES (145,451), (127,2711 $ 1E,1E0 8Bo/o $ $ 1127,2711

Iel

43



Utility Fund (Electric Services) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

(100% Yr Complete)

Description

September 30,2022

Year to Dale
Actual

PRIORYEAR

Annual
Budget

Variance
Fav (unfavl

Vo ol
Budget

Year to Date
Sep-2{

Variance
Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Electric Utility

Electric Utility - Power Cost Adj

New Electric Service

$ 1,448,692 $

1 ,8'13,336

4,000

3,138,557 $

1,116,891

'12,600

1,689,865

(696,445)

8,600

216.60/o

61.6%

315.0%

143.3%

$ 1,399,702 $ 1,738,855

1 ,835,950 (719,059)

940 11,660

11 130.7%REVENUES 183

Electric Overhead /

EXPENSES

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

000

474,210

2,O12,205

297.697

377,353

3,144,726

297,697

164

96,857

(1,132,521)

79.6Yo

156.3o/o

100.0%

'18

s44,669

2,052,981

264,6't9

746

(32,684)

(1,0e1,74s)

1647

TOTAL EXPENSES 112 137.2%776

078

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 486,916$ 455,436$ (3r,48r) 94% $ 578,74r $ fi23,305)

t1 0l

44



Utility Fund (Qqs Services) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

September 30,2022

(100% Yr Complete)

Annual Yearto Date
Description Budget Actual

PRIOR YEAR

Variance
Fav (unfav)

Yo ol
Budget

Year to Date
Sep-21

Variance
Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Gas Utility

Gas Meter Connection/Reconnection

New Gas Service

lnfrastructure Reimbursement

$ 550,000 $

2,000

4,000

514,369 $

1,545

300

(35,631)

(45s)

(3,700)

93.5%

77.3o/o

7.5%

58.3o/o

$ 444,153 $

1,235

2,708

70,216

310

(2,408)

750REVENUES 541 735

EXPENSES

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

43 750

263,941

364,872

106,267

225,980

408,944

37,962

(44,o72)

85.6%

112.1%

100.0%

500

192,804

383,740

(33,1 76)

(25,2O4\

81 't 38

TOTAL EXPENSES 111 1741 191

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES $ (135,330) $ (199,456) $ (64.126) 147"/o $ (2r0.407) $ r0.95r

tl 1l

45



Utility Fund (Water Services) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

(100% Yr Complete)

Description

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

PRIOR YEAR

Annual
Budget

Variance
Fav (unfav)

To of
Budget

Year to Date
Sep-21

Variance
Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Water Utility

Water Meter Connection/Reconn

New Water Service

$ 606,984 $

5,000

568,105 $

5,305

(38,879) $ 580,856 $

4,035

(12,7s2)

1,270

93.6%

106.1%

56.0%

305

AL REVENUES 621 93.1579 010

257,205

186,901

287,425

600

245,939

1 78,1 88

287,425

11,266

8,713

95.6%

95.3%

100.0%

193,034

376,904

(52,e05)

198,716

6507

EXPENSES

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

97.304EXPENSES 731 71 1

121OVER 09 $ $EXPENSES $ $ (232.886) $ r00.344

112J

46



Utility Fund (Waste Collection) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

('100% Yr Complete)

Description
Annual
Budget

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

Variance
Fav (unfav)

olo ol
Budget

PRIOR YEAR

Yearto Date Variance
Sep.21 Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Solid Waste lncome

REVENUES 57'l ,|

EXPENSES

Personal Services 5,260

571 696

4,805 455

105.3%

91.4%

102.9%

541 972 725

21.'t26 16,321

972 725

TOTAL EXPENSES 159783 I
559 354 507 927

REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ 7 $ 12.919 $ (5.3821

t13l

47



Utility Fund (Sewer Services) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

(100% Yr Complete)

Description
Annual

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

Variance Vo ot

PRIOR YEAR

Yearto Date Variance
Budget Fav (unfav) Budget Sep-21 Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Sewer Utility

Sewer Connection

$ 64'1,173 $ 634,454 $ (6,719) $ 621,204 $ 13,25099.0%

30.00/.

AL REVENUES 173 11 97.7%

EXPENSES

Sewer Gollection

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

Sewer Treatment

Personal Services

Operating Expenditures

Total Sewer Treatment

Non-Departmental

Transfer To General Fund

Transfer to Capital lmprovement Fund

Total Non-Departmental

397,554 353.660 43,894

000

1 73,683

80,o24

180,488

73,260

(6,805)

6,765

103.9%

91.5%

1 62,580

209,062

(1 7,e08)

1 35,803

Total Sewer Gollection 253,707 253,748 (40) 100.0% 37',t,642 117,894

247,922

149,632

195,01 1

158,650

52,911

(9,017)

78.7%

'106.0%

162,828

192,522

(32,1 83)

33,872

89.0% 355,350 r,690

208.612 208,61'l 100.0%

nla

185,433 (2s,178)

208,612 206,611 100.oo/" 185,433 123,1781

TOTAL EXPENSES 859.873 816,019 43,854 94.9o/o 912.425 96.406

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES $ (206,?00) $ (177,965) $ 28,735 86.1% $ (282,8211 $ 104,856

[14]

48



Utility Fund (ClP) - Summary of Revenues and Expenses

(100% Yr Complete)

Description
Annual
Budget

September 30,2022

Year to Date
Actual

Variance
Fav (unfav)

o/o oI
Budget

PRIOR YEAR

Year to Date
Sep-21

Variance
Fav (unfav)

REVENUES

Grant Revenue

Transfer From Utility Fund

$ 2,572,835

112,600

3,451,03s $ 878,200

- (1 12,600)

't34.1V,

0.o%

nla

770,534 2,680,501

TOTAL REVENUES 128.5%

Blue Rock

EXPENDITURES

Utility Master Plan

Heavy Equipmenl Purchases

Electric lmprovements

Water lmprovements

Sewer lmprovements

Drainage lmprovements

Meter Replacement Program

Fire Hydrant Safety Program

112,600 15,841 96,759

50,000

644,835

1,075,000

71 3,000

30,000

10,000

57,741

68,675

2,114,785

26,704

(7,741)

576,1 60

(1,03e,785)

686,296

30,000

10,000

14j%

nla

't155%

10.7%

'196.7%

3.7Yo

0.0%

0.O"/o

30,961

38,229

51,063

7,867

30,961

(1s,512)

(68,675)

(2,063,722)

(26,704)

7,867

85.0%745 401EXPENDITURES 128,120 (2.139.7841

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ $ 1.167,291 $ 1,167,291 nla $ 739,268 $ 443,864

l1 5l

49



December 6,2022

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Proposed Berklev Oaks Planned Development

REQUESTED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

Applicant: Covington FPC, LLC / JBPro

PUBLIC HEARING FIRST READING RZ-2022-05

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

LOCATION MAP/AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

$!v ./ ftr 5T

f

I* -i
I

Nq
a.

ffi

Eq

l.l i:

7,
al

rri C

ll r'-l n:r r'
-1

SUMMARY

The proposed Berkley Oaks Subdivision project is a rezoning application RZ-2022-05 for an
approximately 47.9 *l- acre residential property located in Williston, Florida on SW 7th just west
of Williston Middle High School. This proposed project will result in residential subdivision with
248 dwelling units-148 of which will be single-family dwelling units and 100 will be multi-
family paired housing dwelling units. The density for the proposed project will be 5.18 dwelling
units per acre. Ingress / egress is on NE 30 St and SW 7th St. (US HWY 41)

The rezoning request from R-l to PD is required for four reasons 1) the current zoning does not
allow for a mix of single and multi-family residential dwelling units, 2) the desired density is
greater than is allowed in the R-l zoning category, 2) the proposed number of units are more than
the established plat, and 4) the site standards need to be modified from the city's standards as well
as from the established plat. The Master Use Plan proposed through this application provides

t

50



December 6,2022

standards that addresses each of these reasons and, in doing so, enables the city to achieve its
planning goals.

Proposed Uses

The PD Master Use Plan exhibits identifu the layout of proposed the Berkley Oaks Subdivision
PD. The central features of the plan are 248 single- and multi- family residential units, which are
intended to be market rate housing.

1) Allowable uses in the Berkley Oaks Subdivision shall be
a. Single-Family Detached
b. Multi-Family Attached Paired Housing

2) The acreage for each of these uses is shown in the table below:

Gross Acreage of Land: Includes common lands-e.g.: stormwater, roadways, utility infrastructure.
Net Acreage of Land: Does not include common lands.

Chapter 60 - Zoning; Article XIII Planned Development (PD), states the intent of the PD district is
to permit planned developments intended to:

1. Encourage the development of planned residential development of land;
2. Encourage flexible and creative concepts of site planning;
3. Preserve the natural amenities of the land by encouraging scenic and functional open

areas;
4. Accomplish a more desirable environment than would be possible through strict

application of the minimum requirements of these land development regulations;
5. Provide for an efficient use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and streets

and thereby lowering development and housing costs; and
6. Provide a stable environmental character compatible with surrounding areas.

The PD will meet these criteria in that it will promote mixed use land development patterns which
combine single family residential and multi-family uses to achieve an attractive, well integrated,
and pedestrian and transit friendly environment.

Original concept and new concept are attached.

2

Single-Family
Detached Dwelling

148 34.52 21.53

Multi-Family Paired Housing
Dwelling Units

100 13.3 8 8.36

51



$cnoN 7 rowtrril r 13rouxr rNcr lraar
uvY couNfl Rolo^

December 6,2022

Original Concept

--<r!41fa)-----+

New Concept- Planned Development

ri

iS i,
lza l

'-i. lt3,
ii: ;'l

Ei
: qEi
o;s:
<g6itt; i,i

Rai
I FUi

rI
Iti

rilll
8r lll

Y:=: tri:5,gr'qeg*

::39tu 'g?ffi"%P

HrJ

La!;ii;il;l

ti ltt
i it

i{r,ur il Fr&s t{ (L,r,rr.t,i_Lf :laE

r-r
JI'FTO
s.ffim*ffirsiE

gBGhlfrtffis
A*tl![il1.sBffi
rm'idrrsm'cnkg*rd&

PRBJVSIABY DEIEL(FMENT PLAN
." 

AE ENGINEERNG INC
JACI''Mr' LLE, FL

BERKLEY OAKS
SUSDIVISION PD-1

3

52



December 6,2022

Sections B.4 and B.5 (page 14 of application) have been added to include sidewalk standards and
the airport noise zone.

LEGAL REVIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: The preliminary development plan proposed by this PD zoning
application meets the City's Land Development Regulations. Planning andZoning Commission
reviewed on September 27,2022 and recommended to City Council for approval. Passed First
Public Reading on October 4,2022 by City Council.

ATTACHMENTS: Application

ACTION:

APPROVED DISAPPROVED

4

53



ORDINANCE NO.7O3

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE

CITY OF WILTISTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION BY COVINGTON
FPC, lLC. FOR 47.9 +/- ACRES IDENTIFIED AS NUMEROUS PARCETS (ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT A)
ON THE OFFICIAT RECORDS OF THE LEVY COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER, UNDER THE

AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABTISHED lN CHAPTER 153, FLORIDA STATUTES; CHANGING
THE ZONING AND THE FUTURE tAND USE CLASSIFICATION FROM RESIDENTIAT TO MIXED USE

ON CERTAIN TANDS WITHIN THE CORPORATE TIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON FLORIDA,

DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING SEVERABIIITY; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION ON CITY

MAPS, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, empowers the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the City Council, to prepare, adopt, implement and
amend A Comprehensive Plan;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida, did on May 7,2002, validly
approve and adopt the City of Williston Land Development Regulations; and

WHEREAS, an application, RZ-2O22-05, for an amendment, as described below, to the
Current Zoning Map of the City of Williston Comprehensive Plan has been filed with the City;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston, designated as the
Local Planning Agency, did hold the required public hearing, with public notice having been
provided, on said applications for amendments, as described below;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston reviewed and
considered all comments received during said public hearings and the Rezoning Report
concerning said applications for amendments, as described below and recommended approval
of the above reference applications to the City Council;

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold the required public hearings, under the provisions of
the amendment procedures established in Chapters L53 and 166, Florida Statutes, on said
applications for amendments, as described below, and at said public hearing, the City Council
reviewed and considered all comments received during the public hearing, including the
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, serving also as the Local Planning
Agency.

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said applications for amendments,
as described below, to be consistent with the Future Land Use Element objectives and policies,
and those of other affected elements of the City's Comprehensive Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIT OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,

54



EXHIBIT A

A PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK

3, PAGE 8, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF COUNTY ROAD 316
(SW 12TH AVENUE) (RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES), AND LYING EAST OF U.S. HIGHWAY 41 (SW 7TH
STREET) (RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES), ALL LYING IN THE NW % OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH,

RANGE ].9 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7, SAID POINT BEING THE CENTERLINE

INTERSECTION OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 41; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7 AND THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 316, 5.87"27't4"E, A DISTANCE

OF 80.52 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH BOUNDARY AND CENTERLINE, S.02"28'55"W., A
DISTANCE OF 64.65 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 31.6;

THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, S.87"30'30'E., A DISTANCE OF 4LT.1.4 FEET TO THE

POINT OF BEGINNING. THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING
THREE COURSES: 5.87'30'54"E., A DISTANCE OF 321-.40 FEET; THENCE N.02'36'16"E., A DISTANCE OF

24.63 FEET; THENCE 5.87'27'47"E, A DISTANCEOF 172.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST BOUNDARY OF

BLOCK D, BLOCK K, BLOCK S AND ADJACENT TO PLATTED RIGHT OF WAY, PER PLAT OF AFOREMENTIONED
ROBISON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY
ROAD 316, ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY, S.OO"12'12"W., A DISTANCE OF 2579.77 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7; THEN DEPARTING SAID WEST BOUNDARY,

ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, N.88'45'40"W., A DISTANCE OF 933,59 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AFOREMENTIONED U.S. HIGHWAY 4t; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH

BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7, ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY
41, N.OO"].2'5]."E., A DISTANCE OF 20L5.27 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED AS PARCEL

D lN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 950, PAGE 18 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE

DEPARTING THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 41, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID
PARCEL D, 5.87'27't9"E., A DISTANCE OF 440.02 FEET TO THE S.E. CORNER OF SAID PARCEL D,

N.OO"O5'47"E., A DISTANCE OF 560.83 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS CONTAINING 49.41
ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

a EnEt-=ERtnE,t-E,

Legal Description

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADD

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-1.9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADD ITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADD ITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITI ON

07 -t3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTt ON
. 219 NOII'I'H NI.]WNAN S'fl{I*.'f 4"',FLOOR ..IACKSONVII.I,U, FL 32202.. PIIONII: 904-337-6324. F'AX: 904-322-8424.

ParcellD

0631900E01

0631900E02
0631900E03
0631_900E04

0631900E05
0631900E05
0631900E07
0531900E08

0631900E09
0631900E10
0631900E11
0631900E12
0631900E13
0531900E14

55



. =-ElnEEFllnE,l-E.
0531900E15
0631900E15
0631900E17
0631900E18
0531900E19
0631900E20
0631900E21
063r_900E22

0631900E23
0631900E24
0631900E2s
0631900E26
063L900E27
0631900E28
0631900E29
0631900E30
0631900E31
0531900E32
0631900F01
0531_900F14

0631900F15
0631900F15
0631_900F17

0631900F18
0631900F19
0631900F20
0631900F21
0631900F24

0631900F25
0631900F26
0631900F27
0631900F28
0531900F29
0631900F30
0631900F31_

0631900F32
0631900G14
0631900G15

0631900G16
0631900G17
0631900G18

07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADD tTt ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -I3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -73-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -73-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -73-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -73-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

. 219 NOR'fH NIiIWNAN S'fl{Ut.'f 4'" t LOOlt . JACKSONVILLE, Ft, 32202.
. l'IIONti: 904-337-6324. FAX: 904-322-8424.

56



,- =-EtnEEFlt-EntnE.
0631900G19
0631900G20
0631900c21
0631_900H01

0631_900H02

0631900H03
0631900H04
0631"900H05

0631900H05
0631900H07
0631900H08
0631900H09
0631900H10
0631900H11
0631900H12
0631900H13
0631900H14
0531900H15
0531900H16
0531900H17
0631900H18
0631_900H19

0631900H20
0631900H21
0631900H22
0531900H23

0631900H24
0631900H2s
0631900H26
0631900H27
0631900H28
0631"900H29

0631900H30
0631_900H31

0631_900H32

0631900r01
0631900r02
0631900t03
0631900t04
0631900r0s
0631900t05

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -73-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -I3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITION

07 -73-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -t3-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDITt ON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -r3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -t3-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -T3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -13-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3.T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07-13-19 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITI ON

07 -I3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

- 219 NOIT'I'H NF]WNAN S'I'RT'I.,'f 4''' IiI,OOII ".JACKSONVII,LF], ITI, 32202-. PIIONII: 904-337-6324. l'AX: 904-322-8424.

57



a EnEt-==tt-E,tnE.
0631900t07
0531900r08
0631900t09
0531900r10
0631900t11
063r_900t12

0631900t13
0631900t14
0631900t15

0631900t16
0631900t17
0631900118

0631900t19
0631900122
0631900r23
0631900r24
0631900t25
0631900t25
0631_900r27

0631900r28
0631_900r29

0631900r30
0631900t31
0631900t32
0631900J01
0531900J02
0531900J03
0631900J04

0631900J05
0531900J06
0631900J07
0531_900J08

0631900J09
0631900J10
0631900J11

0631900J12
0531900J13

0631900J14
0631900J1s
0631900J16
0631900J17

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -t3-L9 ROBTNSON'S ADDTI ON

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07.L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.I3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -13-L9 ROB| NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON',S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S AD D ITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S AD D ITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

- 219 NORTH NI,]WNAN S'IITEI;f 4"'IiLOOR - 
JACKSONVII,I,II, FI, 32202-

. l'IIONli: 904-337 -6324 . !-AX: 904-322-8424"

58



, E-Et-==FilnE=,tnE.
0631900J18
0531900J19
0631900J20
063i.900J21
0631900J22
0631900J23
o63L900J24
0631_900J25

0631900J25
063L900J27
0631900i28
0631900J29
0631900J32
0631900T01
0631900T02
0631900T03

07-r3-r9
07-L3-L9
07-13-19
07-L3-t9
07-L3-L9
07-L3-L9
07-L3-L9
07-r3-L9
07-t3-r9
07-L3-t9
07-L3-L9
07-13-19
07-L3-L9
07-L3-L9
07-I3-L9
07-r3-L9

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

ROBINSON'S ADDITION

. 219 NOI{fH NFIWNAN S'l'ltEU'f 4',"', F'LOOR . JACKSONVILI,U, Ft, 32202.
. I'I IONli: 904-337 -6324 . F-AX: 904-322-8424.

59



Berkley Oq ks Subdivision

Rezoning Applicotion

City Council 2nd Hearing
November 29,2A22

Kathie Ebaugh, AICP
Director of Planning
3530 NW 43'd Street
Gainesville, FL32606
(3s2) 37s-Seee
www.jbpro.com

JJ

'a

ro
60



J-
Table of Contents

l. Statement of Proposed Change

Concurrency lmpact Analysis.......

Comprehensive Plan Consistency

Compliance with Land Development Regulations (LDRs):...

3

4

5

6

7

Conclusions:

,.3

t3

17

26

27

28List of Attachments..........

2Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

61



iBPro
l. Statement of Proposed Change

The proposed Berkley Oaks Subdivision project is a rezoning application for an approximately

47.9 +/- acre residential property located in Williston, Florida on SW 7th just west of Williston

Middle High School about 30 miles from the Cities of Gainesville and Ocala, Maps L and 2. This

proposed project will result in residential subdivision with 248 dwelling units-148 of which will

be single-family dwelling units and 100 will be multi-family paired housing dwelling units, The

density for the proposed project will be 5.18 dwelling units per acre.

Map L:Vicinity Map: Local Area
US 27

sw 12th st
-\

SW 7th Street

Map 2: Vicinity Map: RegionalArea

Williston, FL

Proposed Property

28 Mi.l lo l-75. Amazon
llisUlbution, and nrrltrplc
olher Oisnbulion Centers

29 Min. 1. rlowntown
FL

30 Mift. to downtown
ocala. FL

3

Schml

20 Min.lo l-75

Mtn to l.lF Haalth/shonds

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

62



r-;L,
JEPTO
A. LAND USE DETERMINATION

A.7 Existing Lond Use Entitlements

The property has a Residential Future Land Use classification and a Residential Single Family (R-

1) Zoning designation, Table L and Maps 3 and 4. The Residential land use designation entitles

the development of residential dwelling units up to 12 units per acre. The R-1 Zoning designation

allows for the development of single-family dwellings at 4 dwelling units per acre.

Table 1: Future Land Use and Zoning Designations

location Jurisdictlon Future Land Use CurrentZoning
Proposed Property City of Willistsn Residenrtial {fZ du/a} R-1 {a du/a}

North Levy County Cornrnercial c-2

South Levy County l,lnban !-ow Design Residential {1du/a} R-l {1 du/a}
East City of Williston Residential{12 du/a} n-l {4 du/a}
West City of Williston Industrial I

Map 3: Vicinity Map: Future Land Use

/.:
i.-

Proposed property: Orange outline

coM-
Courty

Ul^DA.

Co{nty

l

4Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezorring Application

63



c-z
County

r-n
JEPTO
Map 4: Vincinity Map: Zoning

County

Proposed property: Red outline

ln addition to the established future land use and zoning designations, the proposed site has

development entitlements from an existing plat, Map 5. The existing plat allows for the

development of 238 single family units at a density of 4.98 units per acre.

Map 5: Existing Plat

-.--<*a---+
ago{ 7,Iotil!$i13SOU|X, tAreE t? hfl

EVYCOUW-ftOlrDA t!#:J

Note: A full scale version of the existing plat is included in the attachments

R-1

5

7

{

T.1T fjl T]

Ii.u.ftilt ll
li

eiE<gE
*3E
€EFo{0
9:
9U

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

64



r-tr.Jlllrro
A.2 Proposed Change in Land Use Entitlements

This proposed development differs from the existing land use entitlements in four ways:

1-) diversifies the types of housing to include both single- and multi-family units, 2) increases the

density to 5.18 dwelling units per acre 3) increases the number of platted lots to 248, and

4) alters the lot sizes. While the future land use designation allows for these entitlements; the
zoning designation and existing plat do not. Thus, the property will need to be rezoned and

replatted to be consistent with the Master Use Plan standards, Maps 6 and7.

Map 5: Proposed Zoning Map

County

Proposed property: Red outline

Map 7: Master Use Plan

- 
"','. 

t'
::::g:

:g +

'Ggm-

-
.FE*t ^@FItr#-{

l--- ElrarD De,B6€{T U StR n-or

FD-1

Note: A full scale Master Use Plan is included in the attachments

6Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

65



r-L.
JEPTO
A.3 Compatibility with Existing and Future Land Uses

Diversifying the existing single-family residential plat to a development with a range of housing

types is consistent with the development pattern surrounding area's diverse land uses. As shown

on Table 2 and Map 8, the proposed development is surrounded by residential neighborhoods

(yellow), commercial areas (red), industrial properties (purple), public airport and educational

facilities (blue), places of worship (grey), and agricultural lands (green).

Table 2: Existing Adjacent Land Uses

Location Existing Use

Proposed Propertv Vacant Residential Land
North Residential
South Agricultural Lands
East K-12 Educational Faci I ity
West Vacant and Active lndustrial Lands

Map 8: Vicinity Map: Existing Land Uses
tF

Proposed property: Yellow outline

These diverse land uses are connected bytwo major roadways: SW 12th Street (SR 1-21) and SW

7th Street (US 41), Map 9.

7Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

66



rII.

JEl'rO
Map 9:Vicinity Map: Roadways

Proposed property: Yellow outline

Roadways: Mustard lines

ln the future, this area is planned to become even more diverse. The city's future land use

planning standards and zoning standards, allow current uses to transition from predominantly

agricultural uses to residential, commercial, and industrial uses, Table 3 and Map 8.

Table 3: Proposed Future Land Use and Zoning

oo

Froposed Property City af Williston Residential {12 du/a} PD

North Lew Countv Cornmercial c-2

$outh Levy County Urban Lovrr Design Residential {1du/a} R-1

East City of Williston Residential{1?. du/a} R-2

West City of Williston lndustrial

ffi

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

67



rIL,Jll]rro
--rdh.il:$trr' #i''''?lffi
Map 8:Vicinity Map: Planned Future Uses

ii.

G'c*-

p*

Proposed property: Yellow outline

B. Prooosed Master

Below are the development standards for the proposed development. Based on current

conditions, it is anticipated that this development will follow all other land development codes

and standards adopted by the City of Williston or other regulatory agency.

ln order to achieve the proposed development of 248 single and multi-family homes, this zoning

application requests that the current R-L zoning be changed to PD zoning. PD zoning allows the

city to establish site-specific zoning and site planning standards through the adoption of a PD

Master Use Plan. The PD Master Use Plan proposed through this application would establish the

development standards, uses, and building standards for this project.

8.7 Proposed Uses

The PD Master Use Plan exhibits identify the layout of proposed the Berkley Oaks Subdivision PD.

The central features of the plan are 248 single- and multi- family residential units, which are

intended to be market rate housing. The following section establishes the specific land use

allowed in this plan.

81.1- Allowable uses in the Berkley Oaks Subdivision shall be

a. Single-Family Detached
b. Multi-Family Attached Paired Housing

{

I
d_i

tl
IE

$',i t!
:

l

*C

Use Plan Standards

9Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Reeoning Application

68



rIL.Jlllrro
B'J..z The acreage for each of these uses is shown in Table 4 below

Table 4: e for Uses

Gross Acreage of Land: lncludes common lands-e.g.: stormwater, roadways, utility infrastructure
Net Acreage of Land: Does not include common lands.

Flexibility in the PUD standards is necessary to be able to address unforeseeable site constraints,

environmental conditions, and market demands. As such, the PUD Zoning District may allow for
up to 20% transferability of units between single-family and multi-family.

8.2 Building Standards
The lot and building dimensions established in Table 5 shall apply

Table 5: Building Standards

B. 3 Architectu ro I Desig n Sta ndd rd s

The design of the single-family homes and multi-family attached paired housing units will be

developed consistent with the following architectural design standards. These design standards

shall be adopted as part of the land development regulations that govern this PUD Zoning District.

83.1- Two or more distinct building models shall be designed for projects with more than

fou r primary buildings.

83.2 A covered entry area shall be designed at the main entry to each building

83.3 Four architectural design features are required on facades facing public streets,

parking and common areas. Acceptable architectural design features may include

but is not limited to:

Use Units Gross Acreage of Land Net Acreage of Land

Si ngle-Fami ly Detached

Dwelling Units
148 34.52 2r.53

Multi-Family Paired Housing

Dwelling Units
100 13.38 8.36

Section
Minimum Lot Standards Maximum Building

Coverage

Setbacks Maximum
HeightSize width Depth Front Side Rear

Single-Family Detached

Dwelling Units
4,000 sq ft 40 ft 100 ft 6tr/o 20 ft 5ft 10 ft 35 ft

Multi-Family Attached

Dwelling Units
5,000 sq ft 50 ft 100 ft 6U/o 20fr 0fr 10 ft 35 ft

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezonirrg Applicalion 10

69



r-n
JEPTO

a. Articulation of building fagade;

b. Extensions to the building through covered porches, bay or box windows, and

other similar features projecting out from the faEade;

c. A horizontal change in building materials between stories of a building;

d. Variation in building materials between vertical intervals;

e. Variations in window placement;

f. Architectural features such as shutters, awnings, balconies, verandas, railings,

dormers, chimneys, decorative moldings or ornamental details; and

g. Other similar design features.

83.4 Architectural detailing, horizontal off-sets and other features shall be provided on

all sides of the building to avoid blank walls and large, monolithic masses.

83.5 Roof height, pitch, ridgelines and materials shall be varied to create visual interest

and avoid repetition.

8.4 Sidewalk Standards
B.41 A five 5 foot wide concrete sidewalk shall be reouired one side for all oublic

roadwavs internal to the development in accordance with the Citv of Williston

sidewalk standards.

84.2 Sidewalks shall be located within the public rieht-of-wav where possible. Where the

rieht-of-wav does not permit the location of a sidewalk. such sidewalk shall be

located on the propertv and recorded as a "public access easement".

8.5 Airport Noise Zone

85.1 No person shall sell. lease. or offer to sell or lease anv land within the airport noise

zone (100 CNR 85 dbA contour) unless the prospective buver or lessee has been

siven the followine notice in writing. "Noise Warning-This land lies beneath the

aircraft aoproach and departure routes for the Williston Municipal Airport and is

subiect to noise that mav be obiectionable."
B5 .2 ln con unction with the site develon ment ohase of this oroiect. the orooertv owner

wrll coordinate with the Citv of Williston an airport noise study for the development

8.6 Emergency Access Standards

Emergency access shall be provided via the ingress/egress roadways established on the Master

Use Plan. The emergency access is located on SW 7th Street (US 41) east of the proposed

development.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 11

70



--tnJEPTO
8.7 Development Stdndards

Development standards may be modified in ways consistent with the general intent and purpose

for the PD District. Asidelrom development standards established as part of sections 8.1-8.6
of this document in coniunction with the PD Master Plan found in Attachment G. the applicant is

not requesting any other modifications to the City of Williston's development standards.

C. REZONING JUSTIFICATION

The rezoning request from R-1to PD is required for four reasons 1) the current zoning does not

allow for a mix of single and multi-family residential dwelling units, 2) the desired density is

greater than is allowed in the R-L zoning category, 2) the proposed number of units are more

than the established plat, and 4) the site standards need to be modified from the city's standards

as well as from the established plat. The Master Use Plan proposed through this application
provides standards that addresses each of these reasons and, in doing so, enables the city to
achieve its planning goals.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 12

71



---JllPro
3 eoncurreney lmpact Analysis

The State of Florida growth management legislation establishes concurrency standards that

ensure local governments can adequately provide public facilities to new developments without

constraining adopted local levels of service. The City of Williston Comprehensive Plan Chapter 11

establishes a Concurrency Management System through the adoption of level of service (LOS)

standards for transportation, potable water, sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, and

recreation. The following section provides an analysis of how this proposed development will

impact these adopted levels of service standards.

A. TRANSPORTATION CONCU RRENCY

A.7 Roodways:

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for motor vehicle

transportation is a level C. Tables 6 and 7 from the Metropolitan Transportation Planning

Organization for Gainesville Urbanized Area shows that the impact the proposed maximum 248

dwelling units-148 single-family dwelling units and 100 multi-family dwelling units-will have

on motor vehicle transportation. This trip generation meets the adopted LOS for roadways.

Table 6: Roadway Concurrency Assessment -Single-Family Dwelling Units

Sou rce:

1) Metropolitan Planning Organization for Gainesville Urbanized Area
2\ ITE Trip ceneration, Manual 1Oth Edition

Roadway Segment Level of Service

7th Street (US 41lSR 45 / SR 2Tlfrom
CR 323 (CR 326) to CR 3L6 (NE 39th Street)

c

Daily Trip Generation2 Number of Units

(148 lots x 1 du= 148

lotal Development

Daily Trips Per Unit 1.48 1491Trips Per Day

AM Peak Hour 148 1L5 Trips Per Day

PM Peak Hour 1,48 154 Trips Per Day

Berl<ley Oaks SubeJivil;ion I Rezorrirre; Applicatiorr 13

,''l
... i

72



--.GJEF-rS
Table 7: Roadway Concurrency Assessment - Multi-Family Dwelling Units

Source:

3) Metropolitan Planning Organization for Gainesville Urbanized Area
4J ITE Trip Generation, Manual 10th Edition

A.2 Airport:
The proposed development is located within the glidepath of the Williston Municipal Airport,
Runway 23 as shown on Map 10. The applicant has submitted an application for a FAA 7460
review to identify and address any concerns the FAA may have with the project. The application
is attached to this submittal. Ttre applicant will also be coordinatinq with citv staff to conduct an
airport noise zone study durinq the site development phase of this project Finally. no person shall
sell. lease, or offer to sell or lease any land in this area unless the prospective buyer or lessee
has heen oiven notice of the airoort noise zone

Map 1-0: Williston MunicpalAirport Glidepath Proximity

Roadway Segment Level of Service

7th Street (US 41lSR 45 / SR 27)from
CR 323 (CR 326) to CR 316 (NE 39th Street)

c

Daily Trip Generation2 Number of Dwelling Units

(50lotsx2du=100)
fotal Development

Daily Trips Per Unit 100 715 Trips Per Day

AM Peak Hour 100 57 Trips Per Day

PM Peak Hour 100 67 Trips Per Day

( .' 1,'

Q"r"aoo*ror

hr@ Lti,'

9*6
.7

littklt y 0;rkr'; !li.tbtJivi;rorr I Rczo:rirrrt AppIicittiol i4

73



rlLJllPro
B. POTABLE WATER CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for potable water is

L75 gallons per day. Table 8 shows that the impact the proposed maximum 248 dwelling units

will have on potable water. The maximum total peak gallons per day for the entire residential

development of potable water will be 43,4OO gallons. This usage meets the adopted LOS for
portable water.

Table 8: Potable Water Concurrency Assessment

C. SANITARY SEWER CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for sanitary sewer is

1-47 gallons per day. Table 9 shows that the impact the proposed maximum 248 dwelling units

will have on sanitary sewerage. The maximum total peak gallons per day for the entire residential

development of sanitary sewage will be 36,456 gallons. This usage meets the adopted LOS for
sanitary sewer.

Table 9: Sanitary Sewer Concurrency Assessment

D. SOLID WASTE CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System statesthe adopted LOSguidelinesfor solid waste is 3.95

pounds of solid waste per capita per day. Table 1-0 shows that the impact the proposed maximum

248 dwelling units will have on solid waste. The maximum total inbound tons per person per

year for the entire residential development of sanitary sewage will be 179 tons. This usage meets

the adopted LOS for solid waste.

Potable Water Analysis Density Gallons Per Day

Residential dwelling u nits 248 units 43,400

Based off a LOS of 775 peak gallons per capital per day.

Sanitary Sewer Analysis Density Gallons Per Day

Residential dwelling units 248 units 36,456

Bosed off a LOS of 747 gallons per day for Residential Units.

Berkley Oaks Subciivision I Rezonirrg Applir:a1it..,rr 15

74



---JEI'70
Table 10: Solid Waste Concurrency Assessment

E. DRAINAGE CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS for Drainage is the Z5-year,24-
hour storm event. The lnfrastructure Element, Drainage section states that in order to
accommodate the LOS, the City shall establish the following practices through its planning and

land development practices: L) new development shall retain on-site all stormwater runoff in
amount greater than those levels existing before development, excluding single-family
dwellings, 2) no future septic tanks or individual wells will be allowed within five hundred (500)

feet of any city well, 3) no future water retention areas will be allowed within five hundred
(500) feet of any City well, and 4) the city shall ensure that following development of any tract
of land, recharge amounts shall equal those occurring prior to development. This standard will
be met in the site development phase of this project.

F. RECREATION CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for recreation is ten

(10) acres per one thousand (1,000) persons. The Parks Element section states that in order to
accommodate the LOS, the City shall implement the recreation standards through the subdivision

regulations. This standard will be met in the site development phase of this project.

G. OPEN SPACE CONCURRENCY

The Concurrency Management System states the adopted LOS guidelines for open space is ten
(10) acres of open space per one thousand (1,000) persons. The Parks Element section states that

in order to accommodate the LOS, the City shall implement the open space standards through

the land development regulations. This standard has been considered in the development of the

Master Use Plan and will be met in the site development phase of this project.

Residential dwelling units 248 units L79

Based off a LOS of 3.95 tons per year per unit for residential

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 16

75



rltr,Jltlrro
4 Comprehensive Plan Consistency

The City of Williston Comprehensive Plan, "provide(s) o guide for the future timing, location ond

intensity of various types of development, ond to provide a framework upon which local

government decisions con be bqsed." The following assessment demonstrates how development

proposed through this rezoning application achieves the goals, objectives, and policies of the

city's comprehensive plan. This assessment evaluates the extent to which the rezoning of the
property from the existing R-1 zoning designation to proposed PD supports the city's desire to,
"ensure that the character and locotion of land uses maximize the potentialfor economic benefit

and the enjoyment of natural and man-made resources by citizens, while minimizing the threat

to health, safety and welfore posed by hozords, nuisonces, incompatible land uses and

e nvi ro n m e nta I d e g rad ation."

A. FUTURE IAND USE ELEMENT

Obiective 7 By 2020, future growth and development will be directed by adopted land

development regulations into_appropriate land use areas with the availability of facilities and

services, suitable topography and soil-conditions.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this proposed rezoning

application is consistent with the city's goal of providing residential dwelling units on

the proposed development site.

Policv 7.2: All new development shall be required, through the zoning ordinance and subdivision

regulations, to provide:

a. Drainage and stormwater management.

b. Open space, through both lot coverage requirements and usable open space requirements.

c. Safe and convenient on-site traffic flow and off-street parking.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan for this new

development provides the community with adequate drainage and stormwater

management, open space, and safe traffic flow.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 1l

76



r-D,
JlfPrO
Policv 7.5: The City of Williston shall encourage to the extent possible the location of schools

based on the following criteria:

a. Proximity to residential areas, particularly for elementary schools.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: As intended by this policy, this proposed

development is located within proximity to K-12 educational programs as the city's

middle-high school is located next to the site and elementary school is within one mile.

Obiective 8: Encourage the use of innovative land development regulations which may include

provisions for planned unit developments and other mixed land use development techniques.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The use of the PD zoning category executes this
planning objective by allowing the applicant to establish land development standards

that address the unique planning demands presented by this pre-platted subdivision.

Policv 8.L The City will promote Planned Unit Development projects such as clustered single-

family, townhouse, villa and multi-family residential, commercial, professional and industrialto
allow for less costly and more efficient provision of public support services, green belts and open

space and to foster aesthetically pleasing urban/suburban development.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application incorporates a variety of different types of dwelling units as it
includes 148 single-family and 100 multi-family paired housing.

B. TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT

Obiective 7.2: By consistent implementation of Land Development Regulations as part of the
growth management process, the City of Williston will achieve safe and convenient access to and

mobility between majortrip producers and attractors, future land uses, and specialgenerators,

which could also support future increase in transit services provided within the community.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application features an integrated roadway network that links the proposed

neighborhood development to the surrounding community resources.

Policv 7.2.a: The City will control the connections and access points of driveways and roads to
roadways through its Zoning Regulations and Subdivision Regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's
land development regulations.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Applicalion 1B

77



r-t-,
JEI'rO
Policv 7.2.b: All future subdivisions will be required to install roads that meet the minimum

applicable standard specifications in the City of Williston Code of Subdivision Regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's

land development regulations.

Policv 2.1.a: All planned developments, regardless of size or location, shall provide a section line

right-of-way dedication for future road construction. This requirement may be modified or

waived in circumstances where pre-existing development or geologic features such as sinkholes

and quarries would create a non-functional road. On the existing transportation network, any

and all planned development shall be set back from the road centerline according to subdivision

regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's

land development regulations.

Policv 2.1.b: The City shall enforce the Williston Zoning Ordinance to ensure that all new

construction complies to setback regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's

land development regulations.

Policv 2.1.e: All new private roads shall be constructed to the same standards as City streets.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the roadway development standards adopted by the city's

land development regulations.

Policv 2.2.c; Through consistent application of the Land Development Regulations and as directed

by the Future Land Use Element, the City will seek to approve residential development at planned

densities as measured by block, zoning district and neighborhood levels.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application is consistent with the city's planned density and development

standards adopted by the city's land development regulations and Future Land Use

Element.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 19

78



.iBPro
Policv 2.7.d: The City of Williston shall support and strengthen the role of the Williston municipal

Airport by requiring that adjacent development be compatible with airport related activities.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application is compatible with activities located within airport zones.

Policv 2.7.e: New development shall not obstruct aircraft operations by intersecting the airport's

clear zones, approach zones, transition zones, horizontal surface, and conical surfaces.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application is consistent with the development standards established by the
FAA for areas the lie within airport zones.

Policv 2.7.f: All building regulations - floor are ratios (FAR) and height shall be promoted to
guarantee the continued efficient operation of the airport and ensure public safety.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The height standards proposed by this PD zoning

application are consistent with the development standards established by the FAA for
areas the lie within airport zones.

C. INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT

Obiective L: Provide a drainage system adequate to accommodate adopted Level of Service

standards. For the existing drainage system, stormwater quality needs to meet ambient
(surrounding) water quality conditions to protect aquifer quality. For new facilities, stormwater
quality should meet controlling federal, state and water management district standards.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for drainage are met.

Policv 2.1: New developments shall retain on-site all stormwater runoff in amounts greater than

those levels existing before development, excluding single-family dwellings.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the infrastructure drainage development standards

adopted by the city's land development regulations.

Policv 2.5: As a means of providing for the maximum recharge of the Floridan aquifer and

preventing losses of human lives and property, it shall be city policy to require onsite stormwater
retention in all new developments. To implement this policy, subdivision regulations will be

adopted as necessary, with due consideration for natural runoff conditions, intensity of

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 2Q

79



--LJEPTO
development, soils types, topography and such other factors as may be necessary to the

development of reasonable and equitable regulations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure drainage development standards

adopted by the city's land development regulations.

Policv 2.6: The City of Williston shall accomplish protection of aquifer recharge by:

a. Requiring any recharge to the aquifer will be of the same or higher quality as could occur under

natural conditions.

b. Following development of any tract of land, recharge amounts shall equal those occurring prior

to development.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure drainage development standards

adopted by the city's land development regulations.

Obiective 5: The City shall continue to operate and maintain a wastewater treatment system that
meets or exceeds all controlling standards, including adopted Level of Service.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for sanitary sewer are met.

Obiective 8: The City shall continue to operate and maintain a potable water system that meets
or exceeds all controlling standards, including adopted Level of Service.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for sanitary sewer are met.

Obiective L2: Adopt Land Development Regulations that protect the functions of natural
groundwater recharge areas and natural drainage features.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for potable water are met.

Policv 72.L: New development shall retain on-site all stormwater run-off in amounts greater than

those levels existing before development.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the
city's land development regulations.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 21

80



fJ
Policv 72.2: Zoning and subdivision regulations will regulate lot cover and structure density, plus

other improvements needed to maintain aquifer recharge.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the

city's land development regulations.

Obiective 1"2.a: All new subdivisions proposed, all zoning changes requested, and all permits or
development orders issued shall, through the adopted Land Development Regulations,

document that the activity is coordinated and consistent with either the existing or the proposed

water system. ln addition, adopted administrative procedures for the Comprehensive Plan will

require water extensions, increased capacity and proposed new facilities to be coordinated with
both the Utilities Element and the Land Use Element.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application will is consistent and coordinated with the city's planning and

development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations, Utilities
Element, and Future land Use Element.

Policv 74.2:fhe minimum Level of Service standard for solid waste collection and disposal by

Williston is one hundred percent (1OO%l of all solid waste and 3.95 pounds per capita per day,

and with disposal at the New River Regional Landfill with a design capacity of 800 tons, or L.6

million pounds, of solid waste per day (of 3L2 operating days).

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this
PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the

city's land development regulations.

Policv 77.3: The City of Williston will prohibit development from impacting natural aquifer or
groundwater characteristics, including characteristics of wetlands and floodplains, based on the

best available data.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The preliminary development plan proposed by this

PD zoning application meets the infrastructure development standards adopted by the
city's land development regulations.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application aa

81



f-,-,Jlllrro
D. CONSERVATION ELEMENT

Obiective 7: Allow development in Williston only after a thorough review of potential

environmental problems has been made, This analysis shall include physical properties of soils

and underlying rocks, soil thickness, depth to groundwater, groundwater flow characteristics,

surface water presence and danger of flooding.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this property will meet all

development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations to protect

the area soil and ground stability.

Policv 1.L: Control drainage and runoff through adopted subdivision regulations and/or the

zoning ordinances to ensure that the surface and groundwater supplies in the area are protected

from pollutants.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this property will meet all

development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations to ensure

that surface and groundwater supplies in the area are protected from pollutants.

Policv L.7: Developers, before they receive a development permit, shall prove to the City Council

that their project would not cause undue water quality or quantity problems in the city. This may

include, but not be limited to, obtaining all permits required by: Florida DEP and the Southwest

Florida Water Management District. This requirement will be incorporated into the adopted Land

Development Regu lations.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development of this property will meet all

development standards adopted by the city's land development regulations to ensure

that the proposed development will not cause undue water quality or quantity
problems.

Policv L.2: Support actions which would preserve native trees and conserve any vegetation which

is aesthetically pleasing.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: This PD rezoning application includes a site analysis

map that identifies areas suitable for tree cover.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application a.)

82



J
E. RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE ELEMENT

Policy 3.a: Policy 4 Open space, which is defined as undeveloped lands suitable for passive

recreation or conservation uses, is not a problem at this time since large amounts of private land

remain undeveloped. However, mechanisms shall be made available to maintain usable open

space in the future. An open space standard of ten (10) acres per 1,000 population is the locally

adopted policy. Mandatory dedication of open space shall be required in new subdivisions

through the subdivision and/or Land Development Regulations, and shall include the above open

space definitions and standards for all new developments and redevelopments.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's LOS standards for recreation are met.

F. CONCURRENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ELEMENT

LOS Stondords: Th roughout the various chapters of this Comprehensive Plan, various LOS have

been adopted. ln summary form, the LOS applicable in the City of Williston and against which

actions of the elected officials and proposed developments will be measured include: roads,

sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, potable water, recreation, mass transit.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: The development standards proposed by this PD

application ensures the city's adopted LOS standards are met.

Policv L7.L: Facilities and services necessary to meet the LOS standards adopted by the City of
Williston shall be in place at the time a building permit is issued; or,

a. The necessary facilities are under construction at the time a permit is issued; or,

b. The necessary facilities and services are the subject of a binding executed contract for the

construction of the facilities or the provision of services at the time the development permit is

issued; or,

c. The necessary facilities and services are guaranteed in an enforceable development

agreement. An enforceable agreement may include, but is not limited to, development

agreements pursuant to Section 'J,63.3220, Florida Statutes or an agreement or development

order issued pursuant to Chapter 380, Florida Statutes; or,

d. The necessary facilities and services are provided for pursuant to Policy 11.2, which such

alternative is available at the exclusive option of the elected officials.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: As part of the construction of this proposed

development, the applicant will ensure that required facilities and services necessary

to meet the LOS standards are in place at the time of building permit.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 24

83



J
Policv 77.3: Adequate water supplies to serve new development will be available no later than

the anticipated date of issuance of a certificate of occupancy,

a. The city shall ensure sanitary sewer, solid waste, drainage, adequate water supplies, and

potable water facilities shall be in place and available to serve new development no later no later

than the issuance by the local government of a certificate of occupancy or its functional

equivalent.

b. Prior to approval of a building permit or its functional equivalent, the local government shall

consult with the applicable water supplier to determine whether adequate water supplies to
serve the new development will be available no later than the anticipated date of issuance by

the local government of a certificate of occupancy or its functional equivalent.

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: As part of the construction of this proposed

development, the applicant will ensure that adequate water supplies necessary to meet

serve the new development are in place at the time of certificate of occupancy.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 25

84



J
5 Compliance with Land Development Regulations (LDRs):

All applicable land development regulations that govern the development of land with the PD

zoning designation will be adhered to through the site planning and development process.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 26

85



--r-,JEl'rO
6 Conclusions:
This zoning application request is consistent with and serves to implement the City of Williston

Comprehensive Plan goals, objectives and policies. The request meets the review criteria and

standards for PD rezoning applications found in the City of Williston Land Development Code,

including consistency, compatibility, similarity of development patterns in the area of the subject

property, suitability, adequacy of public services, access, and promotion of the public health,

safety, and welfare. The applicant requests approval of the application based upon the

demonstrated consistency and implementation of the applicable plan goals, objectives, and

policies as well as the conformance to all applicable provisions of the land development code.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application t7

86



J
7 List of Attachments
Attachment A: Cover Letter

Attachment B: Application

Attachment C: Property Owner Affidavit

Attachment D: Taxes and Deed

Attachment E: Legal Description and Boundary Survey

Attachment F: FAA 7460 Review Application Receipt

Attachment G: Master Use Plan Exhibits

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application 28

87



rN.
JEPTO

Attachment A:

Application Cover Letter

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

88



r-L,
JEI'rO

/-Dil}ilhftfif tt:

I *u c,r+t
btffi'Uffir6b,

August !-7, finl

lV{E- laarra Jsnes
fiornrnunity Derrcloprnent & Gl"antl M*nager
Cttf qf lt$illistofl
5[ lt{tlU ltulain Street
Willirton, FL 3268G

Rr: BerHery Oaks S,u,bdivisior Rezoning Submittal

Drar taura,

Attached is tfie reroning application fs tlte Berkley Oab $ubdiufrsion- Thb applicatbn requ€sts
the rNrf,rent ResidentiaFl {R-11 aoning dassifisirtian be changed b Phnn€d Eanelogment lFDl-

}tt!s. l{athie Ehaugh, i4lCF, Flarming Director of JSFru" udllibc art}rg as tfte ag€nt for this proiect.
We request tftat th€ city wurks with Ms- Ebaugfi as tfie pniirmary aoritirrt and represenEtilefor
thii Froiect.

The rnaterial submitEed in lupport of the appl.ication ir [ast€d belana-

1- IoniingApFlimtitrr
2" Femning f{arratlue
3- l.tlaster Llse Plan Exhibitj
4- Fropertl, Ourner Atridarrit
5- llegafl Description of Frqiect Area
6- Frosf o'f Taref and Deed
7- *pptication Fee-Check in the anxrunt of $?Itl.OB

Fhalefeel f,reeto crrntact me if you haue any c6Jesti{ilrc" Eornmrmts" or need amy additimal
infcrmatisn-

5{nerely,

Jtr

Fresident of {ovington-FPc.

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

89



rltrJlllrro

Attachment B:

Application

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

90



CITY OF WILLISTON
APPLICATION FOR
ZONING CHANGE

(Completed application will need to be receiveil by the first of the month prior to the Planning
and Zoning Commission meeting, which meets the lnst Tuesday of the month)

Applicant's Name: Covington-FPc, LLC C/O: John M. Curtis. Jr.

Applicant's Mailing Address: 13252 SW 6th Ave.

Newberry, FL 32669

Telephone Number: 3s2-281-1862

Address where change requested: SW 7th Street, just west of Williston Middle High School

Legal Owner of parcel. Covington-FPc, LLC

Tax parcel ID#: Multiple. See legal description

Legal Description of parcel: (attach exhibit if necessary)

See separate page.

Current Land U se/Zoning Map designation: Residential-1

Requested Land, lJ se/Zoning Map Designarion' Pi anned Development (PD )

Please provide the following:
1. A letter addressed to City Planner, requesting a zoning change.
2. Proof of identification: Copy of tax 'rleed. "
3. Surveyofland.

REZONING FEES (Make checks payable to the City of Williston, PO Drawer 160, Williston,
FL 32696)z

a. Rezoning without land use map amendment $ 720.00
b. Rezoning and small scale land use map amendment $ 720.00
c. Rezoning and large scale land use map amendment $2'500.00

Application will be consid,ered. incomplete unless all the above is completed and provided.

Aug. 1

John M ,Jr
Pres. of , LLC. a Florida

limited liability company
PZtOO5

Date

6 2022

91



r-tr.
JEI'rO

Attachment C:

Property Owner Affidavit

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

92



IENZ H. GEull
tlotary Pudic, Sht€ ol Florida

Commlssionf HH 172517

My omm. exp{ret SePt 0, 2025'ffi

PROPERTY OWNERS' AFFIDAVIT

Covinoton-FPC LLC Berkelev Oaks Subdivision

Owner

NIA

Application No.

Additional Owners

John Curtis, President

Appointed Agent(s)

Multiple: See Boundarv Survev

ParcelNumbe(s)

Rezoninq from Residential-1 (R-1) to Planned Devel (PD)

Type of Request

I (we), the prope$ owne(s) of the subject property, being duly sworn, depose and say the following:

1. Thai I am (we are) the owne(s) and record tifle holde(s) of the property described in the attached legal description;

2. That this property constitutes the property for which the above noted land use request is being made to the Alachua County

Board of CountY Commissioners;

3. That I (we), the undersigned, have appointed, and do appoint, the above noted person(s) as my (ou0 agent(s) to execute any

agreement(s), and othei documents necessary to effectuate such agreement(s) in the process of pursuing the aforementioned

land use request;

4. That this affidavit has been executed to induce the Alachua county Board of county commissioners to consider and act on

the subject request;

5. That I the undersigned authority, hereby certify that the foregoing statements are true and correct'

STATE OF FLORIDA SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME

fi i,*t hrr,utf THIS KiI\ DAY OF 20aJ-

WHO IS/ARE PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR HASIHAVE PRODUCED AS IDENTIFICATION

oF IDENTIFICATION)

Notary Public, Commission ruo. il H l? .x-5 \ l-
(Name of Notary typed, printed, or stamped)

93



J

Attachment D:

Tax Record and Deed

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

94



EEIEI, T'ICEI,g IANGfTnI)
RSIL ES?ATE

txvY cq,ltTY

T*X DISISICI: tll
IIXIEIX VAII'E:}!isEss, t AllE: 250

oF cg couMlsslollEAs

. !{olilE t50

98

scxtool. scEooL - sterE
sct{ooL - rocat
sct{ocl,-BAslc DIsc

I[ATE[, SIfiI*TD
eITt cIrY oF !iIL],ISIOI{
EXEI'IPTtog:NO$E

1 .5000
- ?{80
_ ?53S

6 -?S00

41. 87850

250
?50
z5a
250
2SO

4
4
4
4
4

0
o
0

0

19 "41
6 "57
3.t8
1 .0€

2S.69

2SO
?50
3Sg
250
350

[or.r ]n \tAr.oRE!{
9S

o

PNOPERTY:
A'DR:

cc[',BIl.tED TAXES e TSSESS],IENIS TOTAL:
D?-13-19 ROBII-SON'S ADDrT:oi{
BT'CI( G IOT 15 OR EooK 1359 PAGE
1:4

- ISSOED rcR 125 - 
g6 cRoss Ttx 92

RE]A.I EssATE
I.4HGEORD

4,250 INT- 3
4,250 SA.:.E gt

AE['. EEE
INT. AIX'
TNt-SAIJ

tssES$arT
TN:IqBI,E

2 _'t9
4.?9

10_00
9-00

10.00

06319-00C-15 eozt-
COI'IIIGTON EFC I,',C
1000 tdt 1t2FI rER
G}INE5TTII,I,E, FL 32 60 E

0?-13-1 9 togINSoN's ADD:TI$I
BIOCK G LgT 15 OR BOOX I,3S9 PAGE
1?4

"CER,IIEICA3E HAS BEEH ISSI'3D*'
OS / 31 / 22 CERT I{O : 2922-00s01??6-00
999-3021-0003269 - 9001

95



INSTR *
Rec: $44
MB

602673, OR BK 1359 Page L24, Recorded O6/29/2OL5 at 04:2L P&|,
00 Deed Doc:$731.50 Danny ,J. Shipp, LE\ff COUNTY CLERK Deputy CJ-erk

Prepgred by and return to:
Lizete Raiford

Communlty Title, LLC
175 NW l38th Ter., Ste. t00
Newberry, FL 32669
352-33r-0817
File Number: CT-t5-t 165

[Space Above This Line For Recording

Special Warranty Deed
This Special Warranty Deed made this 25th day of June,2015 between US Hwy 41 & NE 30 Street, LLC,
a dissolved Florida Limited Liability Company whose post office address is 6100 Hollywood Blvd #305'
Hollywood, FL 33024, grantor, and Covington-FPC, LLC whose post office address is 1000 NW tl2th Ter,
Gainesville, FL 32606, grantee:

(Whenever used herein the terms grantor and grantee include all the. parties to this instrument and the heirs, legal representatives, and assigns of individuals,
and the successors and assigns ofcorporations, trusts and trustees)

Witnesseth, that said grantor, for and in consideration of the sum TEN AND NO/l00 DOLLARS ($10.00) and other good
and valuable considerations to said grantor in hand paid by said grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, has
granted, bargained, and sold to the said grantee, and grantee's heirs and assigns forever, the foltowing dsscribed land, situate,
lying and being in Levy County, Florida, to-wit:

See Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein.

Subject to taxes for 2015 and subsequent years; covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements,
reservations and limitations of record, if any.

Parcel ldentification Number: 06319-00t-000,0631900U16,0631900V30,0631900U09,0631900V31' 0631900U08'
0631900V07, 0631900Ut 5, 0631900U14, 0631900Ut3, 0631900Ut t, 0631900U17, 0631900V05, 0631900V06,063t9-
00U00, 0631900U 1 2 and 0631 900V04

Together with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining.

To Have and to Hold, the same in fee simple forever.

And the grantor hereby covenants with said grantee that the grantor is lawfully seized of said land in fee simple; that the
grantor has good right and lawful authority to sell and convey said land; that the grantor hereby fully warrants the title to said
land and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through or under grantors.

o
4'l'od
ltt,o

r

DoubleTlmco

96



OR BK 1359 PG L25

ln wtnorr whoroof, tnntor hlr hdrunao Fr E.ntodr hrftr md !..r fiG dry md yc., fi,lr rbovc *,inon.

Slgnld, rarls{ rd dallvorcd in our prnne:

US 4l &NBtOStrlt, .dltlolsdFleldr

MrnighS

8y:

q

SlltcofFlorldr /)
cornry oF;ir,tlur /)a/U,'.4U''(

bcfon mc lhh
$lwY ill

p3rondly kmwn or [ ]

P.ttrOtFil' Vl6
dl$olvod Flqldt

Prql&il of Clry
LIltrIld Ll$llltt

20rJ b
LLC, r

licrmr ld.ndflqtloll.

Printcd Nsnc:

My Commi$lon Erpll€tl /- )t- ac't"l

Compory on

tNotl'y 8!!ll

+
cttittEt

tlorrry put{lc -tn otCoilitrlhill it
lrt Comt. to!lr Jrn ll.

se/dr,/ffir,'tC-Pqtz

,'t?i:

$^.*

Tu
-oo| 

ocurrrr.t'P

97



oR BK 1359 PG t26

Exhibit A

A portion of ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON as per plat thereof recorded ln Plat Book 3, Page 8, of the
Public Records of Levy County, Florida, said parcel includes that portion of Lots 2 through l7 of Block D lying west
of the East line of lands described as PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO.2 ln O.R. Book 849, Page 317, Lots I through
32 of Block E, Lot I and Lots l4 through 32 of Block F, Lots l4 through 21 of Block C, Lots I through 32 of Block H,
Lots 2 through 32 of Block I, Lots I through 32 of Block J, that portion of Lots 2 through t7 of Block K lying West of
the East line of lands described as PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO.2 in O.R. Book 849, Page 317, that portion of
Lots 2 through l8 of Block S, lying West of the East line of lands described as PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO, 2 in
O.R. Book 849, Page 317, Lots I through 34 of Block T, Lots t through 34 of Block U, Lots I through 34 of Block V,
that part of N.E. lst Street lying South of Lot l3 Block F and Lot 22 Block G, N.E. 2nd Street, N,E. 3rd Street, that
part of N.E. 4th Avenue lying within the boundary of those lands described as PARCEL NO. t snd PARCEL NO. 2 in
O.R. Book 849, Page 317, that part of N.E. sth and 6th Avenue lying West of the East line of lands described as
PARCEL NO. I and PARCEL NO. 2 in O.R. Book 849, Page 317. SUBJECT TO the road dedication as stated on the
plat of aforesald ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WtLLISTON and LESS the right-of-way for U.S. Highway No. 4l
and Levy County Road No. C-316, the same being more particularly described by the following:

PARCEL NO. I

THAT PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 8,
oF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLOR|DA, DESCRTBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST,
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER BEING A FOUND NAIL AND CAP AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF
COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 4l; THENCE DEPART SAID CENTERLINE OF SAID SECTION 7, S
87030'29'' E, 5O.OO FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7, ALSO BETNG THE
CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 316, TO AN INTERSECTTON WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF
SAID U.S. HIGHWAY 4l; THENCE S. 00013'45" W., 40.00 FEET TO A POINT AT THE RIGHT-OF-WAY
INTERSECTION OF COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY NO. 4I, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF
BEGINNING FOR THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL:

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING THENCE S. OOOI3I45'' W.,933.50 FEET ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF.
WAY oF SAID U.S. HIGHWAY 4l TO A sET REBAR & cAP (2572); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-
WAY S. 87030'29" E.' 934.00 FEET TO A SET REBAR & CAP (2372\; THENCE N. 00013'45" E. 933.50 FEET, TO
A SET REBAR & CAP (2s72) ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 316; THENCE N.
87030129'' W.,934.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

PARCEL NO.2

THAT PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 8,
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP t3 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST,
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER BEING A FOUND NAIL AND CAP AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION OF
COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 4l; THENCE DEPART SAID CENTERLTNE INTERSECTION S.
87030'29" 8., 50.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7, ALSO BEtNc THE
CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 316, TO AN INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY RIGHT.OF-WAY
SAID U.S. HIGHWAY 4l; THENCE S. 00013'45" W., 40.00 FEET TO A POINT AT THE RIGHT-OF-WAY
INTERSECTION OF COUNTY ROAD 3t6 AND U.S. HIGHWAY NO. 4l; THENCE CONTINUE S.00ot3'44" W.,
933.50 FEET ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF.WAY OF SAID U.S. HICHWAY 4I TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE DEPART FROM SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY S. 8?o30'29r' 8.,934.00 FEET; THENCE S.
OOOIS'45'' W., 1649.54 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE NORTHWEST I/4 OF
SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP t3 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST; THENCE N. 88031'58" W., 933.49 FEET ALONG SAID

File Nunrber: CT-l 3-l 165 DoublcTlmco

98



OR BK 1359 PG L27

Exhibit A
(Continued)

BOUNDARY LINE TO A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID U.S. HIGHWAY NO.4l; THENCE
N. 00ot3'45" 8., t666.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNTNG.

LESS AND EXCEPT:

PARCEL C:

A PARCEL OF LAND IN LOTS I AND 2, BLOCK ''E'" N.E,2ND STREET, AND IN LOTS I AND 2, BLC'CK ''F'"
N.E. IST STREET, AND IN LOTS I THROUGH il, BLOCK rt6tr, OF ROBINSON'S ADDIT|ON TO WILLISTON,
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 8, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND
BEING IN SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

CoMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTTON 7, TOWNSHIP t3 SOUTH, RANGE t9 EAST,
LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF STATE ROAD NO.
45 AND COUNTY ROAD NO. 316; THENCE SOUTH 87030'20" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
SECTION 7, A DISTANCE OF 15.252 METERS (50.04 FEET); THENCE SOUTH O0ol2'42" WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 12.242 METERS (40.03 FEET) TO THE INTERSECTTON OF THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF
sAtD couNTY ROAD NO. 316 (A 24.384 METER (80.00 FOOT) RTGHT OF WAy), AND THE EASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID STATE ROAD NO. 4s (A 30.480 METER (100.00 FOOT) RtcHT OF WAy),
AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH OOOI2,42', WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 140.505 METERS (460.97 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 89047'18" EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 3.000 METERS (9.94 FEET); THENCE NORTH 00012'42" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 127.383
METERS (417.92 FEETX THENCE NORTH 46o2t',tt" EAST, A DTSTANCE OF 7.6t7 METERS (24.99 FEET);
THENCE SOUTH 87030'20" EAST' A DISTANCE OF 223.292 METERS (732.58 FEET); THENCE NORTH
o2o29',40" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 7.500 METERS (24.6t FEET) TO A pOtNT ON THE SAID SOUTHERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 316; THENCE NORTH t7o30r20rr WEST ALONG SAID
SoUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DTSTANCE OF 232.090 METERS (76t.45 FEET) TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING,

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

PARCEL D:

A PARCEL OF LAND BEINC A PORTTON OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO W|LLISTON, FLORIDA, AS pER
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 8 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY,
FLORIDA, LOCATED IN NORTHWEST QUARTER OF NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP
I3 SOUTH, RANGE I9 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

CoMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTTON 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE t9 EAST,
LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES,3T'43" EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF
SAID SECTTON 7' A DISTANCE OF 80.49 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES,22'l7N WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 64.6I FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF.WAY LINE OF LEVY COUNTY ROAD NO. C.3I6 AS
DESCRIBED lN O.R. BOOK 637, PAGE 765 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES,
37143]I WEST, ALONC SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 4II.I2 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT
2, BLOCK F OF ROBINSON'S ADDITTON TO WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED
IN PLAT BOOK 3' PAGE 8 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE SOUTH 00
DEGREES, 03'53'' WEST, A DISTANCE OF 560.54 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 13, BLOCK
F OF SAID ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, FLORTDA; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES, 36'57"
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 439.27 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 13, BLOCK G OF SAID
ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES,05'29" EAST, ALONC
THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NO.45 (U.S. HtcHWAy NO. 4t), A DTSTANCE OF t24.09

File Number: CT-15-l165 DoublcTlmm

99



OR BK 1359 PG L2A

Exhibit A
(Continued)

FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES, 54'31" EAST, ALONC THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SAID STATE ROAD
NO. 45 AS DESCRTBED lN O.R. BOOK 637, PAGE 765, A DISTANCE OF 9.84 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00
DEGREES, 05'2911 EAST, ALONG SAID RTGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 417.92 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 46 DEGREES, 13'58" EAST, ALONG SAID RTGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DTSTANCE OF 24.99 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lots 20 and 21, Block I, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as

recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 22 and 23, Block F, of ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the mop or plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, ofthe Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 30 and 31, Block T, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 12 and t3, Block T, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded ln Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, ofthe Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Lots 30 and 31, Block J, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as
recorded in Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, ofthe Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lots 8, 9, 10, I l, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16,17,20,21,22,23,24,25,26,21,28 and 29 of Block U, and Lots l, 2,3,4,5, 6, 7,30,
31, 32 and 34 of Block V of ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the Plat thereof as recorded in
Plat Book 3, Page (s) 8, of the Public Records of LEVY, County, Florida,

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lot 10, Block U, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded in
Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

AND, LESS AND EXCEPT:

Lot 12' Block U, ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded in
Plat Book 3, Page(s) 8, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

File Number: CT-t5-l 165 DoubloTlmro

100



l-trJllPrO

Attachment E:

Legal Description and Boundary Survey

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

101



EXHIBIT A

A PORTION OF ROBINSON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK

3, PAGE 8, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF COUNTY ROAD 315
(sw 12TH AVENUE) (RTGHT OF WAY WTDTH VARTES), AND LyrNG EAST OF U.S. HtGHWAy 41 (SW 7TH

STREET) (RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES), ALL LYING IN THE NW % OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH,

RANGE ].9 EAST, LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 7, SAID POINT BEING THE CENTERLINE

INTERSECTION OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 316 AND U.S. HIGHWAY 41; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH

BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 7 AND THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD 31.6, 5.87"27''J.4"E, A DISTANCE

OF 80.52 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH BOUNDARY AND CENTERLINE, S.02"28'55"W., A
DISTANCE OF 64.65 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID COUNTY ROAD 316;
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, S.87'30'30"E., A DISTANCE OF 4I1.:J.4 FEET TO THE

POINT OF BEGINNING. THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING
THREE COURSES: 5.87"30'54"E., A DISTANCE OF 32L.40 FEET; THENCE N.02"36'16"E., A DISTANCE OF

24.63 FEEf ; THENCE 5.87"27'47"E, A DISTANCEOF 172.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST BOUNDARY OF

BLOCK D, BLOCK K, BLOCK S AND ADJACENT TO PLATTED RIGHT OF WAY, PER PLAT OF AFOREMENTIONED
ROBISON'S ADDITION TO WILLISTON; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY

ROAD 31.6, ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY, S.OO'12'].2"W., A DISTANCE OF 2579.77 FEET TO A POINT ON

THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7; THEN DEPARTING SAID WEST BOUNDARY,
ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, N.88'45'40"W., A DISTANCE OF 933.69 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AFOREMENTIONED U.S. HIGHWAY 4t; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTH

BOUNDARY OF THE N.W. % OF SAID SECTION 7, ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY
41, N.OO'12'51"E., A DISTANCE OF 2015.27 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED AS PARCEL

D lN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 960, PAGE 18 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE

DEPARTING THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 41, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID

PARCEL D, 5.87"27'L9'E., A DISTANCE OF 440.02 FEET TO THE S.E. CORNER OF SAID PARCEL D,

N.OO"O5'47"E., A DISTANCE OF 560.83 FEETTO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS CONTAINING 49.41
ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

/ E-EtnEEFll-Ent-E.

Legal Description

07 -13-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADD

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -T3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07.I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSO N'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON
- 219 NOITTH NIIWNAN S'fRIIII'4"'ITI,OOR -.JACKSONVII,I,E, I.], 32202-

. l'I IONti: 904-337 -6324 . EA,X: 90 4-322-8 424.

Parcel lD

0631900E01
063r_900E02

0631_900E03

0631900E04
0631900E0s
0631900E06
0631900E07
0531900E08

0631900E09
0631900E10
0631900E11
0631900E12
0631900E13
0631900E14

102



,- =-Elr'lEEFll-E,l-E.
0531900E15
0631900E16
0631900E17
0631900E1_8

0631900E19
0531900E20
0631900E21_

0631900E22
063r.900E23
0631900E24
0631900E2s
0531900E26

0631900E27
0631900E28
0631900E29
0631900E30
0631900E31
0631900E32
0631900F01
0631900F14
0631,900F15

0631900F16
0631900F17
0631900F18
0631900F19
0631900F20
0631900F21
0631900F24
0631900F25
0631900F26
063L900F27
0631900F28
0631900F29
0631900F30
0631900F31
0631900F32
0631900G14
0631900G15
0631900G16
0631900G17
0631900G18

07 -13-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADD ITI ON

07 -L3-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3.T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-79 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3.19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

. 219 NOIiTH NIIWNAN S'fRIiE f 4','" FLOOIi ".IACKSONVILLE, IrL 32202.
. I'I IONli: 90 4-337 -6324 . EdtX: 90 4-322-8424.

103



, EnElnE=Fltl.]Enlr'lE.
0631900G19
0531900G20
0631900G21
0631900H01
0631900H02
0631900H03
0631900H04
0531900H05
0631900H06

0631900H07
0631900H08
0631900H09
0631900H10
0631900H11
0631900H12
0631900H13
0531900H14
0631900H15
0631900H16
0631900H17
0631_900H18

0631900H1"9

0631900H20
0631900H21
0631900H22
0631900H23
0631900H24
0631900H25

0631900H26
063L900H27
0631900H28
0631900H29
0631900H30
0531900H31
0531900H32

0631900r01
0631900r02
0631900r03
0631900t04
0631900r05
0631900r06

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBINSON'S AD DITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -t3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S AD DITI ON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBINSON'S ADDITION

07-13-L9 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON',S ADDtTtON

07 -13-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADD ITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S AD D ITI ON

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -13-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07.T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -13-19 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -I3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

. 219 NOI{|H NI'WNAN S'fltllti,'f 4"'FLOOR . JACKSONVILL!], FL 32202"
. PIIONII: 904-337-6324. F-AX: 904-322-8424.

104



/ EnEln==Fllr'lE,lnE.
0531900t07
0631900t08
0631900r09
0631900t10
053r-900t11
0631900t12
0631900t13
0631900t14
0631900r1s
0631900r16
0631900t17
0631900t18
0631900t19
o63L900122
0631900t23
0631900r24
0631900r2s
0631900r26
0631900t27
0631900t28
0531900t29
0631900t30

0631900r31
0631900t32
0631900J01
0631900J02
0631900J03
0631900J04
0631900J05
0631900J06
0631_900i07

0631900J08
0631_900J09

0631_900J10

0631900J11
0631900J12
0631900J13

0631900J14
0631900J15
0631900J16
0631900J17

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON',S ADDtTtON

07 -13-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADD ITI ON

07 -L3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3.L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTION

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -t3-79 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -13-L9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTt ON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07.L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-t9 ROBt NSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -T3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07 -L3-19 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07-13-19 ROBTNSON'S ADDtTtON

07-13-L9 ROBINSON'S ADDtTtON

07 -L3.T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-L9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITION

07 -L3-T9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

07.L3.I9 ROBI NSON'S ADDITI ON

. 219 NOttTH NFTWNAN S-flu,lEf 4'" I{,OOR . 
JACKSONVII,I,E, IrL 32202"

. PIIONII: 904-337-6324. F-AX: 904-322-8424.

105



, EnEtn==Fit-E,t-E.
0531900J18
0631900J19
0631900J20
063r_900J21"

063L900J22
0531900J23
063L900J24
0631900J2s
0631900J26
063L900J27
0631900J28
0631900J29
0631900J32
0631900T01
0631900T02
0631900T03

07-t3-t9
07-L3-L9
07-L3-L9
07-L3-r9
07-L3-L9
07-L3-r9
07-1_3-19

07-13-19
07-L3-L9
07-L3-L9
07-r3-r9
07-13-19
07-L3-L9
07-L3-L9
07-t3-I9
07-L3-r9

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ROBINSON'S

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

ADDITION

. 219 NOI{fH NITWNAN S'fRErr'f 4"'l.LOOll . 
JACKSONVILL!1,, FL 32202.

. I'I IONli: 904-337 -6324 . l-AX: 90 4-322-8424.

106



'i

I

E
g

i
I
t
I

a

3
c

E

t
t
:

t

L

I

i

!i
!
:

_l L
I

I

I

i

6

B

ij

B

6

I

I

I

t__l

r_-l

3

I
I
I

--t

N

o

L

p

+
"t!l

:!
s!
!9
r!
;9

mo
=oz
-\{

FO<=<z
!.1 -E.
=;'-o-eo=p-r
6n

z
oh
I
m

I

l-
,-=9i8"
!::
:8;

?a

Eq

i

i:: R

t!

;
I

6
{

I

I

i

.9

:

fit

:-B

EE!EEF

i$iii
Ia ! ?:r- eqi

o

i
o

o

IF

{l i{ r.i i+

3:F:
SqEq.3:6

/.2

aa

3Oo.r:€

:66{Eii
eq<'.:-E
dr$9:*9
iiEasS$c "i-"1F e;!-
E llsl, a€E
i 9?'9 E-

'/

.@03se

i d :t;:i - ".6;
; g Rle:
s t i:
i ei

irri
" iEi
i6*

a<l
^1t9- -

t

4r

iE
t9
rI*;

i

n

oo

!:
Ei
::
H*

:€Fid{RRrtAs6.

*F 8e

iI

,.+

dr
CF
c=

*:

i

o

a?
!;
bq
{o
o

9

I
a

*

ai,
io3
*9-E;is

?94.9;OA
i93e
=d{o6d==

9'; 5
*43
;.a

I

ql

sd
AS!l
:il
xt
-d
*
l

03

q

r

rE*l 6

:1!;, t;:;\:-f---
-__L_

*i
3:

I;
lB
3:

!

t-E

!EE-38

iic
:il

i*;

t^
l:.
li

l'

-t-

i

iS

@@@@@*@ o

Io

- ^*
stei
iiF:B
d.!3;
r P 3F"a

B: Ei:
xrr!"
i: iE;
; rg:E

Eii!a

ffi
R.M. BARRINEAU 6iF'

-AilDASSoCIAESa

BOUNDARY AND
TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY FOR:

COVINGTON DEVETOPMENT 107



r-EJllPro

Attachment F:

FAA Review Application

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

108



9115122, 10:30 AM Project Submission Success<br>Project Name: AE EN-000746809-22

@ < oEla[A

Project Submission Success
Project Name: AE EN-000746809-22

Proiect AE EN-000746809-22 has been submitted successfully to the FM.

Your filing is assigned Aeronautical Study Number (ASN):
2022-ASO-35226-OE

Please refer to the assigned ASN on all future inquiries regarding this filing.

Please return to the system at a later date for status updates.

It is the responsibility of each e-filer to exercise due diligence to determine if coordination of the proposed
construclion or alteration is necessary with their state aviation department. Please use the link below to contact

your state aviation department to determine their requirements:
State Aviation Contacts

To ensure e-mail notifications are delivered to your inbox please add noreply@faa.gov to your address book. Notifications sent from lhls address are system generated
FAA e-mails and replies to this address will NOT be read or forwarded for review. Each system generated e-mail will contain specifrc FM contact information in the text of

lhe message.

Fsdsral Avlatlon
Admlnlslratlon

https://oeaaa.faa. gov/oeaaaiexternal/eFilingilocationAction.jsp 1t2109



9115122, 10:30 AM Project Submission Success<br>Project Name: AE EN-000746809-22

https://oeaaa.faa. gov/oeaaa/external/eFiling/locationAction.jsp 2t2110



r-EJlllrro

Attachment G:

Master Use Plan Exhibits

Berkley Oaks Subdivision I Rezoning Application

111



mlM@ ffiNESIE 
'POENNAL

@

@

I@

cru..@

n rEsar{ 6-0@ rd'Nc PwE EEMdr (m)

xaffir E 'd, rot Nus
i tud^b/4d*E4our*

WSEEItrEBEIE
rorcF_Wt$!
o !i@-.^&r E oEd& (^)

d nw-aux! ir$oftn& G)

er-rdtrY i6'sNr! (c)

ffi *^/@ e^c G)

Ele 66n4 
'rNft 

- 5r. oul&

tosot6&&

=---:s&1-- 16

5&bn1

PD-1

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

BERKLEY OAKS
SUBDIVISION

AE ENGINEERNG INC.
JACKSONVILLE, FL

sEI{l$$.ldrFdlhFlqtil
i{llrl}1qs)Dl l3llludttaflrt s
*-,Ibgt!E-tar!EEF --Hltu!4|&If.l Etdt.qldtFqiGML DFNIIEEilIIF I UIDID FLANd{NT

sJRlrFtnF t€4BTdEral:cR Ecs

PRELIMINARY
J{o-_iToE-
GONSTRUCTION

112



SL.IEEIIIEtrIPIE9

: tswdsc @ dr@, 
^/cp

; ffieRru
. xERqec s 4@i 4D

- trhiadc tu 4@ EF

rc
@uwmw

tosot@&s
:r-_

sEmxBER2022

5e6-7241

PD_2

SITE ANALYSIS MAP

BERKLEY OAKS
SUBDIVISION

AE ENGINEERNG INC.
JACKSONVILLE, FL

SII{Iqtl!-tlolFdffqffir
4{arJ3.1 i:rrLl |tLAlr.fRflqrd.*
trdt{s !ilt$E&llf,ln

Eltu?tl|bfrlHrltqFtlFtrGML EIEIIIEEEiF I TIDIDPITI{I{TT
g,IR'EYIlt I€46TE.EINISS/EES

PRELIMINARY
--FdiFbR-
CONSTRUCTION

113



5A612al

PD-3

UTILITY SERVICE PLAN

BERKLEY OAKS
SUBDIVISION

."".AE 
ENGINEERNG INC.
JACKSONVILLE, FL

sils{lA$-alqFillr FtrE
/0rz!r131 q,!,Lr |* Jrr{Edl!,fitt *
h,!hF nla*lEEFlr|-

Hf*!|tlil,irlElt*q|*Fq

--rtJEI'rOPRELIMINARY
io-iTo-
CONSTRUCTION

114



FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Application RZ-2022-05 by property owner to amend the City's Zoning Map
by changing the zoning classification on the following described property described in
Exhibit A, attached, from Residential Single Family to Mixed Use is hereby approved.

Section 2. Severability. lf any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional or unenforceable, then all

remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. Future Land Use. The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation
changes enacted herein shall be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan Future Land

Use Map within 48 hours of this ordinance becoming effective.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately
Passed on second reading, this 6th day of December, 2022.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, with a quorum present and voting by the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, after properly dispensing with the final reading this 6th day December,2022.

ATTEST: CITY OF WILLISTON

LATRICIA WRIGHT
CITY CLERK

DEBRA JONES

PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCI L

CHARLES GOODMAN
MAYOR

KIERSTEN BALLOU

CITY ATTORNEY

115



Date: December 602022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: lsr READING ORDINANCE 2022-704: lsr READING ;ORDINANCE 2022-
704: AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS THE CITY OF WILLISTON "WATER
AND SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEE ORDINANCE''; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS,
RULES OF CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR
IMPOSITION OF WATER AND SEWER CAPACITY FEES PROVIDING FOR
PAYMENT AND USE OF MONIES; PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING
FOR COLLECTION OF CAPACITY FEES UPON CHANGES IN SIZE AND USE;
PROVIDING FOR DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION CREDIT; PROVIDING FOR
PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY
FEES; PROVIDING FOR REVIEW HEARINGS; REQUIRING PERIODIC REVIEW;
DECLARING EXCLUSION FROM ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT;
PROVIDING FOR PUBLIC HEARING; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT AND
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRI)
PREPARED BY: DONALD BARBER, PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: APPROVE

ATTACHMENTS: Map

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

116



ORDINANCE 2022-704

AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS THE CITY OF WILLISTON * WATER AND
SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEE ORDINANCE''; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS,
RULES OF CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR
IMPOSITION OF WATER AND SEWER CAPACITY FEES; PROVIDING FOR
PAYMENT AND USE OF MONIES; PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING
F'OR COLLECTION OF CAPACITY FEES UPON CHANGES IN SIZE AND USE;
PROVIDING FOR DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION CREDIT; PROVIDING FOR
PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEES;
PROVIDING FOR REVIEW HEARINGS; REQUIRING PERIODIC REVIEW;
DECLARING EXCLUSION FROM ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT;
PROVIDING FOR PUBLIC HEARING; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT AND
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII, section 2(b), Florida Constitution, and sections 166.021
and 166.041, Florida Statutes, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida has all powers of
local self-government to perform municipal functions, except when prohibited by law, and such
power may be exercised by the enactment of legislation in the form of City ordinances; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council that the terms contained in this Ordinance,
including these preliminary clauses, have the meaning as set forth in section 1.01 of this
ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council makes the following findings

A. Development necessitated by the growth contemplated within the Service Area will
require improvements and additions to the Sewer System and the Water System to
accommodate the utility needs of such growth and maintain the standards of service
adopted by the City.

B. Future demand represented by Sewer System Capacity Development and Water
System Capacity Development should contribute its fair share to the cost of
improvements and additions to the Sewer System and Water System which arerequired
to accommodate the use of the Sewer System and Water System by such dernand.

C. Implementation of a Sewer System Capacity Fee to require Sewer System
Development to contribute its fair share of the cost of improvements and additions to
the Sewer System is an integral and vital element of the regulatory plan of growth
management incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.

D. Implementation of a Water System Capacity Fee to require Water System
Development to contribute its fair share of the cost of improvements and additions to
the Water System is an integral and vital element of the regulatory plan of growth
management incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.

E. Capital planning is an evolving process and the level of service identified inthe
Comprehensive Plan for the Sewer System and Water System constitutes aprojection of
anticipated need for sewer treatment and transmission facilities and water facilities,

117



based upon present knowledge and judgment. nature of population growth, it is the
intent of the City Council that the level of service for the Sewer System and Water
System and the associated Capacity Fees imposed be reviewed and adjusted
periodically, pursuant to Section 4.06, to insure that the Capacity Fees are imposed
equitably and lawfully, based upon actual and anticipated growth at the time of their
imposition.

F. The imposition of the Sewer System Capacity Fee is to provide asource of revenue to
reimburse the consumption of existing facility capacity orto fund the construction and
improvement of the Sewer System either necessitated by the growth or as delineated in
the Comprehensive Plan.

G. The imposition of the Water System Capacity Fee is to provide a source of revenue to
reimburse the consumption of existing facility capacity or to fund the construction and
improvement of the Water System either necessitated by the growth or as delineated in
the Comprehensive Plan.

H. The Sewer System is intended to ultimately provide services for all properties within the
Service Area of the City. The presence of the Sewer System enhances and benefits the
health, safety, and general welfare of all properties within the City's Service Area.

I. The Water System is intended to ultimately provide services for all properties within the
Service Area of the City. The presence of the Water System enhances and benefits the
health, safety and general welfare of all propenies within the City's Service Area.

J. All improvements and additions to the Sewer System needed to eliminate any
dehciency between the existing Sewer System and the standard of service as
adopted in the Comprehensive Plan, shall be funded by revenues other than Capacity
Fees. Any revenue derived from the Sewer System Capacity Fee shall be utilized only to
reimburse the consumption of existing capacity and facilities or for the acquisition of
improvements and additions to the Sewer System which are necessitated by Sewer
System Capacity Development either occurring or connecting to the Sewer System
subsequent to the effective date of this Ordinance.

K. All improvements and additions to the Water System needed to eliminate any
deficiency between the existing Water System and the standard of service as

adopted in the Comprehensive Plan, shall be funded by revenues other than Capacity
Fees. Any revenue derived from the Water System Capacity Fee shall be utilized only
to offset the consumption of existing capacity and facilities or for the acquisition of
improvements and additions to the Water System which are necessitated by Water
System Capacity Development either occurring orconnecting to the Water System
subsequent to the effective date of this Ordinance.

L. Neither the Sewer System Capacity Fees nor the Water System Capacity Fees are
designed to include the physical costs of connection to either the Sewer System or Water
System and all physical connection costs shall be paid separately.

M. The purpose of this Ordinance is to regulate the development of land within the Service
Area by requiring the payment of Capacity Fees and to provide for the cost of capital
improvements to the Sewer System and Water System which are required to
accommodate growth. This Ordinance shall not be construed to permit the collection of
Capacity Fees in excess of the amount reasonably anticipated to offset the demand on the
Sewer System or the Water System generated by such growth.

118



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, THAT:

ARTICLE I
GENERAL

SECTION 1.01. DEFINITIONS. When used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall
have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

frApplicant" shall mean the Person who applies for a water and/or sewer connection to
the City's water and/or sewer system.

"Building" shall mean any structure, either temporary or perrnanent, built for the
support, shelter or enclosure ofPersons, chattels or property ofany kind, or any other
improvement, use, or structure which creates or increases the potential demand on the sewer
utility system or water utility system operated by the City. This term shall include trailed, mobile
homes, or any vehicle serving in any way the function of a Building. This term shall not
include temporary construction sheds or trailers erected to assist in construction and
maintained during the term of a building permit.

"Capacity Fees" shall mean collectively the Sewer System Capacity Fee and
WaterSystem Capacity Fee. This term shall be synonymous with theterm "Capacity
Fee" and "Reserye Capacity Charge" as used in this or prior policies or tariffs relating to
the subject matter addressed by this Ordinance, but does not include the fees or charges
imposed by the City as reimbursement for the costs of physical connection to the Sewer
System or the Water System,

"Capacity Fee Improvementsfr shall mean those improvements that form the basis for
the Capacity Fee calculations in the study adopted pursuant to Section 1.04, or such other
capital improvements designed to provide needed water and/or sewer system capacity to service
new growth within the Service Area.

"Capital Construction Costs" shall mean all or any portion of the expenses that
are properly attributable'to the acquisition, design, construction, installation, and
reconstruction (including demolition, environmental mitigation and relocation) of
improvements to the Sewer System or Water System under generally accepted
accounting principles; and including reimbursement to the City for anyfunds advanced for
Capital Construction Costs and interest on any interfund or intrafund loan for such purposes.

"Citt" shall mean the City of Williston, Florida.
"City Attorney'f shall mean the Person appointed by the City Council to serve as its

counsel or the designee ofsuch Person.

"City Council" shall mean the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida.
"City Manager" shall mean the City Manager of the City, whose responsibility it

is to supervise the administration, operations and acquisitions of the Sewer System and Water
System or the designee of such Person.

"Comprehensive Plan" shall mean the Comprehensive plan of the City adopted
and amended pursuant to the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land
Development Regulation Act as contained in Part II, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, or its
statutory successor in function.

"Dwelling Unit" shall mean a Building, or a portion thereof, which is designed

119



for Residential occupancy, consisting of one or more rooms which are ananged, designed or
used as living quarters for one family only.

ttEncumberedtt shall mean moneys committed by contract or purchase order in a
manner that obligates the City to expend the encumbered amount upon delivery of goods, the
rendering of services or the conveyance ofreal property interests by a vendor, supplier, contractor
or Owner.

rrERU''r or "Equivalent Residential Unit" shall mean the equivalent oftheaverage
water and wastewater usage requirements of a single-family residential customer.

"Mobile Home" shall mean a structure transportable in one (1) or more sections, which
structure is eight (8) body feet or more in width and over thirty-five (35) feet in length, and which
structure is built on an integral chassis and designed to be used as aDwelling Unit when connected
to therequired utilities, and includes theplumbing, heating, air conditioning, and electrical systems
contained therein.

frMulti-Family" shall mean aBuilding or aportion of aBuilding, regardless of ownership,
containing more than one Dwelling Unit designed for occupancy by a single family, which units are
not customarily offered for rent for one day, and shall include Apartments, City houses, and
Condominiums.

"Owner" shall mean the Person holding legal title to the real property for which Capacity
Fees are paid.

ttPersontt shall mean an individual acorporation, a partnership, anincorporated
association, trust or any other entity.

"Sewer Systemrr shall mean the wastewater or sewer utility system directly or
indirectly connected to treatment facilities operated by the City.

,Water System" shall mean the water utility system directly or indirectly connected to
treatment facilities operated by the City,

t'Residentialff means Multi-Family Dwelling Units, Mobile Homes and Single-Family
Detached Houses.

I'Residential Constructionrf shall mean land development designed or intended to
permit more Dwelling Units than the existing use or non-use of land contains.

"Service Area" shall mean lhat area served by the City's Water System and Sewer
System within Levy County, Florida.

"Sewer System Capacity Development" shall mean development upon lands within
the area served by facilities owned and operated by the City which shall be subjected to the payment
of Sewer System CapacityFees under this Ordinance uponthefirstoccurrence of anyofthe
following:

a) Whenever any existing Building or structure, which has not previously paid Sewer System
Capacity Fees under this Ordinance, connects to the Sewer System; or

b) Whenever any existing Building or structure or applicable improvement which is
connected to an interim sewer system is connected, either directlyor indirectly, to the Sewer
System;or

c) Whenever aPerson alters anexistingBuilding, structure orapplicable improvunent already
connected to the Sewer System, where such alteration increases thepotential demand onthe
Sewer System.

"Sewer System Capacity Fee" shall mean the fee imposed by the City pursuant to
Section 2.01 of this Ordinance.

f'Single-Family Detached House" shall mean a Dwelling Unit on an individual

120



lot, including detached houses on lots less than 50 feet wide, such as zero lot line homes
and manufactured homes.

6'Water System Capacity Development" shall mean development upon lands within
the area served by facilities owned and operated by the Citywhich shall be subjected to thepayment
of Water System Capacity Fees under this Ordinance upon the first occurrence of any ofthe
following:

a) Whenever any existing Building or structure, which has not previously paid Water System
Capacity Fees under this Ordinance, connects to the Water System; or

b) Whenever any existing Building or structure or applicable improvement which is
connected to an interim water system is connected, either directly or indirectly, to theWater
System;or

c) Whenever aPerson alters an existing Building, structure or applicable improvement already
connected to the Water System, where suchalteration increases thepotential demand on the
Water System.

"Water System Capacity Fee" shall mean the fee imposed by the Citypursuant to
Section 3.01 of this Ordinance.

qF.TT ON 1.02. RULES FOR r-r)Ns'T]IIT'TINN For the purposes ofadministration and
enforcement of this Ordinance, unless otherwise stated inthis Ordinance, the following rules of
construction shall apply:

A. In case of any difference ofmeaning or implication between the text ofthis Ordinance and
any caption, illustration, appendix, summary table or illustrative table, the text shall
control.

B. The word "shall" is always mandatory and not discretionary and the word "may" is
permissive.

C. Words used in the present tense shall include the future; and words used in the
singular shall include theplural and the plural the singular, unless the context clearly
indicates the contrary; use of the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender.

D. The phrase "used for" includes "arranged for," "designed for," "maintained for," or
"occupied for."

E. Unless thecontext clearly indicates the contrary, where a regulation involves two or more
items, conditions, provisions, or events connected by the conjunction shall be interpreted
as follows:

1. I'Andrt indicates that all the connected terms, conditions, provisions or events apply in
combination.

2. "Or" indicates that the connected terms, conditions, provisions or events may apply
singly or in any combination,

3. "Either ... or" indicates that the connected items, conditions, provisions, or events
shall apply singly but not in combination.

F. The word "includes" shall not limit a term to the specific example but is intended to extend
its meaning to all other instances or circumstances of like kind or character.

G. The terms "growth," "growth necessitated improvements," "future growth" and the like
shall refer, and be construed as refencing to Sewer System Capacity Development or
Water System Capacity Development either occurring or connecting, either directly or
indirectly, to the Sewer System or Water System subsequent to the effective date of this

121



Ordinance.

H. All timeperiods contained within this Ordinance shall becalculated on a calendar day basis,
including Sundays and legal holidays. In the event the due date falls on a Sunday or legal
holiday, the due date shall run until the end of the next day that is neither a Sunday nor legal
holiday.

SECTION 1.03. FINDINGS. The findings set forth in the preamble to this ordinance, above,
are hereby incorporated into this ordinance by reference.

SECTION 1.04. ADOPTION OF CAPACITY FEE RATE STUDY . The City Council hereby
adopts and incorporates byreference the study entitled "City of Williston Water and Wastewater
Impact Fee Report", dated as of October 21,2022 attached as Exhibit A.

ARTICLE II
SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEES

SECTION 2.01. IMPOSITION

A. All Sewer System Capacity Development occurring within the City's Service Area shall
pay a Sewer System Capacity Fee of $5,470 per ERU, calculated in accordance with
the following schedule:

Establishment Type ERU Factor

Residential
Single Family Detached PerDwelling Unit
Duplex (1-2 Bedroom) PerDwelling Unit
Duplex (Greater than 2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Efficiency) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (l-2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Greater than 2 B edroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Mobile Home ( 1 -2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Mobile Home (Greater than2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit

Commercial
Auditorium Per Seat
Auto Service andlor detailing Per Bay

Add: Per Wash Bay
Add: Per Public Restroom

Banquet/ Meeting Room Per Seat
Barl Cocktail Lounge Per Seat
Barber Shop PerWork Station
Beauty Salon Per Work Station
Bowling Alley Per Lane
Church Per Seat
Convenience Store:

1.000
0.833
1.000
0.500
0.833
1.000
0.833
1.000

0.015
1.000
3.200
1.500
0.020
0.100
0.333
0.600
0.333
0.020

122



(WSelf-Serve Gas Pumps) PerPublic Restroom 1.500
Convenience Store

(Wout Self-Serve Gas Pumps) PerPublicRestroom 0.500
Dentist Office Per Dentist 1.000

Add: Per Wet Chair 0.667
Dinner Theater Per Seat 0.100
Doctor Office Per Doctor 1.000
Extended Care Facility Per Unit 0.667
Grocery Store Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.750
Hospital Per Bed 0.833
Add for Food Service AreaPer 100 Square Feet 0.500
Hotel, Motel Per Room 0.500
(Food service, banquet and meeting rooms, laundries are all calculated separately)
Industrial / Manufacturing: (Notincluding food service or
industrial wastewater flow. Both are calculated separately)

With Showers Per 1,000 Square Feet I.250
Without Showers Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.400

Laundry, Self Service Per Washing Machine 1.400
Nursing Home Per Bed 0.500
Office Building Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.400

Add for food service Per 100 Square Feet 0.500
Add for Retail Space Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.500

Retail Shopping Area Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.500
Restaurant (24 Hour) Per Seat 0.200
Restaurant (Fast Food) Per Seat 0.100
Restaurant lCafeteia Per Seat 0.100
RV Park Per Site 0.250
School, Nursery and Elementary Per Student 0.033
School, Middle and High Per Student 0.075
Shopping Center Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.500
Theater Per Seat 0.020
Trailer Park (Ovemight Only) Per Site 0.333
Warehouse Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.200

Add: PerRestroom 0.750

B. The Sewer System Capacity Fee shall be paid in addition to all other fees, charges and
assessments due for the connection to the Sewer System and is intended to provide funds
only for the consumption of existing facility capacity or for growth necessitated
improvements and additions to the Sewer System.

C. In the event that a connection to the Sewer System is of a type not listed in the schedule
above, the City shall determine the appropriate Sewer Capacity Fee using an estimated
number of ERUs based on the estimated wastewater production gallons per day for the
type of property use as determined by the City Manager.

SECTION 2.02. PAYMENT.

A. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, prior to any connection to the Sewer

123



System, all Applicants or Owners, as the case may be, shall pay the Sewer System
CapacityFee as setforth in Section 2.01 directly to the City.

B. The obligation for payment of the Sewer System Capacity Fee and the benefits
derived therefrom shall run with the land.

SECTION 2.03. USE OF MONIES.
A. The City Council hereby confirms the establishment of a separate trust account forthe

Sewer System Capacity Fees, which shall be maintained separate and apart from all other
accounts ofthe City. All such Sewer System Capacity Fees shall be deposited
into such trust account immediately upon receipt.

B. The monies deposited into the Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account shall be used
solely for the pu{poses of reimbursement for the consumption of existing facility
capacity by growth or providing growth necessitated capital improvements and additions
to the Sewer System, including, but not limited to:

1. Design or construction plan preparation;
2. Construction management and inspection;
3. Capital Construction Costs;
4. Reimbursement of excess Developer Contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04;

and

5. Payment of principal and interest, necessary reserves and costs of issuance under
any bonds or other indebtedness issued by the City to provide funds to construct
or acquire growth impacted capital improvements of the Sewer System.

C. Funds on deposit inthe Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account shall not beused for any
expenditure that would be classif,red as a maintenance or repair expense.

D. The monies deposited into the Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account shall be used
solely for reimbursement for the consumption of existing facility capacity by Sewer
System Capacity Development or to provide improvements and additions to the Sewer
System required by growth, generated by Sewer System Capacity Development.

E. Any funds on deposit which are not immediately necessary for expenditure shall be
invested by the City. All income derived from such investments shall be deposited in
the Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account and used as provided herein.

ARTICLE III
WATER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEES

StrCTTC)N 3.01. IMPOSITION

A. All Water System Capacity Development occurring within the City's Service Area shall
pay a Water System Capacity Fee of $1,030 per ERU in accordance with the following
schedule.

Establishment Type
Residential
Single Family Detached Per Dwelling Unit
Duplex (1-2 Bedroom) PerDwelling Unit

ERU Factor

1.000
0.833

124



Duplex (Greater than 2 B edroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Efficiency) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (I-2 Bedroom) PerDwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Greater than 2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Mobile Home (1-2 Bedroom) PerDwelling Unit
Mobile Home (Greater than 2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit

Commercial
Auditorium Per Seat
Auto Service and/or detailing Per Bay

Add: PerWash Bay
Add: Per Public Restroom

Banquet/ Meeting Room Per Seat
Bar/ Cocktail Lounge Per Seat

Barber Shop PerWork Station
Beauty Salon PerWork Station
Bowling Alley Per Lane

Church Per Seat

Convenience Store:
(WSelf-Serve Gas Pumps) Per Public Restroom

Convenience Store
(Wout Self-Serve Gas Pumps) Per Public Restroom

Dentist Offi ce Per Dentist
Add:PerWetChair

Dinner Theater Per Seat

Doctor Office Per Doctor
Extended Care Facility Per Unit
Grocery Store Per 1,000 Square Feet
Hospital Per Bed

Add for Food Service Area Per 100 Square Feet
Hotel, Motel PerRoom
(Food service, banquet and meeting rooms,
Laundries are all calculated separately)
Industrial/Manufacturing: (Not including food service or industrial
wastewater flow. Both are calculated separately)
With showers per 1,000 Square Feet
Without Showers per 1,000 Square Feet
Laundry, Self Service Per Washing Machine
Nursing Home per Bed
Office Building per 1,000 Square Feet

Add for Food Service per 100 Square Feet
Add for Retail Space Per 1,000 Square Feet

Retail Shopping Area Per 1,000 Square Feet
Restaurant (24 Hour) Per Seat
Restaurant (Fast Food) Per Seat

0.015
1.000

3.200

1.500

0.020
0.100

0.333

0.600
0.333
0.020

1.000

0.500
0.833

1.000

0.833
1.000

1.500

0.s00
1.000

0.661
0.100

1.000
0.667
0.750

0.833
0.500
0.500

1.250

0.400
1.400

0.500
0.400
0.500
0.500
0.500
0.200
0.100

125



Restaurant / Cafeteria Per Seat
RV Park Per Site
School, Nursery and Elernentary PerStudent
School, Middle and High Per Student
Shopping Center Per 1,000 Square Feet
Theater Per Seat

Trailer Park (Ovemight Only) Per Site
Warehouse Per 1,000 Square Feet

Add: Per Restroom

0.100
0.250
0.033
0.075
0.500
0.020
0.333
0.200
0.750

B. The Water System Capacity Fee shall be paid in additional to all other fees, charges, and
assessments due for the connection to the Water System and is intended to provide funds
only for the consumption of existing capacity or for growth necessitated improvements
and additions to the Water System.

C. In the event that aconnection to the Water System is of a type not listed in the schedule
above, the City shall determine the appropriate Water Capacity Fee using an estimated
number of ERUs based on the estimated water usage per day for the type of property use
as determined by the City Manager.

SECTION 3.02. PAYMENT.
A. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, prior to any connection to theWater System, all

Applicants or Owners, as the case may be, shall pay the Water System Capacity Fee as set forth
in Section 3.01 directly to the City.

B. The obligation for payment of the Water System Capacity Fee and the benefits derived
therefrom shall run with the land.

SECTION 3.03. USEOF MONIES
A. The City Council hereby confirms the establishment of a separate trust account for the

Water System Capacity Fees, which shall be maintained separate and apart from all other
accounts of the City. All such Water System Capacity Fees shall be deposited into such
trust account immediately upon receipt.

B. The monied deposited into the Water System Capacrty Fee trust account shall be used sold for
the purposes of reimbursement for the consumption of existing facility capacity by growth or
providing growth necessitated capital improvements and additions to the Water System,
including, but not limited to:

l. Design or construction planpreparation;
2. Constructionmanagement and inspection;
3. Capital Construction Costs;

4. Reimbursement of excess Developer Contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04; and
5. Payment of principal and interest, necessary reseryes and costs of issuance under any

bonds or other indebtedness issued by the City to provide funds to construct
or acquire growth impacted capital improvements to the Water System

C. Funds on deposit in the Water System Capacity Fee trust account shall not be used for any
expenditure that would be classified as a maintenance or repair expense.

126



D. The monies deposited into the Water System Capacity Fee trust account shall be used
solely forreimbursement for the consumption of existing facility capacity by Water
System Capacity Development or to provide improvements and additions to the Water
System required by growth, generated by Water System Capacity Development.

E. Any funds on deposit which are not immediately necessary for expenditure shall be
invested by the City. All income derived from such investments shall be deposited in
the Water System Capacity Fee trust account and used as provided herein.

ARTICLE IV
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 4.01. EXEMPTIONS. The following shall be exempted from payment of
Capacity Fees:

A. Alterations or expansion of an existing Building, structure or improvement where no
additional demand on either the Sewer System or the Water System is or will be
created.

B. The construction of accessory Buildings, structures or improvements which will not
create an additional demand on either the Sewer System or the Water System.

C. The replacement of an existing Building, structure or improvement which has been
previously been subjected to aCapacity Fee payable to the City where no additional
demand is or will be created on either the Sewer System or the Water System.

D. Any connection to the Sewer System required under Florida Statute $381.00655(1).

SECTION 4.02. CHANGE,S OF SIZE AND USE.
A. Capacity Fees shall be imposed and calculated for the alteration, expansion or

replacement ofSewer System Capacity Development orWater System Capacity
Development which will result in a land use determined to create an additional demand
on either the Sewer System or the Water System. Whenever anyPerson applies to connect
to either the Sewer System orWater System, the Capacity Fee imposed shall be calculated
on the entirety of theBuildings. Where the alteration, expansion or replacement occurs
on lands for which a Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee has
already been paid, the Capacity Fee imposed shall be only upon the additional
demand created by the alteration, expansion or replacement.

B. One ( I ) ERU is equal to 252 gallons per day of average water use for purpose of
calculating the ERU equivalent for additional demand on the Water System created by
alteration, expansion, or replacement.

C. One (1) ERU is equal to 88.25 gallons per day of average daily flow for purpose of
calculating the ERU equivalent for additional demand on the Sewer System created by
alteration, expansion, or replacement.

D. Additional Demand on the Water System created by alterations, expansions, or
replacements shall be determined by determining the added number of water supply
fixtures as set out in Table 10.14.2A of the Standard Plumbing Code, converting that
number to gallons per minute required using Table 10J428 of the Standard Plumbing
code, and multiplying that number by 1,440 to convert to gallons per day. The resulting
number shall be divided by 252 gallons per day and the final number shall be the ERU

127



equivalent used to calculate additional demand.
E. Additional Demand on the Sewer System shall be based upon the estimated wastewater

production in gallons per day for the type of alteration, expansion, or replacement (over
and above the ERU amount) as calculated utilizing the Florida Department of Health
Rule 64E-6, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Table I. The additional wastewater
production in gallons per day shall be divided by 88.25 gallons per day and the resulting
number shall be the ERU equivalent used to calculate additional demand.

F. No refund or credit shall be afforded an Owner or Applicant in the event of a
diminution of use occurs after the Sewer System Capacity Feeor Water System Capacity
Fee already paid has been expended or Encumbered. For the purposes of this Section,
fees collected shall be deemed to be spent or Encumbered on the basis of the first fee
in shall be the first fee out.

SECTION 4.O3.COLI,EC TION OF UNPAID FEES. In the event the Sewer System
Capacity Fee or the Water System Capacity Fee, as applicable, is not paid prior to
physical connection to either the Sewer System or the Water System, the City shall proceed
to collect the Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee, as applicable, as

follows:

A. The City shall serve, by certified mail, return receipt requested, a Notice of Capacity
Fee Statement upon the Owner at the address appearing on the most recent records
maintained by the Property Appraiser of the County in which the property is located.
Service shall be deemed effective on the date of the return receipt indicates the notice
was received by either the Applicant or the Owner. The Notice of Capacity Fee
Statement shall contain a reasonable legal description ofthe property and shall advise
the Applicant and Owner that:

1 . The amount due and the general purpose for which the Sewer System Capacity
Fee was imposed or, as applicable, the amount due and the general purpose for
which the Water System Capacity Fee was imposed;

2. A hearing pursuant to Section 4.05 maybe requested within thirty (30) calendar
days from the effective date of service oftheNotice of Capacity Fee Statement,
bymaking application to the Office of the City Manager.

B. The Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee, as applicable, shall be
delinquent if, within thirty (30) calendar days from the effective date of service of the
Notice of Capacity Fee Statement, neither the Capacity Fee has been paid and received
by the City nor has a review hearing been requested pursuant to Section 4.05. In the
event a hearing is requested pursuant to Section 4.05, the unpaid Capacity Fees shall
become delinquent if not paid within thirty (30) days from the date the City Council
determines the amount of Capacity Fees due upon the conclusion of such a hearing.
Upon becoming delinquent, the Sewer System Capacity Fee or the Water System
Capacity Fee, as applicable, shall be subject to interest on the unpaid amount at the
statutory rate for final judgments on a calendar day basis until paid.

C. In the event the Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee becomes
delinquent, the total amount of unpaid Capacity Fees plus any applicable interest shall be
added to the Owner's monthly bill for water or sewer service, as applicable, and shall be paid

128



as a condition of service.
D. At the City's discretion, any delinquent Capacity Fees maybe collected by any other

method which is authorized by law, including, but not limited to, lien foreclosure
proceedings.

SECTION 4.04. DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION CREDIT
A. The City may enter into a contribution agreement with a developer which grants a

credit for Sewer System Capacity Fees imposed in Section 2.01 or Water System
Capacity Fees imposed in Section 3.01 in exchange for certain donations of Capacity
Fee Improvements, or for the construction or installation of certain Capacity Fee

Improvements.
B. The amount of developer contribution credit to be applied shall be determined

according to the following standards of valuation:
1. The value of donated Capacity Fee Improvements shall be based upon a

written appraisal of fair market value by a qualified and professional appraiser
acceptable to the City based upon generally accepted methods of valuation.

2. The cost of eligible anticipated construction of Capacity Fee Improvements
for the Sewer System or Water System shall be based upon professional
opinions oftotal project probable cost certified by a professional architect or
engineer.

3. In the case of contributions of construction or installation of Capacity Fee
Improvements, the value of the developer's proposed contribution shall be
adjusted upon completion of the construction to reflect the actual costs of
construction or installation of improvements contributed bythe developer.

4. No credit whatsoever for lands, easements, construction or infrastructure
otherwise required to be built or transferred to the City by law, ordinance or
any other rule or regulation shall be considered or included in the value of any
developer's contribution.

C. All construction cost estimates shall be based upon, and all construction plans
specifications and conveyances shall be in conformity with the utility construction
standards and procedures of the City. All plans and specifications shall be approved
bythe City Manager prior to commencement of construction.

D. Prior to the commencement of construction, the Applicant shall submit to the City
Manager a proposed plan and estimate of costs for contributions to the Sewer System or
Water System, as applicable. The proposed plan and estimates shall include:

1. A designation and description of the Sewer System Capacity Development orWater
System Capacity Development, as applicable, forwhich theproposed plan is being
submitted;

2. A description of any Capacity Fee Improvements proposed to be donated and a
written appraisal prepared in conformity with Subsection B.l. of this Section;

3. Initial professional opinions of probable construction costs for the proposed
construction provided by a professional architect or engineer;

4. A proposed schedule for completion oftheproposed plan prepared by a professional
architect or engineer; and

5. A processing, review and audit fee as determined by the City.
E. Upon favorable review of the proposed plan, the City Mayor shall schedule a

129



presentation before the City Council at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special meeting
called for thepurpose ofreviewing theproposed plan and shallprovide the Applicant or
Owner written notice of the time and place of the presentation.

F. The City Council shall authorize the City Attorney to prepare a contribution
agreement with the Owner only if,

l. Such proposed plan is in conformity with the contemplated improvements and
additions to the Sewer System orWater System; and

2. Such proposed plan, viewed in conjunction with other existing or proposed plans, will
not adversely affect the cash flow or liquidity of the Sewer System Capacity Fee
trust account or Water Syston CapacityFee trust account, as applicable, in such a
way as to frustrate or interfere with other planned or ongoing growth necessitated
capital improvements and additions to the Sewer System or Water System; and

3. Such proposed plan, viewed in conjunction with other existing or proposed plans, will
not create a detrimental imbalance between the treatment and transmission
capabilities oftheSewer System orWater System; and

4. The proposed plan is consistent with the public interest; and
5. The proposed time schedule for completion of theplan is consistent with the most

recently adopted five-year Capital Improvement Plan for the Sewer System or
Water System, as applicable.

G. The processing, review and audit fee shall be returned to the Applicant if either the City
Manager or the City Council determines the proposed plan is not acceptable. The
processing, review and audit fee shall becomenon-refundableonce the CityCouncil
authorizes theCity Attomey to prepare a contribution agreement.

H. In the event the amount of developer contribution pursuant to an approved plan of
construction or donation of Capacity Fee Improvements exceeds the total amount of
Capacity Fee credits used on the benefiting Sewer System Capacity Development or
Water System Capacity Development, as applicable, identified inacontribution agreement,
thecontributionagreementmayprovide for the reimbursement of the excess or
remaining balance of such contribution credit; provided funds are available and
collected from future receipts by the City from Sewer System Capacity Fees or Water
System Capacity Fees, as applicable, collected during the fiscal year immediately
following the fifth anniversary of the date of substantial completion of the plan of
construction or the date of donation, or the fifth anniversary, exclusive of any moratoria,
from the date of recording the contribution agreement in the Official Records of the
Clerk for the Circuit Court oflevy County, whichever shall first occur. Should the source
of funds for reimbursement as described in this paragraph not be available within the time
frames described herein, theremaining balance of any Capacity Fee credits shall be
forfeited.

I. Any Applicant or Owner who submits a proposed plan pursuant to this Section and desires
an immediate connection to either the Sewer System or Water System shall pay prior to or at
the time the proposed plan is submitted the applicable Sewer System Capacity Fee
pursuant to Section 2.01 or Water System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3.01, as

applicable. Said payment shall be deemed paid under "Protest" and shall not be construed
as awaiver of any review rights. Any difference between the amount paid and the amount
due, as determined by the City Council, shall be refunded to the Applicant or Owner.

4.05. REVIEW

130



A. AnApplicant orOwner who isrequired topay aSewerSystem CapacityFeepursuant to
Section 2.01 or a Water System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3.01, shall have the
right to request a review hearing.

B. Such hearing shall be limited to the review of the following:
1. The application of the Sewer System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 2.01.
2. The application of the Water System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3 .0 I .

3. Denial of a developer contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04.
4. Denial of an exemption pursuant to Section 4.01.

C. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, such hearings shall be requested by the
Applicant or Owner within thirty (30) days, including Sundays and legal holidays, ofthe
date of first receipt of the following, whichever is applicable:

1. Receipt of notice from the Citythat a Capacity Fee is due.

2. The denial of developer contribution credit.
3. The denial of a Capacity Fee exemption.

Failure to request ahearing within the time provided shall be deemed awaiver ofsuch right.
D. The request for hearing shall be filed with the Office ofthe City Manager and shall contain

the following:
1. Thename and address oftheApplicant and Owner;
2. The legal description of the property in question;
3. A brief description of the improvements on the property or the connection being

undertaken;
4. If paid, the date the Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee, as

applicable, was paid; and,

5. A statement of the reasons why the Applicant or Owner is requesting the hearing.
E. Upon receipt of such request, the City Manager shall schedule a hearing before the City

Council at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special meeting called for the purpose
of conducting the hearing and shall provide the Applicant or Owner with written notice of
the time and place of the hearing. The hearing shall beheld within sixty (60) days of the
date of the request for hearing was filed.

F. Such hearing shall be before the City Council and shall be conducted in amanner
designed to obtain all information and evidence relevant to the request for thehearing.
Formal rules ofcivil procedure and evidence shall notbeapplicable; however, thehearing
shallbeconductedinafair and impartial manner with each party having an
opportunity to be heard and to present information and evidence.

G. Any Applicant or Owner who requests ahearing pursuant to this Section and desire an
immediate connection to either the Sewer System ortheWater System shall pay prior to or at
the time the request for hearing is filed the Sewer System Capacity Fee pursuant to
Section 2.01 or Water System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3.0 1, as applicable. Said
payment shall be deemed paid under "Protest" and shall not be construed as a waiver of
any review rights.

SECTION 4.06. REVIEW REQUIREMENTS. This Ordinance and the accompanying rate
study shall be reviewed by the City Council at least every three (3) years. Each review shall
consider new estimates of population, cost related to the acquisition of land, buildings, capital plant
and equipment necessitated by growth and adjustments to the assumptions, conclusions and findings
set forth in the study adopted by Section 1.04. The purpose ofthis review is to ensure that the Sewer

131



System Capacity Fees and Water System Capacity Fees do not exceed the reasonably anticipated
costs associated with the improvements necessary to offset the demand generated by new
construction or use of the Sewer System or Water System. In the event the review of the Ordinance
required by this Section alters or changes the assumptions, conclusions and findings oftherate study
adopted by reference in Section 1 .04, revises or changes the Sewer System or Water System or
alters or changes the amount of the Capacity Fees, the rate study adopted by reference in Section 1.04
shall be amended and updated to reflect new and demonstrable assumptions, conclusions and findings
and Section 1.04 shall be amended to adopt by reference such updated study.

SECTION 4.07. DECI,ARATTON OF USION FROM ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEDURES ACT. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall be construed or interpreted to
include the City in any definition of Agency contained in Section 120.52, Florida Statutes, or to
otherwise subject the City to the application of the Administrative Procedure Act, Chapter 120,
Florida Statutes. This declaration of intent and exclusion shall apply to all proceedings taken as a
result of or pursuant to this Ordinance including specifically, but not limited to, a determination of
entitlement to a Capacity Feeexemption pursuant to Section 4.01, theproposed planfor a developer
contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04,or areview hearing under Section 4.05.

SECTION 4.08. SEVERABILITY. Ifany clause, section orprovision of this Ordinance shall be
declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason or cause? the remaining portion of said
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect and be valid as ifsuch invalid portion thereof had not been
incorporated herein. In the event it is held or construed by any court of competent jurisdiction that
the City does not possess the power or authority to impose the Sewer System Capacity Fees or Water
System Capacity Fees within any service area, or such imposition ofthe Capacity Fees is declared
invalid or unconstitutional for any purpose, such declaration of unconstitutionality or invalidity shall
not affect the validity or constitutionality of the imposition of the Sewer System Capacity Fees or
Water System Capaclty Fees in all other service areas.

SECTION 4.09. NOTICE: EFFECTIVE DATE. Upon adoption of this ordinance, the City
Clerk shall promptly publish notice thereof. This Ordinance shall take effect 90 days after the
publication of said notice.

DULY PASSED ON FIRST READING this day of 2022.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this _ day of
2022.

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA:

Attest:

132



City Clerk, Lafficia Wright

APPROVED AND WAITING PERIOD
WAIVED:

Mayor, Charles Goodman

City Council President, Debra Jones

Approved as to form and legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

133



December 6,2022

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: V A 22-01 Voluntary Annexation

REQUESTED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

Applicant: Reggie Ross, LLC

PUBLIC HEARING FIRST READING ORDINANCE 705

BACKGROUND i DESCRIPTION: Pursuant to petitioner Reggie Ross, LLC (property Owner)
an application for city limit annexation VA22-01has been made. This is a request to obtain an

annexation for a portion of the Levy County parcel number #0503900000 into the city limits.

LOCATION MAP/AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

Subiect Propertv:

Location: Parcel #0503900000 .527 acres at the Southeast corner of SE 1Oth Street and East
Noble Ave

Description:
Description: (by surveyor) Ross Division

A parcel of land at and within the Northwest corner of lands described in O.R.B. 1573, page 81 of
the Public Records of Levy County, Florida; lying in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 5, Township 13

South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida; being more particularly described as follows:
Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 1, Block 17 , J.B. Epperson Addition to Williston, according
to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 1, Page 37, said Public Records, said point lying on the
South right-of-way line of East Noble Avenue (a.k.a. U.S. Highway No. 27 and a.k.a. State Road No.
500) and on the West right-of-way line of S.E. 9th Terrace (a.k.a Pine Street) and run thence North
89"52'28"East, along said South right-of-way line, a distance of 111.28 feet to the Northerly extension
of the East right-of-way line of S.E. 10th Street (a.k.a. Chestnut Street); thence South 00003'45"East,
along said Northerly extension, a distance of 5.22 feet to the Point-of-Beginning of the herein
described parcel; thence continue South 00o03'45'rEast, along said East right-of-way line, a distance
oI104.37 feet to the Northwest corner of lands described in Deed Book 610 page 24, said Public
Records; thence South 89056'34"East, a distance of 209.91 feet to the Northeast corner of said Deed
Book 61, page 24; thence North 00o03'45"West, a distance of 109.56 feet to the said South right-of-
way line of East Noble Avenuel thence North 89o59'39"West, along said South right-of-way line, a
distance of 204.90 feet; thence South 45o00'21"West, along said South right-of-way line, a distance of
7.07 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning. Containing 0.527 Acres, more or less.

I

134



December 6,2022

G)qhbliailet'" Levy' County, FL

oiJrrvlau,

lcncnd

l. _l rarer
nddi
Cllyt b.lr

LEt2fuhi
Ortr ?rhc for*oa Qual
dl 0 nlr n/s
n/& 0 dr n/o

s
ri

I

FartdE ffidOtrffi
hnFr$ t !. 61& - PTSTUftE ll
Tertqol*rkr 5Vt, FtOtlnA$rTMG
A(fcr 61.?{

Pltlphllld&sr $ullfqVrhx ld
Mrlft4ld*c'r nEGGEROSSLLC &(FrFfitlr.Vdlla tO

2{}7lOtLs|/YSt ai&rldlrndvdur 1814968
wLLl5rdNfL326O6 Allrdvrllt 115.558

Jlrrvrllc l814,tdc
isceredvrlr 113558
Turil*V** l1155g

SUMMARY:

The subject property is located in Levy County, the existing land use is Agricultural. The
surrounding land uses are Commercial. Property to the north, south and west is within the City of
Williston jurisdiction while property to the east is within Levy County limits.

The following is Taken from State Statute:

171.044 Voluntary annexation. -
(l) The owner or owners ofreal property in an unincorporated area ofa county which is contiguous to a

municipality and reasonably compact may petition the goveming body of said municipality that said property be

annexed to the municipality.

2

135



December 6,2022

(2) Upon determination by the governing body of the municipality that the petition bears the signatures of all

owners ofproperly in the area proposed to be annexed, the governing body may, at any regular meeting, adopt a

nonemergency ordinance to annex said property and redefine the boundary lines of the municipality to include said

property. Said ordinance shall be passed after notice of the annexation has been published at least once each week

for 2 consecutive weeks in some newspaper in such city or town or, if no newspaper is published in said city or

town, then in a newspaper published in the same counfy; and if no newspaper is published in said county, then at

least three printed copies ofsaid notice shall be posted for 4 consecutive weeks at some conspicuous place in said

city or town. The notice shall give the ordinance number and a brief, general description of the area proposed to be

annexed. The description shall include a map clearly showing the area and a statement that the complete legal

description by metes and bounds and the ordinance can be obtained from the office ofthe city clerk.

(3) An ordinance adopted under this section shall be filed with the clerk of the circuit court and the chief

administrative officer of the county in which the municipality is located and with the Department of State within 7

days after the adoption of such ordinance. The ordinance must include a map which clearly shows the annexed area

and a complete legal description of that area by metes and bounds.

(4) The method of annexation provided by this section shall be supplemental to any other procedure provided

by general or special law, except that this section shall not apply to municipalities in counties with charters which

provide for an exclusive method of municipal annexation.

(5) Land shall not be annexed through voluntary annexation when such annexation results in the creation of

enclaves.

(6) Not fewer than l0 days prior to publishing or posting the ordinance notice required under subsection (2), the

governing body of the municipality must provide a copy of the notice, via certified mail, to the board of the county

commissioners of the county wherein the municipality is located. The notice provision provided in this subsection

may be the basis for a cause of action invalidating the annexation.
History.-s. 1,ch.74-190; ss.4,5, ch. 75-297;s.3,ch.76-176; s. 2, ch. 86-l 13; s. l, ch. 90-171; s. 16,ch.90-279; s. 16, ch. 98-176; s

3, ch.2006-218.

171.204 Prerequisites to annexation under this part. The interlocal service boundary agreement may

describe the character ofland that may be annexed under this part and may provide that the restrictions on the

character of land that may be annexed pursuant to part I al'e not restrictions on land that may be annexed pursuant to

this part. As determined in the interlocal service boundary agreement, any character of land may be annexed,

including, but not limited to, an annexation of land not contiguous to the boundaries of the annexing municipality,

an annexation that creates an enclave, or an annexation where the annexed area is not reasonably compact; however,

such area must be "urban in character" as defined in s. 171 .03 I (8). The interlocal service boundary agl'eement may

not allow for annexation of land within a municipality that is not a party to the agreement or of land that is within

another county. Before annexation of land that is not contiguous to the boundaries of the annexing municipality, an

annexation that crcates an enclave, or an annexation of land that is not currently served by watel' or sewer utilities,

one of the following options must be followed:

3

136



December 6,2022

(l) The municipality shall transmit a comprehensive plan amendment that proposes specific amendments

relating to the property anticipated for annexation to the Department of Economic Opportunity for review under

chapter 163. After considering the department's review, the municipality may approve the annexation and

comprehensive plan amendment concurrently. The local government must adopt the annexation and the

::-Ot"nt"ttue 

plan amendment as separate and distinct actions but may take such actions at a single public hearing;

(2) A municipality and county shall enter into a joint planning agreement under s. 163.3171, which is adopted

into the municipal comprehensive plan. The joint planning agreement must identify the geographic al'eas anticipated

for annexation, the future land uses that the municipality would seek to establish, necessary public facilities and

services, including transportation and school facilities and how they will be provided, and natural resources,

including surface water and groundwater resources, and how they will be protected. An amendment to the fufure

land use map of a comprehensive plan which is consistent with the joint planning agreement must be considered a

small scale amendment.

171.205 Consent requirements for annexation of land under this part.-Notwithstanding part I, an

interlocal service boundary agreement may provide a process for annexation consistent with this section or with part

I.

( I ) For all or a portion of the area within a designated municipal seryice area, the interlocal service boundary

agreement may provide a flexible process for securing the consent of persons who are registered voters ot' own

property in the area proposed for annexation, or ofboth such voters and owners, for the annexation ofproperty

within a municipal service area, with notice to such voters or owners as required in the interlocal selice boundary

agreement. The interlocal service boundary agreement may not authorize annexation unless the consent

requirements of part I are met or the annexation is consented to by one or more of the following:

(u) The municipality has received a petition for annexation from more than 50 percent of the registered voters

who reside in the area proposed to be annexed.

(b) The annexation is approved by a majority of the registered voters who reside in the area proposed to be

annexed voting in a referendum on the annexation.

(c) The municipalify has received a petition for annexation from more than 50 percent of the persons who own

property within the area proposed to be annexed.

(2) If the area to be annexed includes a privately owned solid waste disposal facility as defined in

s. 403.703 which receives municipal solid waste collected within the jurisdiction of multiple local govemments, the

annexing municipality must set forth in its plan the effects that the annexation of the solid waste disposal facility

will have on the other local governments. The plan must also indicate that the owner of the affected solid waste

disposal facility has been contacted in writing conceming the annexation, that an agreement between the annexing

municipality and the solid waste disposal facility to govern the operations of the solid waste disposal facilify if the

4

137



December 6,2022

annexation occurs has been approved, and that the owner ofthe solid waste disposal facility does not object to the

proposed annexation.

(3) For all or a portion of an enclave consisting of more than 20 acres within a designated municipal service

area, the interlocal service boundary agreement may provide a flexible process for securing the consent of persons

who are registered voters or own propefty in the area proposed for annexation, or of both such voters and owners,

for the annexation of property within such an enclave, with notice to such voters or owners as required in the

interlocal service boundary agreement. The interlocal service boundary agreement may not authorize annexation of

enclaves under this subsection unless the consent requirements ofpart I are met, the annexation process includes one

or more of the procedures in subsection (l), or the municipality has received a petition for annexation from one or

more persons who own real property in excess of 50 percent of the total real property within the area to be annexed.

(4) For all or a portion of an enclave consisting of 20 acres or fewer within a designated municipal service area,

within which enclave not more than 100 registered voters reside, the interlocal service boundary agreement may

provide a flexible process for securing the consent ofpersons who are registered voters or own property in the area

proposed for annexation, or ofboth such voters and owners, for the annexation ofproperty within such an enclave,

with notice to such voters or owners as required in the interlocal service boundary agreement. Such an annexation

process may include one or more of the procedures in subsection (1) and may allow annexation according to the

terms and conditions provided in the interlocal service boundary agreement, which may include a referendum of the

registered voters who reside in the area proposed to be annexed.

History.-s. I , ch. 2006-2 18; s. I 1, ch. 2007-5; s. 32, ch. 2008-4; s. 4, ch. 2017 -167 .

Annexation of Citv Limits

Presently the property is within the county jurisdiction and meets the requirements for
annexation.

The process for annexation addresses in the State Statute I7|.20-17L212. Specifically, the
section 171.052 - Criteria for annexation of municipal boundaries as quoted below:

171.0413 Annexation procedures. 
-Atry 

municipality may annex contiguous, compact, unincorporated

territory in the following manner:

(l) An ordinance proposing to annex an area ofcontiguous, compact, unincorporated territory shall be adopted

by the goveming body of the annexing municipality pul'suant to the procedure for the adoption of a nonemergency

ordinance established by s. 166.041. Prior to the adoption ofthe ordinance ofannexation, the local governing body

shall hold at least two advertised public hearings. The first public hearing shall be on a weekday at least 7 days after

the day that the first advertisement is published. The second public hearing shall be held on a weekday at least 5

days after the day that the second advertisement is published. Each such ordinance shall propose only one

reasonably compact area to be annexed. However, prior to the ordinance of annexation becoming effective, a

referendum on annexation shall be held as set out below, and, if approved by the referendum, the ordinance shall

5

138



December 6,2022

become effective l0 days after the referendum or as otherwise provided in the ordinance, but not more than I year

following the date of the referendum.

(2) Following the hnal adoption of the ordinance of annexation by the governing body of the annexing

municipality, the ordinance shall be submitted to a vote of the registered electors of the area proposed to be annexed.

The governing body of the annexing municipality may also choose to submit the ordinance of annexation to a

separate vote ofthe registered electors ofthe annexing municipality. The referendum on annexation shall be called

and conducted and the expense thereofpaid by the governing body ofthe annexing municipality.

(a) The referendum on annexation shall be held at the next regularly scheduled election following the final

adoption ofthe ordinance ofannexation by the governing body ofthe annexing municipality or at a special election

called for the purpose of holding the teferendum. However, the referendum, whether held at a regularly scheduled

election or at a special election, shall not be held sooner than 30 days following the final adoption ofthe ordinance

by the governing body of the annexing municipality.

(b) The goveming body of the annexing municipality shall publish notice of the referendum on annexation at

least once each week for 2 consecutive weeks immediately preceding the date of the referendurn in a newspaper of

general circulation in the area in which the referendum is to be held. The notice shall give the ordinance number, the

time and places for the referendum, and a brief, general description of the area proposed to be annexed. The

description shall include a map clearly showing the area and a statement that the complete legal description by metes

and bounds and the ordirrance can be obtained flom the office ofthe city clerk.

(c) On the day of the referendum on annexation there shall be prominently displayed at each polling place a

copy ofthe ordinance ofannexation and a description ofthe property proposed to be annexed. The description shall

be by metes and bounds and shall include a map clearly showing such area.

(d) Ballots or mechanical voting devices used in the referendum on annexation shall offer the choice "For

annexation of property described in ordinance number of the Cify of " and "Against annexation of property

described in ordinance number of the Cify of " in that order.

(e) Ifthe referendum is held only in the area proposed to be annexed and receives a majority vote, or ifthe

ordinance is submitted to a separate vote of the registered electors of the annexing municipality and the area

proposed to be annexed and there is a separate majority vote for annexation in the annexing municipality and in the

area proposed to be annexed, the ordinance ofannexation shall become effective on the effective date specified

therein. Ifthere is any majority vote against annexation, the ordinance shall not become effective, and the area

proposed to be annexed shall not be the subject ofan annexation ordinance by the annexing municipalify for a

period of2 years from the date ofthe referendum on annexation.

(3) Any parcel of land which is owned by one individual, corporation, or legal entity, or owned collectively by

one or more individuals, cotporations, or legal entities, proposed to be annexed under the provisions of this act shall

not be severed, separated, divided, or partitioned by the provisions ofsaid ordinance, but shall, ifintended to be

annexed, or if annexed, under the provisions of this act, be annexed in its entirety and as a whole. However, nothing

herein contained shall be construed as affecting the validity or enforceability ofany ordinance declaring an intention

6

139



December 6,2022

to annex land under the existing law that has been enacted by a municipality prior to July 1, 1975. The owner of

such property may waive the requirements of this subsection if such owner does not desire all of the tract or parcel

included in said annexation.

(4) Except as otherwise provided in this law, the annexation procedure as set forth in this section shall

constitute a uniform method for the adoption ofan ordinance ofannexation by the governing body ofany

municipality in this state, and all existing provisions of special laws which establish municipal annexation

procedures are repealed hereby; except that any provision or provisions ofspecial law or laws which prohibit

annexation of ten'itory that is separated from the annexing municipality by a body of water or watercourse shall not

be repealed.

(5) Ifmore than 70 percent ofthe land in an area proposed to be annexed is owned by individuals, corporations,

or legal entities which are not registered electors of such area, such area shall not be annexed unless the owners of

more than 50 percent ofthe land in such area consent to such annexation. Such consent shall be obtained by the

parties proposing the annexation prior to the referendum to be held on the annexation.

(6) Notwithstanding subsections (l ) and (2), if the area proposed to be annexed does not have any registered

electors on the date the ordinance is finally adopted, a vote of electors of the area proposed to be annexed is not

required. In addition to the requirements of subsection (5), the area may not be annexed unless the owners of more

than 50 percent of the parcels of land in the area proposed to be annexed consent to the annexation. If the governing

body does not choose to hold a referendum ofthe annexing municipality pursuant to subsection (2), then the

propefty owner consents required pursuant to subsection (5) shall be obtained by the parties proposing the

annexation prior to the final adoption of the ordinance, and the annexation ordinance shall be effective upon

becoming a law or as otherwise provided in the ordinance.

History.-s. 2,ch.75-297; s. l, ch. 76-176; s. 44, ch. 77-104;s. l, ch. 80-350; s.76, ch. 8l-259; s. l, ch. 86-l l3; s. 15, ch. 90-279; s.

16,ch.93-206;s.1,ch.93-243;s.1,ch.94-196;s.1448,ch.95-147;s.12,ch.99-378.

Surrounding land uses

The existing land use is vacant with agricultural uses in the past. The property adjacent to the
north, south, and west is zoned Commercial Intensive and is apart of the City of Williston. The
property to the east will remain in the County.

Future land use map is attached.

7

140



December 6,2022

Lrgend

f -!,r.{ I *rrr r: r1 r rrar

It L+I.EN L::ar"- H-d t! i,Lqttr

.-- 'l,bI t* F,uL':.lxr f,.:s :i::r rnrr'.
.._ g:rk{ l-!:

*.1l'r: r'ra
r] lrrtL n6rryqtrr'rflpr

ruhrr.l ill UB C.tb[orl[!:

I

I

I
IIII
-I
LII

'v#tL-LauL
cD"H=F:tn!
g c \sEF."1Tt oH

I.tuilHtnL
r{tFl tx
cuia+-E-tG
FtECiE4-lfil

t{LUU:.H-,"-

i{'1*r lr{ r:ir,t f,fl
l--l uruegcarr-u

. ": lfur.{-r'r411r.s'.L r- ,- ',t n+r
'i ri.. qr - & rr. -, {*rrL.,:-rt.t! 'r-r\ r.!t r d,..'l:-<Fdrrl

,. rtx*.:,.+*Lr.+. r4..{ ,r,r! iF (r4fr t fla*rtFtr +ar ...

f

.tlJ-

.{

i.: $rIi r rc.i'r. I
i,r q'..fl ii-
' r- rh.$Ll

!1.'4I l.{:.'r+.,f1
f,lt r! Av!

'.Jrrr.sslsdrl
$fkrtr:ar. rhF r{ r:E

.rilt ilrli-fl'xllA:.: hJ **:.:r:f :! Fr
' ffi rFlrr{illnr-_lt 4lr n rftt_l-t

n:!. :r htbq r rn-: E.rrlF::r.n

ft:r-; d r.dr{rr r}il:r:r rrls ll r
*1"Edall#r llr-ilhlId,

na,{i }r.. ., ,..iIhn! rrr4r nh'.EF *jEnf d[i.Adiil]rrat* rE rr,u,. r-t,rr rra rr.-tLnhr . - : il ' 1rr:t r r..!!..i rn i rr. - r,.q.,.ytx{r!.1! at!rlu.Jffi r.u

fi

lllL :t rlr r
.l

D 1,:lrl; E.u!F 510: Fist
,rlrrtJ

E.*Lllrt:n *.*irF*r -rrrrqr:.lHlFlttu-a:a t-Ja!nE
it

CITY OF WILLISTON
il*lr'r

FUTURF LATIO UEE IIAP

i
Parcel# 0503900000

8

141



December 6,2022

According to the State Statute if a property meets the requirements for annexation, the City
Council may approve, or deny a annexation depending upon whether or not it finds that a project
promotes public health, safety, moral, order, comfort, convenience, appearance or prosperity for
the general welfare of the residents of the City of Williston. Such a determination may be
dependent findings that satisfactory provision and affangement has been made concerning the
following matters, where applicable:

Staff Recommendations

The property meets state statute for annexation. The staff recommends approval of the
annexation.

LEGAL REVIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

R-ECOMMENDED ACTION: The staff recommends approval of First Reading of Ordinance
705, approval of voluntary annexation

ATTACHMENTS: Application, Exhibit A, Ordinance 705

ACTION:

APPROVED _ DISAPPROVED

9

142



PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION

The undersigned, being the owner(s) of certain real property which is located in Levy

County, Florida, and which is not presently a portion of the City of Williston, respectfully

petition that the said lands hereinafter described be annexed to the City of Williston, Levy

County, Florida, and submit the following:

I' The lands sought to be annexed are contiguous to the present corporate boundary of
the Cify of Williston , Levy County, Florida.

2- The lands sought to be annexed are compatible with the lands presently located in the

City of Williston.

3. The lands sought to be annexed to the City of Williston constitute a compact area,

contiguous to the boundary lines of the City of Williston and municipal services can be or have

been extended to the said property without significant expenditures and costs, provided,

however, that the City shall not be obligated to provide capital improvements to extend

municipal services until financing sources are available. The cost of capital improvements to

extend municipal services may be paid for by special assessments imposed directly against the

properly as provided by law.

4. The lands sought to be annexed to the City of Williston are more particularly described

as follows, to-wit:

See Exhibit "A", attached-

5. The city will derive the benefit of the deveropment of the said lands.

6- The Cify will, following the annexation, incorporate by ordinance, the annexed area

into the comprehensive land use plan and zoning scheme of the City; each of the undersigned

143



waives all rights and claims which may arise under statute or otherwise for any diminution in

value of property caused thereby.

7. Upon annexation, the said lands will become a part of the City and will be subjeet to

all ordinancas, codes, rules and regulations applicable to lands within the City, including the

imposition of municipal taxation.

WHEREFORE, it is respectfully requested that the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida accept this Petition under the provisions of Sectio n 17 | .A44, Florida Stanrtes

and initiate the necessary and proper procedures for the annexation ofthe area described above

to become a part of the corporate limits of the Cify of Williston, Lerry County, Florida.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, thiS 4 dAY Of &-{oL". 2422

&'
qic //<

ylfroens, /*n

Make ehecks payable to The Cifv of Williston

Annexation Fees:
a. Small annexation for a parcel of land one acre or less in size which

contains an existing single family or duplex dwelling; (Includes land
use amendrnent and rezoning)... $250.00

b. All other annexation (does not include land use amendment or
Rezoning) $350.00

144



ORDINANCE No 2022-705

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR THE ANNEXING OF CERTAIN PROPERTY IN
THE CITY OF WILLISTON; PROVIDING THE DESCRIPTION OF THE ANNBXED
PROPERTY; PROVIDING THAT THE ANNEXED AREA BE SUBJECTED TO ALL
LAWS AND REGULATION AND ENTITLED TO ALL BENEFITS AND PRIVILEGES;
PROVIDING AN EF'F'ECTIVE DATE.'

WHEREAS' The City of Williston, Florida (the "City"), has received a Petition for voluntary
Annexation from Reggie Ross LLC into the City of Williston. As trustee of Reggie Ross LLC
(the "Owners"), in which the Owners have requested and agreed to the voluntary annexation of
certain real property which is situated adjacent to the city limits of The City of Williston; and

WHEREAS, a notice of annexation has been published for two consecutive weeks in a local
newspaper and has been declared by certified mail to Levy County Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that all requirements as set forth in State Statute 171.044
relating to Voluntary Annexation have been met;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, as follows:

The following described real property, which is depicted on a map as Exhibit "A", attached, is
hereby annexed to and made a part of the City of Williston, Florida:

Description: (by surveyor) Ross Division

A parcel of land at and within the Northwest corner of lands described in O.R.B. 1573, page 81 of
the Public Records of Levy County, Florida; lying in the Northw est l/4 of Section 5, Township 13

South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida; being more particularly described as follows:
Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 1, Block 17, J.B. Epperson Addition to Williston,
according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 1, Page37, said Public Records, said point
lying on the South right-of-way line of East Noble Avenue (a.k.a. U.S. Highway No. 27 and a.k.a.
State Road No. 500) and on the West right-of-way line of S.E. 9th Terrace (a.k.a Pine Street) and
run thence North 89052'28"East, along said South right-of-way line, a distance of 111.28 feet to the
Northerly extension of the East right-of-way line of S.E. 1Oth Street (a.k.a. Chestnut Street); thence
South 00o03'4s"East, along said Northerly extension, a distance of 5.22 feet to the Point-of-
Beginning ofthe herein described parcel; thence continue South 00o03'45"East, along said East
right-of-way line, a distance of 104.37 feet to the Northwest corner of lands described in Deed Book
61, page 24, szid Public Recordsl thence South 89o56'34"East, a distance of 209.91 feet to the
Northeast corner of said Deed Book 610 page 24; thence North 00o03'45"West, a distance of 109.56
feet to the said South right-of-way line of East Noble Avenue; thence North 89o59'39"West, along
said South right-of-way line, a distance of 204.90 feet; thence South 45000'21"West, along said
South right-of-way line, a distance of 7.07 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning. Containing 0.527
Acres, more or less.

145



2. Upon this ordinance becoming effective, the area annexed shall be subject to all laws,
ordinances and regulation in force in the City.

3. Except as required by law, no City services shall be provided to the annexed lands until such
time as determined appropriate by the City Council. City services may be funded from taxes and
assessments as allowed by law.

4. This ordinance shall take effect on February 3,2023 or at earlier time as approved by the
Mayor.

5. The City Clerk shall file copies of this ordinance with the clerk of the circuit court and the
chief administration officer of Levy County, Florida and with the Department of State within 7
days after its effective date.

PASSED upon first reading this 6th day of December,2D22.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, upon second and final reading, in regular session
with a quorum present and voting, by the City Council this 3'd day of January,2022.

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:

Debra Jones,

President, City Council

ATTEST:

By:

Latrtcra Wright,

City Clerk

APPRoVEDbyMayorCharlesGoodmanonthisdayof-,2022.

By:

Charles Goodman,

Mayor

146



\t 7.a7'

NOBLE AVENUE gulaP of {Boundary Surve't
Lyng in tfu t?ot{frwest t/a dsectioni, %wnsfrip

13 Soutfi, funge 19 Easl Levy Counlt, ffori[a'
Scah

1;rtfi= ft.40
Ll N89'59'39'W 204.90'

..- $rlE 5r.!g .r_ ,l
ia;
ie;
+

!^

rs
d-g

5:

| ryrDFdldooed4dtu Frr6A b'b4@-dryhc rlhb.27.* dc.d rd
*...iYt ??ig!,'* &Fd,ry i4 s.e HrGr{'

D€criptionr (by suryeyo.) RN Dvision
A paacel ofland at and within ths Nodhwest corner of

lands dsqibed in O,R-B. 1573, pag6 81 oflhe Public Records
ot L€ly County, Florida; lying in lho Norlhwest 1/4 of S€ction
5. ToMshlp 13 South, Rango 19 Eost, Levy Counv, Rorida:
being rcrs paftidlady dgsdib€d as followg:

Comnen@ at lhe Norlheag 6rn€rofLot 1. Block i7,
J.B- €ppeFon Addluon to Willisbn, ac@rding to he plat
th€€of, as r@rd€d in Plat Book 1, Page 37, *id Public
Records, said pojnl lying on the South right{f-wsy liie ot Eagt
Noble Avenue (a.k.a. U.S. Highffiy No.27 gnd a.k.a. Sbte
Road No.500) and on the Wesl nght4f-way iins ofS-E" gth
Tor&e (a.k.a Pine Skeet) and run lhen€ North
89"5228"EaS, .long ssid South rightd-way lin6, a distan@ of
1 t 1 .28 feot to the Northerly extension o[ ths East rightd-my
line of S.E. 1olh Streot (a.lra. Cheghut SU6et); thmc6 South
00"0345"€a6t. along 6aid Nofrherly extension, a disbnG of
522 leet to the Poinbf"Beginning otthe her€in descdbed
par@l lhoc€ @ntinu€ South 00"03'45"Est, along 6aid East
rightd-way line, a distance of 1 04.3? feet lo the Northw*t
@mer of lands dsc.ibed h Deed Eook 61 page 24, said
Public Recordst thence Soulh 89'56'34"East, a di*n@ of
209.91 feet to th€ Nonheast cornerof said Deed Book 6'1,
page 24; lhen@ Nonh 00"03q5"W6st, a dtsbn@ ot 109.56
t€l lo lhe said South right-of-way lineofEast Nobls Avenle:
lhen@ Nodh 89'5939"W61, alonq said South righkf-way
line, a dislEnce of 204-90 f€et; th€ne Soulh 45'00'21"West,
€long said Souh righld.way ljn€, I distance of7.07 feet b the
said Point{f€eginning.

Containjng 0-527 Aqes, more orless.

Eb

F;
Eg

$s

i
i

I

I

tts

t2

lh

s bhry.{q,q@.@<€.d/,
@EwbrE|lJlw@ortu eidcfr
* lt6 kb6 thryt' q@r{.ubF
@&@tl@a
.. d@tu'l\6n6rednrerblld*rd
wldbldbhrffi4, |@roe;ddm
66eH6dryHb6do-r-@. rn
@ thry,Hd4'@.(ffihe dt.6
ffid b ryq @ rhfrd *dh dld

a +rbd${tlryffia@bhe
!|&@.dik.#ffid&6 ddq E@
@d@rsEd4dh.4ffi
I htDddhht.d@{Mhddlk
tu@b.btulredod.c b dr64ftfrdd@a blltrddl!ed'lj@l'@r[4id

il
a

A

^

i3l

e5

a'rf N KUIW rub
@ w, !il6 sffi)
14'rru m sn uftD
1/2'M M SS UCD
uli69Rm

!tuF&M Ps,5#.

BM{I€TMAEM

209.91

New Sarce["A'
l)acant Lantr
0.527 Acrest

i'
ro*o

-'--&tr

147



December 6,2022

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: RX,2022-06 Tanner 755 S. Main St (Parcel # 05099-001-00)

RBQUESTED BY: Laura Jones, City Planner

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

Rezone (Parcel # 05099-001-00). This property is located at755 S. Main St. EDA Consultants,
Inc. is the agent and Cecil Tanner is the property owner. This re-zone has been initiated by the
property owner to change the zoning and land use.

Currently this parcel consists of @3.2 acres zoned Agricultural with current and future land use
as Agricultural. This re-zone proposes changing the zoning to Residential Duplex (R-2) and the
Current and Future Land Use to Residential. The zoning map below shows 3 parcels, however the
parcels have been merged into one @3.2 acre parcel.

The zoning of R-2 is consistent with the surrounding properties and the current land use of the lots.
The land is not being used for agriculture, in fact there are single family homes currently on the
area closest to Main Street.

Approval of this rezoning complies with the Land Development Code; therefore, staff recommends
approval.

148



December 6,2022

LEGAL REVIEW: NA

F'ISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Planning &ZoningCommission recommended approval of the Zoningand Land Use application
to City Council.

ATTACHMENTS:

Application

ACTION:

APPROVED
DISAPPROVED

149



ORDINANCE NO.7O5

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILTISTON, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE

CITY OF WILLISTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PURSUANT TO AN APPTICATION BY CECIL TANNER
FOR 3.2 +/- ACRES IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL 05099-001-00 ON THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE
LEVY COUNTY PROPERW APPRAISER, UNDER THE AMENDMENT PROCEDURES ESTABLISHED IN
CHAPTER 163, FLORIDA STATUTES; CHANGING THE ZONING AND THE FUTURE LAND USE

CTASSIFICATION FROM AGRICUTTURAT TO RESIDENTIAL DUPTEX ON CERTAIN TANDS WITHIN
THE CORPORATE tlMlTS OF THE CITY OF WIILISTON FLORIDA, DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING
SEVERABIIITY; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION ON CITY MAPS, AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, empowers the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the City Council, to prepare, adopt, implement and
amend A Comprehensive Plan;

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida, did on May7,2002, validly
approve and adopt the City of Williston Land Development Regulations; and

WHEREAS, an application, R7-2O22-06, for an amendment, as described below, to the
Current Zoning Map of the City of Williston Comprehensive Plan has been filed with the City;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston, designated as the
Local Planning Agency, did hold the required public hearing, with public notice having been
provided, on said applications for amendments, as described below;

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Williston reviewed and
considered all comments received during said public hearings and the Rezoning Report
concerning said applications for amendments, as described below and recommended approval
of the above reference applications to the City Council;

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold the required public hearings, under the provisions of
the amendment procedures established in Chapters 153 and 166, Florida Statutes, on said
applications for amendments, as described below, and at said public hearing, the City Council
reviewed and considered all comments received during the public hearing, including the
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, serving also as the Local Planning
Agency.

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and found said applications for amendments,
as described below, to be consistent with the Future Land Use Element objectives and policies,
and those of other affected elements of the City's Comprehensive Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIT OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,

150



FLORIDA, AS FOLTOWS

Section l-. Application RZ-2O22-06 by property owner to amend the City's Zoning Map
by changing the zoning classification on the following described property described in
Exhibit A, attached, from Agricultural to Residential Duplex is hereby approved.

Section 2. Severability. lf any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional or unenforceable, then all
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. Future Land Use. The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designation
changes enacted herein shall be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan Future Land
Use Map within 48 hours of this ordinance becoming effective.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately
Passed on second reading, this --- day of

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED, with a quorum present and voting by the City Council of the City of
Williston, Florida, after properly dispensing with the final reading this --- day of -----, ---.

ATTEST: CITY OF WILLISTON

LATRICIA WRIGHT

CITY CLERK

DEBRA JONES

PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

CHARLES GOODMAN
MAYOR

KIERSTEN BALLOU

CITY ATTORNEY

151



CITY OF WILLISTON
APPLICATION FOR
ZONING CHANGE

(Completed application will need to be received hy the first of the month prior to the Planning
and Zoning Commission meeting, which meets the last Tuesday of the month)

Applicant's Name:
Clay Sweger (eda consultants, inc.)

Applicant's Mailing Address
720 SW 2nd Avenue, South Tower, Ste. 300

Gainesville, FL 32601

Telephone Number:
352-373-354r

755 S. Main Street
Address where change requested:

Legal Owner of parcel
Cecil Vernon Tanner

Tax parcel ID# :
0509900100

Legal Description of parcel: (attach exhibit if necessary)

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT

Current Land Use/Zoning Map designation:
Agricultural FLU & Zoning

Requested Land U selZoning Map Designation Residential FLU & R-2 Zoning

Please provide the following:
l. A letter addressed to City Planner, requesting a zoning change
2. Proof of identification: Copy of lax ^cleed.

3. Surveyofland.

REZONING FEES (Make checks payable to the City of Williston, PO Drawer 160, Williston,
FL 32696'12

a. Rezoning without land use map amendment $ 720.00
b. Rezoning and small scale land use map amendment $ 720.00
c. Rezoning and large scale land use map amendment $21500.00

Applicatian will be considered incomplete unless all the above is conpleted and provided.

z fzof.z
s

PZl005

Date

152



PROPER TY UYYNFR Aff}OAYTT

11" I

-t,i"i

t

:

t'- 
' '-{r-t .--^- F *. o *,}{-^ i*-

:,:",;!'.r:'':t l{:"i.vr F-qrrl 3.--lft':t

I
! )t

153



eCa

Re:

consultants. inc

November L,2022

Laura Jones

City Planner
City of Williston, Florida

Proposed Land Use & Zoning Map Change
755 S. Main Street

Ms. Jones:

The proposed project is a Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map amendment and
Rezoning of approximately 3.39 acres located at 755 S. Main Street (Parcel No. 0509900100) in the City of
Williston. Specifically, the Iand use map amendment is from Agricultural to Residential and the rezoning
is from Agricultural to R-2.

lncluded with this letter is all supporting information required for the proposed application.

lf you have any questions, please feel free to let me know.

Sincerely,

E4r--
Clay Sweger, AICP, LEED AP

Principal / Director of Planning

720 SW 2nd Avenue, South Tower, Suite 300, Gainesville, FL 32601
www.edaf Lcom

a Phone: (352) 373-3541

154



G)qPublic,net Levy County, FL

Summary
Parcel lD
Location Address

Neighborhood
Legal Description*

Property Use Code
Subdivision
5ec/Iwp/Rng
Tax District
Millage Rate
Acreage
Homestead
AgClassification

View MaB

Owner
Owner Name
MailingAddress

Valuation

Tanner Cecil Vernon 100%
2023 JACK BEAVER RD
SANTA FE, TX 775T7

0509900100
755 S MAIN ST
wtLLtsToN 32696-
0s.00 (s)

06.T3.79 OOO3.22 ACRES TRACT IN NE1/4 OF SW1/4 EAST OF SAL RR OR BOOK 1419 PAGE 113 & TRACT IN NW1/4 OF SE1/4 ORB 1419 PAGE 109
'The legal description shown here may be corrdensed, a full legal description should be obtained from a recorded deed for legal purposes.
StNGLE FAMTLY R (0100)
N/A
06-13-19
WILLISTON (District Wl)
21.87?5
3.220

No

Building Value

Extra Features Value

Ag Land Value

Just (Market) Value

Assessed Value

Exempt Value

Taxable Value

Cap Differential

Previous Year Value

2022 Preliminary Value
5ummary

$83,626

$8'148

$7s,363

$7s,363

$767,737

$704,763

$75'soo

$29,263

$62,374

$110,689

Exemptions

Homestead a

25000

2nd Homestead a

25000

WidoMer a

500

Disability 3

Roof Cover
lnterior Flooring
lnterior Wall
HeatingType
Air Conditioning
Baths

Conditioned Area

1774

Seniors 3

2s000

Veterans 0

Actual Area

Other 3

Building lnformation
Building I
ActualArea 7872
Conditioned Area 1178
ActualYearBuilt 7969
Use SINGLE FAMILY 1
ExterlorWall SIMULATEDBRICK/STONE,CONCRETEBLOCK
Roofstructure GABLEORHIP

Description

BASE

FINISHED ENCLOSED PORCH

FINISHED OPEN PORCH

FINISHED STORAGE

FINISHED OPEN PORCH

UNFINISHED OPEN PORCH

Total SqFt

Extra Features

Code Description

FIREPLACE-A

CHAIN FENCE 4

SHED-A

DU-D STORAGE

OLD HSE C

METAL
CARPET
DRWVALL
FORCEDAIR DUCTED
CENTRAL
1

BLD

T

7

7

1

0

0

0

0

0

U

7r78

width
0

20

72

0

Length

0
n

46

T6

0

7774

264

50

204

70

36

r8t2

Height

0

0

0

0

0

Units

L

448

920

L92

I

155



Land Line

Use Descrlptlon

Housq
VAC LAND

Sales

Sale Date

4/72/2017

4/72/2077

5/7/2005

Building Sketch

Front

1

0

Depth

0

0

Total Land Units

o.94

2.28

UnitType

AC

AC

Land Value

$36,991

$38,372

lnstrument
Sale Price

$1oo.oo

$100.00

$100.00

Book Page

14te ry
147e q
957 299

Tvpe

WD

WD

WD

Qualification Vacant/lmproved Grantor

TANNER DONALD J

TANNER DONALD J

TANNER DONALD J

Grantee

TANNER DONALDJ &

TANNER DONALD J

TANNERDONALDJ&MARTHA

U

U

a

tz17 5

lRmcTru
lrrrrlmgr nmr xrnrrr
FtrffS}CI, STOR/IGIE
FIIEI+II OFEI||FOR{]I{

rlFtst#ll F!fl:t fxFn FoRcH
ltuc

6

12

6

21

b

12

52l
13

14

Map

No data available forthe following modules: Photos.

156



INSTR # 624650, OR BK: 1419 PG: 113, Recorded 4ll2l2Al7 11:03 AM
Rec: $27.00 Deed Doc: $0.7O Danny J. Shipp,Clerk of the Circuit Court Levy FL Deputy Clerk MBASS

PREPARDD BY:
Ronald W. Stevens, PA
P.O. Box 1444
Bronson, FL3262l
RETTIRN TO:
Donald J. Tanner
755 S. Main Steet
Williston, Florida 32696

WARRANTY DEED

This Warranty Deed, Executed ,n" A-auv of Afr t I ,2017,by, DONALD J.
TAIYNE& the unremarried widower of nffi-rHi L.T;tfrilddeased, t"ho holdr th*r.
lands as his homestead property, hereinafter called GRANTOR, to DONALD J. TAflltER and
CECIL VERNON TAfllYER, as joint tenants with full rights of sunivorship and not as
tenants in common, whose mailing address is: 755 S. Main Sheet. WillistQ,n. Florida 32696
hereinafter called GRANTEES.

(Wherever used herein the terms "grantor(s)" and "grantee(s)" include all the parties to this
instrument and the heirs, legal representatives, and assigns of individuals, and the successors and
assigns of corporations, wherever the context so admits or requires.)

WITNESSETH: That the Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of $10.00. and other
valuable considerations, receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, by these presents does grant
bargaih, sell, alion, remise, convey and confirm unto the Grantees, all that certain land situate and
being in LEVY County, FLORIDA, viz,

THOSE LAIIDS AS DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ..A" ATTACHED HERETO AND
MN)E A PART TIEREOF BY REFERENCE.

Said property being the same as described in OR Book 951 Ptge299, public records of
Levy County, Florida.

Tax Parcel No: 05099-001-00

Said property is the homestead of the Grantor under the laws and constitution of the State of Florida.

SIIB.IECT TO all easements, restrictions, reservationso ordinances, covenants, conditions,
limitations of record, if any, and all other such zoning and governmental regulations.

TITLE TO THE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED LAFTDS HAS BEEN I\IEITHER
EXAMINED NOR APPROVED BY PREPARING ATTORNEY. LEGAL DESCRIPTION
FURT\ISHED BY GRANTOR.

TOGETHER with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging
or in anywise appertaining.

To Have and to Hold, the same in fee simple forever.

157



BK: 1419 PG: 114

AI\D THE GRANTOR hereby covenants with said Grantees that he/she is lawfully seized of said
land in fee simple; that he/she has good title and lawful authority to sell and convey said land; that
he /she hereby fully warrants the title to said land and will defend thee same against the lawful
claims of all persons whomsoever; and that said land is free of all encumbrances except ta><es

subsequent to December 31,2016.

In Witness Whereof, the said first party has signed and sealed these presents the day and
year first above written.

sealed and delivered
of,ln

1

1 Address

an oath was not taken.(Check one:) Said person(s) is
Said person(s) provided the following q?e of identification:

STATE OF FLORIDA.----

COUNTY OF. LEVY

I hereby Certifr that on this day, before, an offrcer duly authorized to administer oaths and
take acknowledgments, personally appeared: DONALD J. TAlttNF& known to me to be the
person(s) described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, who acknowledged before me
that hel she exeeuted the

to me.
same, and

V

of
hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaia *ris /& Oay

,4.D.2017

PI}BLIC1 STATE OF FLORIDA

\

ffi
^nurF

$$TEY Fn5t0l8larPollclotft 00ttl8C,Gilthll0ll
2e.oclEr*llCoill.ft

fldloi{foilll||

(sEAL)

PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY

158



BK: 1419 PG: 115

/

That p.rt of thc South * of Scetlon 6, Township l3 Soqth,
Rrngc l9 East, Levy County- Florl da, morc pertlcul arly
descrlbcd es follous: Coormencs rt thc Southesst corner of
thc So{rthwcst * of tha Southcast * of Scctlon 6, Townshlp
13 Sotrthp Rangc l9 East; 'thance run llorth 87o ql ! lSrt tlcst
along thc South llne of sald Scctlon 6,1843.5 fcct to thc
Eastcrly rlght of wey llnc of the Sceboard Alr Llno Rallroad;
thcncc run llorthcastcrly slong the sal d rl ght of way I I na

of thc Scaboard Alr Llnc Rallroad; 15t9.32 fcet to the Polnt
of Beglnnl ng; thcncc run south E8o 07t 37t' East a'long thc
ol d fcnce I lnc to thc l{orth-South ccntGr I I na of ral d Sect}on
6 a dlrtancc of 218.75 fcet more or less; thance run t{orth
along thc ral d .llorth-South center I tnc l2O fatti thcnce run
llest to the Eacterly rlght of *ay I Ins of thc Bcaboard Alr
Llnc Rat I road a dfgtancc of 1t3.75 fcct; chcncc Southwcstcrly
elong caid Esstsrly rl ght 'of way to Folnt of Bcglnnlng.

IT

159



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Lands described in O.R.B. 276, page 424 of the Public Records of Levy County,
Florida; and part of lands described in O.R.B. 224, page 463, O.R.B . 171, page 343,
O.R.B. 90, page 392 and Deed Book 1, page 533, all of said Public Records; Lying in
the South 1l2at Section 6, Township 13 South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida;
being more particularly described as follows:

Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 11, Block 2. Woodfields, according to the
plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 7, page 41, said Public Records of Levy County,
Florida; said point also being the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and
the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 276, page 424 and run thence South
00'02'13'West, a distance of 37.48 feet to the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 276,
page 424: thence North 87"33'47'West, along the South line of said O.R.B.276, page
424 and along the South line of said O.R.B. 171, page 343, a distance of 405.70 feet
to the East rnaintained right-of-way line of South Main Street (a.k.a. abandoned
Seaboard Coast Railroad); thence North 12"56'29"East, along said East right-of-way
line, a distance al 267.52 feet to the North line of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the
South line of lands described in O.R.B. 1445, page 386, said Public Records: thence
South 89"5747"East, along said North llne and along said South line, a distance of
135.60 feet to the Northeast corner of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the Southeast
corner of said O.R.B. 1445, page 386; thence North 13"19'53"East" a distance of
255.00 feet to the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 1445, page 386 and the North line
of said O.R.B- 224, page 463; thence South 89"57'47"East, along said North line, a
distance of 149.06 feet to the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and the
said West line of said Block 2, Woodfields; thence South 00"02'13"West, along said
West line, a distance of 498.16 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning.

Containing 3.390 Acres, more or less.

160



PreEL 0561-0@-@
Pm 0F Dm mx

2, PM 141(Nd IrcLUE}

cM'OU

crcf

Pmc[ 05m-00J-q
0.R.8. 957. P& S6

(NO TNCLUoEo)

I
I cott8b

F5. norc inaom.0o. el.o!.

sr-m.&toqing.com

lnloem€urqing.cofi

B 6041

Lling in
13 Soutfi,

tfre
g 10,
6tocK 2

2@1 PCP
cffi ?il

N

M to,rer2

Rgnge 19 OH
20ol

3

E
t

Description: (bysurveyor)
Lands described in O.R.B. 276, page 424 of the Public Records of Levy Counly,

Florida; andpartoflandsdescribedinO.R.B.224,page463,O.R.B. 171,page343,
O.R.B. 90, page 392 and Deed Book 1, page 533, all of said Public Records; Lying in
the South 1/2 of Section 6, Township 13 South, Range 19 East, Levy County, Florida;
being more particularly described as follows:

Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 1 1, Block 2, Woodfields, according to the
plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 7, page 41, said Public Records of Levy County,
Florida; said point alqo being the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and
the Northeast corner of said O.R.B. 276, page 424 and run thence South
00"02'1 3"West, a distance of 37.48 feet to the Southeast corner of said O.R.B. 276,
page 424; thence North 87"33'47"West, along the South line of said O.R.B. 276, page
424 and along the South line of said O. R.B. 171 , page 343, a distance of 405.70 feet
to the East maintained righlof-way line of South Main Street (a.k.a. abandoned
Seaboard Coast Railroad); thence North 12"56'29"East, along said East right-of-way
line, a distance of 267.52 feet to the North line of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the
SouthlineoflandsdescribedinO.R.B.l445,page336,saidPublicRecords; thence
South 89'57'47"East, along said North line and along said South line, a distance of
1 35.60 feet to the Norlheast corner of said Deed Book 1, page 533 and the Southeast
corner of said O.R.B. 1445, page 386; thence North l3'1 9'53"East, a distance of
265.00 feet to the Norlheast corner of said O.R.B. 1445, page 386 and the North line
of said O.R.B. 224, page 463i thence South 89'57'47"East, along said North line, a
distance of 149.06 feet to the Northeasl corner of said O.R.B. 224, page 463 and the
said West line of said Block 2, Woodfields; thence South 00'02'13"West, along said
West line, a distance of 498.16 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning.

Containing 3.390 Acres, more or less.

LOI r0.
slocK 2

6 10.
&H2

2@1 PCP
cRoF

4 149.06'

.6$
{i d-

m 10,
&ocK 2

Scate
FS

9a
Jo<

dt
F; ?

.?1 incfr = -ft.40 LO 10.
*od 2o

,n o-u,- hru. d Mff w021Jtd, ro,
c. r.d n{ d 8Er ,, wodn&', mu hdr r. rd*.r ns rh. A d

ro. F-kn, dd rn@]il^L. ( $k biE, dq.) 4r

#.d d idd i.E^.

.* kib @ .ritt sich or

dedd N''o. 'nt 
od o. id b Eob.

.. p4d rri' rhous d h 
'g

kr t dr lbr th. ris^inr nmF. :.

d.rhequrdr.ihh.eGb'n
r4d d omy ddr, qLL

d4 .dd-b, 4hL-d-rry. oidlcr

pdt dd! kt hr h V k oryr rd dry dc!tur.r r.r iqbid
Frny or odFiiie E@6.

tun FI hb r6m h. ilod dd d
dt. n.drM. il m

Dr iEdr rbr h 04 nd. oi rubF Fd. tr b
.q.dd, ry tu sry. rM on eft4 arhcb (ddhr ddn d d) s.

n'Bt ds h Nd td.q d rb .ubi.d

5. subjd P4.d sdn h.E
i4r.md'm'rdryhcht
buBhg P!4n qid r b #

r .odtre d h 
'ubF F6tsry.

qq kFm.il b^e Gtr^) Fdd
h&ni6 nd. &F $.itr tui rd dmt q d b. ildn .r rdd dd

orsdtuh m rtod..,t no& ry Rr c.d

b
?

22+, PM

ioq
()
ir,n
-(n
tr
1!
rO

ho
b2

Lq 10,
&ocK 2

2ml tr
crcfl

I

BI

R.)

I

I
Sdrce[ 05099-001-00
3.390 fl.cresx(ouerafQ

I

I
f;

av'*,Mru
(mw,16ffi)

!/2'mmsre
r/4mMsre
UIBfiWMP

ffi-cffif

t
J

LOT r0.
&ocK 2

I
2@1 PCP

J

I
I

tfr il,
8L@K 2

lWEDS
uT mk 7,

PreE 
'I

"'@, l 200r PcP
CROF'

f
-@8276.p&E

$ffiffi
oF 0.R.8, 270,

2@1 PCP

tdt
lut

is/

N8235'47'W 405.
OF 124 EICE

Prct ostoo_@t_q

t:
/E
iti

N
2@r PCP
CROFT,

PACEL O5tOl_m_m
70'

D

"fF

.ps'
e.d

*m-
r.or€ssonor surwFr & Mopp€rl !t€v€hc!urv6yn9.com161



Small Scale Land Use Map Change
&

Rezoning Application

Proiect Request: A proposed small scale land use map change from Agriculturalto
Residential and a rezoning from Agricultural to R-2 in the City of Williston,
Florida.

Proiect Location: 755 S. Main Street (Tax Parcel Number 0509900100)

Proiect Owner: CecilVernon Tanner

Report Date: November L,2022

Clay Sweger, AICP, LEED AP

eda consultants, inc.
Prepared By:

162



Project Background / Project Request

The owner of the subject property, Cecil Vernon Tanner, requests approval of a small scale future
land use map change from 'Agriculture' to 'Residential' and a rezoning from 'Agriculture' to 'R-2'
on the approximately 3.39 acre subject property located at 755 S. Main Street in the City of
Williston, Florida. The parcel number for the subject property is 0509900100. The proposed land
use and zoning map designations are both residential in nature and are consistent with each
other and is compatible with the existing land use pattern in the area, which includes several
residential areas and a public school (Williston Elementary School) within short walking distance.

The existing and proposed City of Williston future land use maps indicating the proposed change
(land use map change) is below:

II
I

III
I
I

IIIIII

Future Land Use Categories:

IIIIilII

AGRICULTURAL I SPRAY IRRIGATION

COMMERCIAL

CONSERVATION

INDUSTRIAL

MIXED USE

PUBLIC / OUASI PUBLIC

RECREATION

RESIDENTIAL

ru uNoEsrGNArED

IIII

I It
III
I

II
Iltt

{II II

tl

Future Land Use Map

{Existing}

2

163



III
I

I I
III I

I

Future Lard Use Categofies:

AGRICULTURAL I SPRAY IRRIGATION

COMMERCIAL

CONSERVATION

INDUSTRIAL

MIXED USE

PUBLIC I QUASI PUBLIC

RECREATION

RESIDENTIAL

UNDESIGNATED

As indicated in the maps above, the proposed Residential future land use designation is

consistent with the overall future land use map pattern in the area, which predominantly includes
the same Residential future land use category and a complementary land use map designation
of Public at the location of Williston Elementary School.

3

164



The existing and proposed City of Williston zoning maps indicating the proposed change (zoning
map change) is below:

a

City of n RB Residential Business A Agricultural

lndustrial

Spray lrrigation

Public

Quasi Public

R-1 Residentlal Single-Family # C-f Commercial General I f

:i;i; n-f -n Residential Single-Family f c-z commercial lntensive ffi Sf

I RM-1-A Residential Mobile Home ! CeO Central Business District f P

R-2 Residential Duplex ! neClOS Recreation/Open Space QP

ffi nU-Z Residential Multifamily RVP Recreational Vehicle Park

Zoning Map
(Existing)

4

165



City of Williston Zoning RB

R-1 Residential Single-Family C-1

'ri;l::; n-r-n Residential single-Family f'.:..! cz
RN4-1-A Residential Mobile Uome ! CAO

Residential Business

Commercial General

Conmercial lntensive

Central Business District

A Agricultural

lndustrial

Spray lrrigation

Public

Quasi Public

,l

R-2

i;i,iii nnl-z

Residential Duplex

Residential Multifanrily

, REC/OS Recreation/Open Space

SI

.P

QP

RVP Recreational Vehicle Park

Zonlng Map

{Proposed}

As indicated in the maps above, the proposed R-2 zoning designation is consistent with the
overall future land use map pattern in the area, which predominantly includes the same or similar
residential zoning category and a complementary zoning map designation of Public at the
location of Williston Elementary School.

The subject property is located within a portion of the City of Williston with a predominant
residential development pattern. The Comprehensive Plan provides for residential land uses

within this portion of the city, which are intended promote well planned growth.

The applicant wishes to develop the property with residential units, which is consistent with the
proposed land use and zoning designations.

The City zoning map (proposed) designation for this property is R-2, which is consistent with the
proposed Residential future land use map designation and allows the same type and density of
residential development. As such, the proposed zoning change will implement the proposed land

use designation of the property.

5

166



Existing and Future Land Use Pattern & Compatibility

Existing Development

Patterns

Existing Use Future land Use

Designation

North Vacant & Cemetery Agriculture

South Residential & Vacant Residential & Agriculture

East Residential Residential

West S. Main Street

Residential & Vacant Residential & Agriculture

Residential

Residential

Vrcrnt
Rrddtntlll

rt t,'
Adjacent Use Exhibit-{-

,{. t,

rF-
t lr

:l{

!
+k

r it'

$
a

F

I srzrt a,

,F
0

F.q
n
V

UJ
a

@@I
g .. rF-l(n

F

o
7 tri

.c).1 I |t
,IU

AVf: j
WE

*,trE@ ilt!!@ Subiect Property
Parcel Number 0509900100

3.22 Ac. (+/-ll
II
t1
tr
f's9u

BI^,
1

The subject property has direct access and abuts S. Main Street. Existing residential properties
are abutting the site in all directions. A public school (Williston Elementary School) is located
immediately to the southeast of the property. Undeveloped land is also located to the north,

6

167



south and west. Future residential development on the subject property will be compatible with
the existing development pattern, a majority of which is residential in nature.

lmpact on Adopted Level of Service Standards

Accessibility to Public Facilities

All future development on the property that may result by the change in land use designation
and zoning map of the property will provide a site development plan to the City that provides
evidence that all adopted Level of Service (LOS)standards shall be met, as summarized below:

Water, sewer, solid waste, parks and recreation, drainage and transportation level of services are
anticipated to maintain the adopted level of service standards after the proposed land use and

7

Road Access S. Main Street

Fire Protection / Emergency > 0.25 mile

Police Protection > 0.5 mile

Nearest School > 0.25 mile

Centralized water and sewer
> O.25 mile to nearest connections

lnfrastructure Comprehensive Plan Element Level of Service Standard

Solid Waste Ch. 4 lnfrastructure Element The LOS standard is 3.95 pounds

per capita per day.

Parks and Recreation Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

L0 acres of open space per L,000

persons as a LOS standard.

Centralized Sewer Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

147 gallons per capita per day

Potable Water Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

134 gallons per capita per day

Drainage Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

Design standards for stormwater

management systems include 25-

year 24-hour duration storm event.

Transportation Ch. 13 Concurrency Management

System

LOS standard for City Roadways is

"D" in the Comprehensive Plan.

168



zoning map change. ln addition, any future development would be required to demonstrate
concurrency availability at the time of application to the City.

City of Williston Comprehensive Plan

The following Comprehensive Plan policies apply to the proposed land use change application
The policies listed below with the applicant's consistency statements included.

Future Lond Use Element

Objective 7

Future growth and development will continue to be directed by adopted land development
regulations into appropriate land use oreas with the availobility of facilities ond services,
suitable topography and soil conditions.

Policy 7.3

The various land use categories shall conform to the following maximum density or intensity of
use standords. Density shall refer to the gross acreage of land rather than net developoble
acreoge.

Policy 7.4 Residentidl

It is the intent of this land use cotegory to provide for single-fomily detached dwelling units in
residential oreas of low density (4 dwelling units/gross ocre maximum). ln the low-density land
use category, mobile homes are permitted in RM-7-A zoning district only.

Medium density (5 dwelling unit/gross acre maximum) residential areas permit single-family
detoched or ottoched dwelling uses, including mobile homes. Connection to community potable
water systems and centralized sanitary sewer systems is preferred but not required. ln the
medium density lond use category, mobile homes ore permitted in RM-2 zoning district only.
Residentialoreos of high density (up to 72 dwelling units/gross aue maximum) ore permitted only
when community potable water systems and centralized sonitory sewer systems are ovailable ond
accessible.

8

4.0 Dwelling UnitslGross Acre R.1. R-l.A, RM.l.A. RB

5.0 Dwelling Units/Gross Acre R.2. RM.2, RB

12"0 Dwellirig Units/Gross Acre R-2. RM-2.

Density per Gross Acre (Max) lmplementing Zoning Districts

169



Single-family attoched, detached and multifamily dwelling units are permitted. Mobile homes are
not permitted.

Consistencv: As stated in this report, the subject property is bounded in all directions by
many properties with a residentialfuture land use and zoning designation. The proposed
residential designations will be consistent with this Policy and will be compatible with the
surrounding area.

Objective 3

The City sholl promote the compatibility of adjacent land uses.

Policy 3.7 The City will regulate future land uses based upon the predominont existing lond use

locations and intensities, ond through the timing and location of extended municipal services.
Preference will be given to associotive land use patterns which utilize energy efficiency, while
protecti ng overa I I envi ronme ntal qua lity.

Policy 3.2 Expansion of land uses which are incompatible with the future land use plan sholl be
prohibited, except that this shall not be construed to prohibit the reconstruction of o domaged
or destroyed building. Where the development review process identifies land use compatibility
conflict, then mitigation of incompotible land uses through buffering sensitive oreos identified in
site analysis, londscaping, provision of open spoce and other appropriate techniques shall be
used to oddress impacts of approved development.

Consistencv: As stated in this report, the proposed residentialfuture land use and zoning
designations area compatible with the immediate area surrounding the subject property,
which are primarily residential properties.

Objective 6

To promote efficient use of resources ond prevent development beyond whqt is necessory to
accommodote expected growth, the City shall continue to implement comprehensive plon
policies intended to limit urban sprawl.

Consistencv: The subject property is within the urbanized portion of the City with
development in all directions and public facilities available to serve future development on-
site. This type of infill development is consistent with the City's efforts to limit urban sprawl.

Objective 7

Ensure the avoilability of suitable lond for utility facilities necessary to support proposed
development.

Policy 7.1 All development sholl be phosed into oreas where adequate transportotion, public
services and facilities will be provided or currently exist. All development sholl meet the Williston

9

170



Level of Service standards as contained within this plan for facilities ond services. The facilities
and services sholl either:

a.

b.

Be avoilable and provided concurrent with the impacts of development; or,
Development orders and permits sholl be specificolly conditioned on the ovoilability of
facilities and services necessary to serve the proposed development.

Consistencv: As indicated in this report, there are public facilities and services located in
close proximity to the subject property, including utilities, fire rescue, police and schools to
serve future development on the project site.

Summary

Comprehensive Plan Policies: The proposed land use and zoning change is consistent with
Comprehensive Plan policies related to the proposed Residential future land use designation and
R-2 zoning designation for the subject property. The project area has access to public facilities,
public safety and public schools and is situated with access to a public street (S. Main Street) and
consequently, this proposed amendment is consistent with the future land use map, zoning map
and the existing development pattern within the area.

Level of Seruice; The analysis shows that the proposed future land use map change and rezoning
should not have an adverse effect on adopted level of service standards and any future
development on the property that may result by the proposed map changes on the property will
provide a site development plan to the City that provides evidence that all adopted Level of
Service (LOS) standards shall be met.

Compatibility: As stated above, this proposed land use and zoning map change is consistent
with the overall land development pattern within the area.

10

171



Date: December 8,2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Discussion with Possible Action: Repair caterpillar skid steer.

REQUESTED BY: UTILITY DIRECTOR JONATHEN BISHOP
PREPARED BY: UTILITY DIRECTOR JONATHEN BISHOP

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: The Caterpillar Skid Steer has not been in use for
several months. This machine is used for earthwork.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS: Not to exceed $12,000.00

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS: 2 quotes

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

172



Date: December 612022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Discussion with Possible Action: approval of the purchase of the SHI Microsoft
Exchange Online oin2G User and the Office 365 E3GCC license.

REQUESTED BY: INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRI)
PREPARED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: Seeking approval for the purchase for the SHI
Microsoft Exchange Online Oin2G User and the Office 365 E3GCC license. We budgeted
$61000.00 for it in the 2022123 approved COW budget for this software and we obviously
under budgeted.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS: $11,028.90

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS: FY2023 Software Budget

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

173



CITY OF WLLISTON
FY2023 Software Budget

Budget Allocation

Dept Software
General

Fund
Airport
Fund

utility
Fund Total

Police
Fire

Dispatchers
Admin
Building

Code
IT

IT

Airport
Airport
Airport
Airport

RMS / CAD / Voice Recorder / Backup software /Emails
Allocated share of annual maintenance cost for shared software
Allocated share of annual maintenance cost for shared software
Allocated share of ADG Software
Building Permit ADG Software
Code Enforcement ADG Software
Software Licenses - Windows / Office 365
All Other

AWOS Maintenance
RSINET Data

Qtpod - Base Network Access
Atlas Software License

17,000
7,000
9.300

5,500

720
945

2,WA

33,300

10,105

001.520.030-038 Total Software Subscriptions / Maintenance

174



tsHl Pricing Proposal
Quotation #: 22724306
Created On: 111412022
Valid Until: 121412022

District Sales Manager

Bryan Hunt
290 Davidson Ave
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone'.732-652-7651
Fax: 732-564-8224
Enuil: Bryan_Hunt@shi.com

Oty Your Price

Aaron Mills
FL

United States
Phone: 352-533-0322
Fax:
Email: amills@willistonfl.org

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD)

Product Total

City of Williston

1 ExchOnline Pln2G User
Microsoft - Part#: AAA-1 1628
Coverage Term: 111412022 - 913012023

55 $8s.68 $4,712.40

2 Office 365 E3GCC User
Microsoft - Part#: AAA-1 1650
Coverage Term: 111412022 - 9l3Ol2O23

Additional Comments

50 $246.33 $12,316.50

Total $17,028.90

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and fluctuations.

The Products offered under this proposal are resold in accordance with the SHI Online Customer Resale Terms and Conditions.
unless a separate resale agreemenf exisfs between SHI and the Customer.

175



Date: December 612022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Resolution 2022-972 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Williston,
Florida, approving the2023 General Municipal Election dates and process and establishing
an effective date.

REQUESTED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT
PREPARED BY: CITY CLERK LATRICIA WRIGHT

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:
election, and election date.

Setting the dates and times of qualifying, seats up for

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 2022-97

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

176



RESOLUTION2022

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE

2023 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION DATES AND PROCESS AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE

DATE.

WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Williston requires biennial elections to fill expired terms of
the City Council and Mayor per the established election cycle; and

WHEREAS, the City of Williston is bound to conduct the election process as required by Florida
Statue;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLOR|DA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and accurate and are made a part of this resolution

SECTION 2. The City of Williston Municipal election date is established as Tuesday, April 4,
2023, to fillthe following seats: Group "A", Group "8", and Group "C". The official qualifying
period starts at noon on January 23,2023 and ends at noon on FridayJanuary 27,2023.

SECTION 3. lf any provision or portion of this resolution is declared by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and
portions of this resolution shall remain in fullforce and effect.

SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage and adoption

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 6th day of December 6,2023

CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA

Debra Jones, President City Council

ATTEST: Latricia Wright, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND TEGALITY:

Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten Ballou, Attorney

177



Date: December 612022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Resolution 2022-98. A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Williston,
Florida, establishing authorization for the City Council President to authorize the purchase
of ninety-six DFW 36C Water Meter boxes and providing an effective date.

REQUESTED BY: JASON LEE, LOGISTICS
PREPARED BY: JASON LEE, LOGISTICS

BACKGROUND i DESCRIPTION: Water meter boxes and accessories.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTSz $22,656.00. Funds to purchase the water meter
boxes will come out of ARAP Funds.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: APPROVE

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

178



CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2O22-9A

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLTSTON FLORTDA,
ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
AUTHORIZD TH.E PURCHASE OF NINEY.SIX DFW 36C WATER METER BOXES
AND PROVIDING AI{ EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston has a need for Water meter boxes; and

WHEREAS the Water Meter Boxes are a critical component of the water system

integration monitoring; and

WHEREAS the City Council will aluthorize a purchase for ninety-six DFW 36C

Water Meter boxes.

NOW, THEREFORT, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

oF WTLLISTON, FLORTDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby made a

part of this resolution.

Section 2. The Council President is authorized to execute the necessar5r

purchase and acquisition of ninety-six DFW 36C Water Meter boxes for the water

utilities division and inventory.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 6th day of

December 2022. CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:
Debra Jones, President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LDGALITY:

By: By:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk Scott Walker, City Attorney

Kiersten Ballou, Attorney

179



City of Williston
50 NW Main St. P.O. Drawer 160 Williston, Ft 32696

Phone (352) 528-3060 Fax (352) 528-2877
Date: LLlL7l2O22 PO Number: W008

To: CORE & MAIN
820 SW 33RD AVE

ocALA"FL.34474

Deliver To:City of Williston
25 NW lst Ave.

Williston, Fl 32695

Quantitv Description Unit Price Sub Total
96

792

96

96

96

96

96

DFW 36C MTR BOX ASSY WILLISTON

3/4X6 GALV STL NIPPLE

\s02 s/8x3/4 tRoN YOKE

EC-23-NL s/8X3/4 EXPANS|ON CON NO LEAD

891-223WNL 3/4 BALL VLV FIPX MTR (NO LEAD)

HHSg1-323N1 3/4 STRT DUAL CHK VALVE NO LEAD

DFW36C-P12-3K METER BOX W/BLUE LtD & pLAST|C LOCK

S236.oo $

s

s

s

s

s

$

s

s

s

22,656.OO

BUDGETACCOUNT# CLE

INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDOR: Mail all invoices in duplicate
Purchase Order Number, to the Purchasing Department,
City of Williston, immediately upon shipment of goods. Show
cash discount on all invoices. Please acknowledge This purchase

Order.

Department Head: Jonathen Bishop

Finance:

Signature:

City Manager: _

The mission of the City of Williston is to offer an efficient affordable and safe place to live, work and play.

Mayor - Charles Goodman / President - DEBRA JONES

Vice President * MARGUERITE ROBINSON

Council members - MICHAEL COX - Zach Bullock - ELTHU ROSS

City Manager - TERRY BOVAIRD / City Clerk - LATRICIA WRIGHT

180



Date: 12-08-2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022.99:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A POLE TRAILER FROM RING
POWER EQUTPMENT IN ACCORDANCE WrTH QUOTE NUMBER L76235,62I6;
AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO FACILITATE SAID PURCHASE;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: TERRY BOVAIRD, CITY MANAGER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS: 3 quotes were requested and procured. The money will come from the
savings on the purchase of the Utility Squirt Truck that was budgeted for $250,000. We are
paying $225,000 for the Squirt Truck of the budgeted $250,000 from our reserves

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2022.99 MAP

LEASE XX OTHERDOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

181



RESOLUTION NUMB.ER 2022-99

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A POLE TRAILER FROM RING
POWER EQUTPMENT rN ACCORDANCE WITH QUOTE NUMBER L76235,62L6;
AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO FACILITATE SAID PURCHASE;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, The City of Williston is in need of a Pole Trailer; and

WHEREAS, the relevant Codes and Policies of the City of Williston, Florida allow for
purchase of necessary items in accordance with the terms therein; and

WHEREAS, the City has obtained three (3) quotes for the necessary Pole Trailer; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends the City Council accept the quote from Ring Power
Equipment based on the quality of the product and the proposed price; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
purchase the Pole Trailer from Ring Power Equipment and authorize the City
Council President and City Manager to execute any documents necessary to
facilitate said purchase.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby accepts the Bid 1762356216 to purchase the
Pole Trailer from Ring Power Equipment and authorizes the City Council President
and City Manager to execute any documents necessary to facilitate said purchase

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by an affirmative vote of a mqjority of a quorum present
in the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida this 8tt' day of December, 2022.

182



Attest, By the City Clerk of
the City of Williston, Florida

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

BY THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF
THE CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA:

Debra fones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

183



184



r:'

r\
i,f

r{

185



186



.:-,

';rr.

187



Date: 12-08-2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022-100:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH TERRY BOVAIRD TO SERVE
AS CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING
THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE CITY OF WILLISTON CITY
MANAGER AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: DEBRA JONES, CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION : Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:

XX CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2022-1OO MAP

LEASE OTHER DOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

188



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2O22.XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH TERRY BOVAIRD TO SERVE
AS CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING
THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE CITY OF WILLISTON CITY
MANAGER AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida and the Interim
City Manager believe that an employment agreement for City Manager services
negotiated between the Council, on behalf of the City, and the Interim City
Manager is mutually beneficial to the City, the Interim City Manager, and the
community they serve;

WHEREAS, when appropriately structured, the Council and the Interim City
Manager believe an employment agreement strengthens the Council-Manager
relationship by enhancing the excellence and continuity of the management of the
City for the benefit of its citizens;

WHEREAS, the Council, on behalf of the City, desires to employ the services
of the Interim City Manager, as the City Manager of the City of Williston, Florida
pursuant to the terms, conditions and provisions of the attached City of Williston
City Manager Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Interim City Manager agrees to accept employment as the
City Manager, subject to the terms, conditions and provisions of the
aforementioned Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby incorporated
herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the City of Williston City Manager
Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The City Council President is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the
City such documents as are required to enter the Agreement.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption

PASSED AND ADOPTED by an affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum present
in the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida this 6tt' day of December, 2022.

189



Attest, By the City Clerk of
the City of Williston, Florida:

Latricia Wrighg City Clerk

BY THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF
THE CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA:

Debra fones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, CityAttorney

190



City of Williston Citv Manager Agreement

THIS CITY MANAGER AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into and effective the 6th

day of December, 2022, by and between the City of Williston, Florida, a Florida municipal corporation (the
"City") and Terry Bovaird (the "Manager" "City Manager").

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "Council") and the Manager believe that an

employment agreement negotiated between the Council, on behalf of the City, and the Manager is

mutually beneficial to the City, the Manager, and the community they serve;

WHEREAS, when appropriately structured, the Council and the Manager believe an employment
agreement strengthens the Council-Manager relationship by enhancing the excellence and continuity of
the management of the City for the benefit of its citizens;

WHEREAS, the Council, on behalf of the City, desires to employ the services of the Manager, as

the City Manager of the City ("City Manager"), pursuant to the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Manager agrees to accept employment as the City Manager, subject to the terms,
conditions and provisions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Manager, for and in consideration of the terms, conditions
and provisions hereinafter established have agreed, and do hereby agree as follows:

l. Tenvr

l.1 Tf nU. The City hereby employs the City Manager for a four (4)year term to commence on the 6th

day of December, 2022.

The City has the right to terminate the employment with the City Manager at any time subject to and in
accordance with the provisions of section six (6) of this agreement.

ll. Evrplovuerur

2.1 CHtEr ExrcUTlvE OFFICER. The City Manager is the chief executive officer of the City and shall

faithfully perform the duties of the City Manager as prescribed in the job description, as set forth in the
City Charter, if any, and City ordinances and, as may be lawfully assigned by the Council (collectively the
"City Manager's Duties"). Further, the City Manager shall comply with (collectively "Applicable Laws and

Authorities"): state and federal law; the City's Charter, if any; all City policies, rules, regulations, and

ordinances as they exist or may hereinafter be amended; and all lawful Council directives. All duties
assigned to the Manager by the Council shall be appropriate to and consistent with the professional role
and responsibility of the City Manager position.

2.2 DUftfS. The Council does hereby employ Manager as City Manager to perform the City Manager's
Duties in accordance with and pursuant to the City Charter, all Applicable Laws, and Authorities and to

191



the full extent not prohibited by or in material conflict with any existing provisions of the City's Charter or
Applicable Laws and Authorities. The Manager shall perform the City Manager's Duties with reasonable
care, diligence, skill, and expertise.

2.3 CRtTlctsvs, CowtplRfrtts, AND SuccrsrtoruS. The Council, individually and collectively, shall refer
in a timely manner all substantive criticisms, complaints, and suggestions called to the Council's attention
to the City Manager for study and/or appropriate action, and the City Manager shall refer the matter(s)
to the appropriate City employee or shall investigate such matter(s)and inform the Council of the results
of such efforts.

2.4 HOURS OF WORK. The Manager acknowledges the proper performance of the City Manager's Duties
require the Manager to generally observe normal business hours and will also often require the
performance of necessary services outside of normal business hours. The City Manager agrees to devote
such additional time as is necessary for the full and proper performance of the City Manager's Duties and

that the compensation herein provided includes compensation for the performance of all such services.
However, the City intends that reasonable time off be permitted the Manager pursuant to paragraph 3.3,
so long as the time off does not interfere with the normalconduct of the office of the City Manager. The

Manager will devote full time and effort to the performance of the City Manager's Duties and shall remain
in the exclusive employ of the City during the term of this Agreement. The City Manager with the prior
consent of the Council may accept outside professional employment which does not interfere with the
City Manager performing the City Manager's Duties. The term "outside professional employment" means
professional services provided to third parties for which the City Manager is compensated and which are
performed on the City Manager's time off.

2.5 REStof ruCe . The Manager agrees to maintain his temporary or primary residence within a thirty (30)

mile radius of the City throughout the life of this agreement.

lll. CoruperusRnoru

3.1 SRLRRV. The City shall provide the Manager with an annual salary in the sum of Eighty Thousand

One Hundred and Fifty-Nine (S 80,159.00) plus benefits. The City Manager will be eligible for an increase
to his annual salary as determined by the City Council with a majority vote of members present. The City

Manager's annual salary shall be paid to the City Manager in equal installments on the schedule of other
City employees and shall be paid subject to any applicable withholding or deductions required by the
Applicable Laws and Authorities.

3.2 Snmny AOluSrvrruTs. At any time during the term of this Agreement, the City Council may, in its
discretion, review and adjust the salary of the City Manager, but in no event shall the City Manager be
paid less than the salary set forth in Paragraph 3.1 of this Agreement, except by mutual agreement of the
two parties. Such adjustments, if any, shall be made pursuant to lawfulCouncil resolutions. ln such event,
the parties agree to provide their best efforts and reasonable cooperation to execute a new agreement
incorporating the adjusted salary.

3.3 Pnto LrRves - VAcATtoN, StcK, PtnSoruRL, AND HoLtDAy. The City Manager shall be granted three
weeks annual leave per year calculated bi-weekly, carried over if unused and reported in the City Mangers
payroll notice of deposit. The annual leave taken by the City Manager will be taken at such time or times

192



of the City Manager's choice, in a single period or at different times. The vacation leave taken by the City
Manager will be taken at such time or times as will least interfere with the performance of the City
Manager's Duties. The City Manager is hereby granted the same sick/personal leave benefits as authorized
by Council policies for employees. The City Manager shall observe the same legal holidays as provided by
the City for its administrative employees. The City Manager shall retain all unused earned vacation, sick,

extra vacation and safety hours that are currently owed to him from his previous position within the City
of Williston.

3.4 BENEFITS - GerufRRl. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, in addition to those
benefits specifically set forth herein, the City Manager shall be entitled to the same benefits that are

enjoyed by any other employees of the City pursuant to all Applicable Laws and Authorities. This includes
accrual and payment of benefits upon the events defined by the adopted employee benefits rules and
regulations. Those benefits presently include health insurance (see also 3.5)forthe employee at no cost,
a life insurance policy in the amount of 515,000 at no cost to the City Manager.

3.5 lttlSuRRruCr - HrRlrH. The City agrees to pay the premiums for health, hospitalization, vision, dental
and comprehensive medical insurance for the Manager pursuant to the group health care plan provided
by the City for its employees.

3.6 RettRe v f ruf BENEFIT. The City agrees to pay the a mount that is eq ua I to 1,4.O% of the City Ma nager's
gross salary into a recognized retirement system instrument specifically for the City Manager and agreed
upon by the City and City Manager in accordance with all Applicable Laws and Authorities. The 14%

contribution will be calculated and contributed as allowable by law and no less than monthly.

3.7 VEHICLE. The City shall provide a late model vehicle for the City Manager to use to conduct City
business. Both the City and the City Manager agree that this vehicle shall be used daily for not only city
business but to also travel both to and from the City Managers place of residence as described in section
2.5. All operating expenses of the assigned vehicle shall be paid by the City.

3.8 BONDs Altto lruorvNlFICATION. The City shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds
required of the City Manager under any law or ordinance. The City shall to the extent required by law,
defend, save harmless and indemnify the City Manager against any tort, professional liability claim or
demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of alleged act or omission
occurring in the performance of the City Manager's duties as City Manager. The City willdefend and pay

the amount of settlement or judgment rendered in any tort, professional liability claim, demand, or other
legal action, arising out of alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of the City Manager's
duties as City Manager. ln furtherance of the above, the City Manager shall be covered by City's Public
Official Liability Policy, as well as other Liability Policies.

3.9 CtVtC ACrtVlTlES. The City Manager is encouraged to participate in community and civic
organizations and activities. The cost of such activities shall be borne by the City.

lV. PnorrssroNArGRowrH

4.1 PROFESSIoNAL DUES AND SuBScRtPTtoNs. The City agrees to a reasonably budget to pay for
professional dues and subscriptions of the City Manager necessary for continuation and full participation

193



in national, state, regional, and local associations and organizations as necessary and/or desirable for
the good of the City through the City Manager's continued professional participation, growth and

advancement.

4.2 PnorrsstotttAl DEVELoPM ENT TRAVEL. The City agrees to reasonably budget for a nd to pay for travel
and subsistence expenses of the City Manager for professional and official travel and meetings to
adequately continue the professional development of the City Manager and to pursue necessary official
functions forthe City, including but not limited the Florida Municipal League, the Florida City Management
Association, to the ICMA Annual Conference and such other national, regional, state and local
governmental groups and committees in which the City Manager is a member or may become a member.
The intent of this provision is to reasonably provide for professional development to the extent of
available funding. The City Manager will include annually in the budget for adoption all anticipated
professional development and related expenses to best information possible. The Council will allow the
City Manager to utilize the budgeted travel funds as herein described and will inform the Council of travel
and use of funds prior to and after travel expenditures for City business. The City Manager shall comply
with all procedures and documentation requirements in accordance with Applicable Laws and Authorities.

4.3 PRorrsstotttAl CoNTtNUtNG EDUcATtoN. The City also agrees to reasonably budget to the extent of
available funding for and to pay for travel and subsistence expenses of Manager for short courses,

institutes, and seminars that are necessary and/or desirable for the good of the City through the City

Ma nager's professiona I development.

V. PenronvrnNcE EvALUATToN

5.1 EVALUATION PnOcfss. The Council shall review the City Manager's job performance annually upon

the anniversary of the original commencement date of this agreement unless the parties agree otherwise.
The annual performance reviews and evaluations shall be established by the Council in agreement with
the City Manager. The Council shall provide the City Manager a reasonable and adequate opportunity to
discuss with the Council and/or respond to the City Manager's evaluation.

Vl. SrpnRnnoru / TrnurruATroN

6.1 SrpRRRttoN Aruo TrnvtNATtoN EvENTs. This Agreement shall separate or terminate the
employment relationship upon any of the following:

1 . Resignation by Manager in writing with thirty (30) days' notice of the effective date and

signed by the City Manager;

2. Retirement of the City Manager;

3. Non-renewal of the City Mangers Agreement at expiration.

Upon the occurrence of any of the events listed within section 6.1, above, the City shall pay to the City

Manager any accrued benefits of vacation and sick leave as defined by and in accordance with the
standard employees' rules and regulations.

6.2 UttttLRrrRRl SrvrnRruCr. The Council may end the employment relationship and terminate this
Agreement, at the pleasure of the Council. lf the Council determines that it desires a Unilateral Severance

194



it shall require a 3 to 2 vote, for termination, by the Council. A 3 to 2 vote, for termination, by the Council

shall qualify the City Manager to receive a severance payment in accordance with the terms of paragraph

6.3, below, and subject to all legally required deductions and withholdings. The City shall provide written
notice to the City Manager at least thirty (30) days in advance of the effective date of such termination.

6.3 SrvrRRruCr AMOUNT CALCULATIoN. The "Severance Amount" means the total amount of:

(a) an amount in accordance with the schedule included herein; AND

(b) the value of any accrued but unused vacation and sick/personal leave
days, computed as in accordance with the standard employees' rules and regulations.
Conditioned upon the City fulfilling its obligations to pay the Severance Amount, the
Severance Benefits, and the Current Obligations, upon a Unilateral Severance, the City

Manager waives and releases the City Manager's rights to continued employment with the
City and the parties waive and release the right to arbitration hearing on the issue of good

cause. ln the event of a Unilateral Severance, the parties agree not to make disparaging
comments or statements about each other.

The Severance Amount calculation is based on an hourly rate of the Salary divided by 2080 hrs. and

applied as a workday defined as 8 hours.

30 days - 6 months....20 workdays (160 hours)

6-12 months add 20 workdays for a total of 40 days

12-24 months add 20 workdays for a total of 60 days

24-36 months add 20 workdays for a total of 80 days

36-... months add 20 workdays for a total of 100 days max

6.4 WRtvrR On Fonf e tfuRE OF Sfvf Rnruce . City Manager agrees to forfeit any severance in the event

(a) he enters any plea, including, but not limited to, pleas of guilty, pleas of nolo contendere ("no
contest"), or is convicted in a court having criminaljurisdiction; or

(b) he has been fired for misconduct, as defined in s.443.036(29), by the unit of government.

Vll. GerurnnlPnovlsrols

7.1 COMPLETE AGREEMENT. This Agreement sets forth and establishes the understanding between the
City and the City Manager relating to the employment of the City Manager by the City.

1.2 BttttotltlC ErrrCr. This Agreement shall be binding on the City and the City Manager as well
as their heirs, assigns, executors, personal representatives, and successors in interest. Any modifications
to this agreement shall be accomplished in writing and affixed to the most recent agreement.

7 .3 Seve RRstLtfY CLAUSE. lf any term or provision of this Agreement, as applied to any party or
to any circumstance, is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction hereof to be illegal, unenforceable,
or void in any situation and in any jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or enforceability of the
offending provision in any other situation or in any other jurisdiction. The parties agree that the court or
arbitrator making such determination shall have the power to reduce the scope, duration, area or

o

a

a

a

o

195



applicability of the term or provision, to delete specific words or phrases or to replace any illegal,
unenforceable, orvoid term or provision with a term or provision that isvalid and enforceable and that
comes closest to expressing the intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision.

7 .4 COruf ltCfS. ln the event of any conflict between the terms, conditions and provisions of
this Agreement and the Applicable Laws and Authorities, then, unless otherwise prohibited by law, the
terms of this Agreement shall take precedence over the contrary provisions of the Applicable Laws and
Authorities during the term of this Agreement.

7.5 COrurRolLttrlc LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in

accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and shall be performable in Levy County, Florida, unless
otherwise provided by law.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the respective dates set
fourth below and each herby acknowledge receipt of an executed copy of this agreement.

THE C|TY OF W|LUSTON, FLORTDA

By

Debra Jones, Council President

By

Terry E. Bovaird, City Manager

ATTEST:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

196



osHr Pricing Proposal
Quotation #: 22724306
Created On: 111412022
Valid Until: 121412022

District Sales Manager

Bryan Hunt
290 Davidson Ave
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone'.732-652-7651
Fax: 732-564-8224
Email: Bryan_Hunt@shi.com

AtV Your Price

Aaron Mills
FL

United States
Phone: 352-533-0322
Fax:
Email: amills@willistonfl .org

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD)

Product Total

Gity of Williston

1 ExchOnline Pln2G User
Microsoft - Part#: AAA-11628
Coverage T erm'. 1 1 l4l2o22 - 913012023

55 $85.68 $4,712.40

2 Office 365 E3GCC User
Microsoft - Part#: AAA-11650
Coverage Term: 111412022 - 9l3Ol2O23

Additional Gomments

50 $246.33 $12,316.50

Total $17,028.90

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and fluctuations.

The Products offered under this proposal are resold in accordance with the SHI Online Customer Resale Terms and Conditions.
unless a separate resale agreemenf exisls between SHI and the Customer.

197




